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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EFSBECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(dy ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period From to

Commission File Number:-13610

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Texas 7-6446078
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
17950 Preston Road, Suite 600, Dallas, TX 752 (972) 343200
(Address of principal executive office (Registrant’s telephone number)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefct:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registere
Common shares of beneficial interest, $.01 pares NYSE MKT

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(¢ghefct:None
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantigl:-known seasoned issuer (as defined in Rulecf@be Securities Act). YES = NOY
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant tsyeguired to file reports pursuant to Section £2%(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. YESNO Y.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant &k)filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring the preceding 12 months (or
such shorter period that the registrant was reduadile such reports), and (2) has been subgestich filing requirements for the past 90 daysSYE NO _

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant hdwngited electronically and posted on its corpoiateb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted and pos
pursuant to Rule 405 of RegulationTSSection 232.405 of this chapter) during the pditg 12 months (or for such shorter period thatRlegistrant was required to submit and post
files). YESY_ _NO _

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i oontained herein, and will not be contained h® best of the Registraatknowledge, i
definitive proxy or information statements incorgi@d by reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-Kaoyy amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantler@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting compage the definitions ofidrge accelerate
filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Chenk):

Large accelerated filer _ Accelerated filey Non-accelerated filer __ Smaller reporting company _
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantshadl company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 2R¥ES__ NO v

The aggregate market value of common shares helibbsffiliates of the Registrant, based upon the clpsale price of the Common Shares of Beneficiaregt on June 30, 2012
reported on the NYSE MKT, was approximately $76lioril Common Shares of Beneficial Interest heldelgh officer and trust manager and by each personomwns 10% or more of t
outstanding Common Shares of Beneficial Inteteste been excluded because such persons may bedi¢enbe affiliates. This determination of affikastatus is not necessaril
conclusive determination for other purposes.

As of March 5, 2013, the Registrant had outstand®89,554 Common Shares of Beneficial Interest.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

Portions of the Registrant's Proxy Statement tdillbd with the Securities and Exchange Commissiathiw 120 days after the year covered by this Fam with respect to the Annu
Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated by refarénto Part 11l of this Form 10-K.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains certain forwatdeking statements within the meaning of Sectioh 87 the Securities Act of 1933 :
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@Bdch are intended to be covered by the safe hrarbreated thereby. These statem
include the plans and objectives of managementuinre operations, including plans and objectivetating to future growth of our loa
receivable and availability of funds. Such forwdodking statements can be identified by the usém¥arddooking terminology such
“may,” “will,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe,” “anti cipate,” “estimate,” or “continue,” or the negative thereof or other variations or dar
words or phrases. The forwatdeking statements included herein are based omeatirexpectations that involve numerous risks
uncertainties identified in this Form 10-K, incladi without limitation, the risks identified undére caption “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.”
Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgis with respect to, among other things, futurenemic, competitive and mar
conditions and future business decisions, all atiare difficult or impossible to predict accurbteand many of which are beyond our con
Although we believe that the assumptions underlgiegorwarclooking statements are reasonable, any of the aggans could be inaccurs
and, therefore, there can be no assurance thatdheard-looking statements included in this FormKL@vill prove to be accurate. In light
the significant uncertainties inherent in the forddooking statements included herein, the inclusidnsiach information should not
regarded as a representation by us or any othes@ethat our objectives and plans will be achie\Reladers are cautioned not to place ur
reliance on forward-looking statements. Forwdodking statements speak only as of the date theynade. We do not undertake to up
them to reflect changes that occur after the daéy are made, except to the extent required byicgipé securities laws.

PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS
INTRODUCTION

PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” and togethath its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the “Compan$qur” or “we”) is a ree
estate investment trust (“REITYrganized in 1993 that primarily originates loaossiall businesses collateralized by first lienstlom ree
estate of the related business. As a REIT, we s$eekaximize shareholder value through Idegn growth in dividends paid to ¢
shareholders. We must distribute at least 90% ofREIT taxable income to shareholders to maintainREIT status. See “Tax Statuur
common shares are traded on the NYSE MKT undesythrbol “PCC.”

We generate revenue primarily from the yield andeptfees earned on our investments. Our loans @@ominantly (94% i
December 31, 2012) to borrowers in the hospitatiustry. Our operations are located in Dallas,aBeand include originating, servicing i
selling the government guaranteed portions of geltans. During the years ended December 31, 20822011, our total revenues were $
million and $16.1 million, respectively, and ourtriecome (loss) was ($2.2) million and $3.6 milljaespectively. Seeltem 8. Financie
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

We originate loans through PMC Commercial and it®Ny-owned lending subsidiaries: First Western EBlnc. (“First Westerry,
PMC Investment Corporation (“PMCIC") and Westerndficial Capital Corporation (“Western FinanciaFjrst Western is licensed as a st
business lending company (“SBLC”) that originatearis through the Small Business AdministrationSBA”") 7(a) Guaranteed Loan Progr
(“SBA 7(a) Program”). PMCIC and Western Financia Bcensed small business investment companiegICS).

The SBA 7(a) Program is the SBA'’s primary progranié¢lp startdp and existing businesses obtain financing whew thight not b
eligible for business loans through conventionatleg programs. As a ndmnk SBA 7(a) Program lender, First Western is ébleriginatt
loans on which a substantial portion of the loaen@rally 75% to 85%) is guaranteed as to paymeptio€ipal and interest by the SBA. 1
underwriting criteria of the SBA 7(a) Program aged stringent than our n@BA 7(a) Program loan originations; thus, we are &b originat
loans that we would not otherwise be able to odtgras a result of the SBA guarantee. See “Lendlatiyities — SBA Programs.”

The SBA maintains a Preferred Lender Program wheiteigrants Preferred Lender Program (“PLBtatus to certain lende
originating SBA 7(a) Program loans based on achierg of certain standards in lending which are ladyu monitored by the SBA. Fir
Western has been granted national PLP status dgidaies, sells and services small business loass Preferred Lender, First Wester
authorized to place SBA guarantees on loans witkeaking prior SBA review and approval. Being damatl lender, PLP status allows F
Western to expedite loans since First Western iseguired to present applications to the SBA fumaurrent review and approval.
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We continue to focus on the origination of SBA 7Rapgram loans which require less capital due ¢oathility to sell the governme
guaranteed portion of such loans. We utilize thé SBa) Program to originate small business loanisarily secured by real estate, and 1
sell the government guaranteed portion to investors

Our ability to generate interest income, as welbder revenue sources, is dependent on econoegialatory and competitive fact
that influence interest rates and loan originaticarsd our ability to secure financing for our inwaent activities. The amount of reve
recorded will vary from current levels based oruaber of factors including, but not limited to:

e The volume and type of loans fund:

e The volume and type of loans which preg

e The timing and availability of leverag

* The amount of nc-performing loans

« Recognition of premium income, if any, on secondagrket loan sale:

* The interest rate and type of loans originated;

e The general level of interest rat

The majority of our loans (83%) have variable ratemterest. As a result, during periods of deolininterest rates, our interest incc
is subject to interest rate risk. See “ltem 7a. @itative and Qualitative Disclosures About Markask.”

Generally, in order to fund new loans, we needdodw funds or sell loans. Since 2006, our workoapital was primarily provide
through credit facilities and principal paymentsc(uding prepayments) on loans receivable. Prio2G06, our primary source of lorigrrr
funds was structured loan sale transactions andsuance of junior subordinated notes. At theemrtime, there is a limited market
structured loan sale transactions (more commondwnknas securitizations) and there is no marketHerissuance of trust preferred secur
(junior subordinated notes). We cannot anticipabteny or if, these markets will be available to Ustil these markets become availabli
alternative debt and/or equity structures becomalable, our ability to grow is limited. Due to (e lack of a market for our type
securitization and the prospect that this market never recover to its prior form or may returntwiosts or structures that we may not be
to accept and (2) limits on the amounts of cagitalilable through credit or warehouse facilitieg, ontinue to focus our lending activities
originating loans under the SBA 7(a) Program.

LENDING ACTIVITIES
Overview

We are a national lender that primarily original@sns to small businesses, principally in the lediservice hospitality industry.
addition to first liens on the real estate of thtated business, our loans are typically persorgilgranteed by the principals of the ent
obligated on the loans.

We identify loan origination opportunities throughrsonal contacts, internet referrals, attendahtede shows and meetings, di
mailings, advertisements in trade publications attietr marketing methods. We also generate loawnsighr referrals from real estate and |
brokers, franchise representatives, existing bogreplawyers and accountants. Payments are sonsetirade to nomffiliated individuals wh
assist in generating loan applications, with suynpents generally not exceeding 1% of the princpabunt of the originated loan.

Limited Service Hospitality Industry

Our outstanding loans are generally collateraliggdirst liens on limited service hospitality propies and are typically for owner-
operated facilities operating under national frase$, including, among others, Comfort Inn, Days, IHoliday Inn Express, Econolod
Rodeway Inn and Best Western. We believe that fi@ecoperations offer attractive lending opportiesitboecause such businesses gen
employ proven business concepts, have nationalvegsen systems and advertising, consistent produatity, are screened and monitore«
franchisors and generally have a higher rate ofesgwhen compared to other independently opehatguitality businesses.

3
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Loan Originations and Underwriting

We believe that we successfully compete in certaittors of the commercial real estate finance mapkemarily the limited servic
hospitality sector, due to our diligent underwigtiwhich is benefitted by our understanding of oarrbwers’businesses and our respon
customer service.

We consider traditional underwriting criteria suh

« The underlying cash flow of the owi-operator,;

* The components, value and replacement cost ofdtrewe''s collateral (primarily real estate
» The industry and competitive environment in whilba borrower operate

e The financial strength of the guarantc

< Analysis of local market condition

« The ease with which the collateral can be liquidg

« The existence of any secondary repayment sou

« Evaluation of the property operator; €

» The existence of a franchise relationsl

Upon receipt of a completed loan application, oredi department conducts: (1) a detailed analg$ithe potential loan, whic
typically includes a thirgrarty licensed appraisal and a valuation by ouditrepartment of the property that will collatézal the loan t
ensure compliance with loan-to-value percentag®sa (site inspection for real estate collateraliteahs, (3) a review of the borrower’
business experience, (4) a review of the borrowereslit history, and (5) an analysis of the borrdsveebt-service-coverage, debtequity
and other applicable ratios. We also utilize laoarket economic information to the extent available

We believe that our typical ndBBA 7(a) Program loan is distinguished from tho$esmme of our competitors by the follow

characteristics:

« Substantial down payments are requirfde usually require an initial down payment of betwe?5% and 30% but not less t
20% of the total cost of the project being finand@dr experience has shown that the likelihoodubfrépayment of a loan increa
if the owner/operator is required to make an ihaiad substantial financial commitment to the peojeeing financec

« “Cash outs” are typically not permittedsenerally, we will not make a loan in an amountggethan the lesser of 80% of either
replacement cost or current appraised value opthperty which is collateral for the loan. For exde) a hotel property may he
been originally constructed for a cost of $2.0 imil] with the owner/operator initially borrowing $lmillion of that amount. At tt
time of the borrowes loan refinancing request, the property secuffiregldan is appraised at $4.0 million. Some of mmpetitor:
might loan from 70% to 90% or more of the new ajga@ value of the property and permit the ownewafoe to receive a ca
distribution from the proceeds. Generally, we waubd permit this type c“cast-out” distribution.

< The obligor is personally liable for the loeWe typically require the principals of the borrowermpersonally guarantee the lo.

We may originate SBA 7(a) Program loans up to $Bianiprimarily to existing businesses, who use fheds for a wide range
business needs including, but not limited to:

« Opening, expanding or acquiring a business or freseg

« Purchasing commercial real estate and propertyawgnents; an

« Refinancing existing business de

The terms of an SBA 7(a) Program loan are primatigginguished from the terms of a conventionahlbg the following:

« A longer term is possibl. We offer up to 25 year amortization periods anakurities compared to conventional loans w
typically are a maximum of 20 yea

« Lower down payments are generally requirSBA loans typically have down payments that areallgino more than 20% of t
entire project cost while conventional loans gelheraquire between 25% and 30'

* No early balloon payments or prepayment fiSBA loans are generally fully amortizing withouballoon payment at maturity.
addition, if the term is less than 15 years, therm prepayment fe:

4
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Interest Rates
Interest rates on our loans receivable, net, werfellbbws:

At December 31

2012 2011

Weightec Weightec
Average Average
Loans Receivable, n Interest Loans Receivable, n Interest

Amount % Rate Amount % Rate

(Dollars in thousands

Variable-rate- LIBOR $126,308 52.9% 4.6% $132,596 56.6% 4.4%
Variable-rate- prime 70,859 29.6% 5.9% 57,338 24.4% 5.8%
Fixec-rate 41,824 17.5% 9.0% 44,493 19.0% 9.2%
Total $238,991 100.0% 5.8% $234,427 100.0% 5.6%

Our variablerate loans generally require monthly payments ofgipal and interest, reset on a quarterly basisntortize the princip
over the remaining life of the loan. Fixedte loans generally require level monthly paymeffisrincipal and interest calculated to amortize

principal over the remaining life of the loan.

Industry Concentration

The distribution of our loans receivable by indystras as follows at December 31, 2012:

Numbe

% of

of Total

Loans Cost (1) Cost

(Dollars in thousands

Hotels and motel 261 $228,224 94.3%
Convenience stores/service stati 15 9,211 3.8%
RV Parks 3 1,996 0.8%
Services 16 866 0.4%
Restaurant 19 524 0.2%
Retail 4 335 0.1%
Other 14 970 0.4%
332 $242,126 100.0%

(1) Loan portfolio outstanding before loan loss ressraad deferred commitment fe

Loan Portfolio Statistics

Information on our loans receivable was as follows:

At December 31

2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands

Principal outstanding (1 $ 242,12¢ $ 236,11!
Weighted average interest ri 5.8% 5.6%
Average yield (2 5.2% 5.8%
Weighted average contractual maturity in ye 15.t 15.C
Hospitality industry concentratic 94.3% 93.5%
14.7% 18.1%

Texas concentration (.

(1) Loans receivable outstanding before loan loss neseand deferred commitment fe

(2) The calculation of average yield divides our ingtrincome, prepayment fees and other loan relaged, fadjusted by the provision

loan losses, by the weighted average loans reckivalistanding
(3) No other state concentrations greater than or eqa&al0% existed at December 31, 2012 or 2!

5



Table of Contents

Loans Funded

The following table is a breakdown of loans fundeeding the years indicated:

Years Ended December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands
Commercial mortgage loal $ 1933¢ $ 468 $ 490¢ $ 2,428 $ 19,73¢
SBA 7(a) Program loar 34,82: 33,67 33,53: 28,01( 10,97:
SBA 504 Program loans ( - - - - 3,87
Total loans funde: $ 54,16 $ 38,35. $ 38,44 $ 30,43! $ 34,58

(1) Represents second mortgages originated througBB#e 504 Program which were repaid by certified tigument companie:
SBA Programs
General

We utilize programs established by the SBA to gatecioan origination opportunities and provide uiha funding source as follows:

« We have an SBLC that originates loans through & %(a) Program

« We have participated as a private lender in #8A 504 Program which allowed us to originate firstrtgage loans with lower loan-
to-value ratios

* We have two licensed SBICs regulated under thallSBusiness Investment Act of 1958, as amended. SBICs use longerrr
funds provided by the SBA, together with their ogapital, to provide longerm collateralized loans to eligible small bussess a
defined under SBA regulation

Our regulated SBA subsidiaries are periodicallynexeed and audited by the SBA to determine compéamith SBA regulations.
SBA 7(a) Programn

The SBA 7(a) Program is the SBAprimary loan program. In general, the SBA reduiss to lenders by guaranteeing major port
of qualified loans made to small businesses. Thabkes lenders to provide financing to small busies when funding may otherwise
unavailable or not available on reasonable ternoAdingly, loans originated using the SBA 7(a) dPamn typically have less string
underwriting requirements than loans originatedeuralir other loan programs. These differences denmriting will typically be related to tl
age of the property, required equity investmemntjtéd business experience of the borrower and gtineasf guarantors.

Under the SBA 7(a) Program, the SBA typically gméeas 75% of qualified loans over $150,000. WHhike eligibility requirements
the SBA 7(a) Program vary by the industry of thertw@er and other factors, the general eligibiliéguirements include, but are not limitec
(1) gross sales of the borrower cannot exceedssasdards set by the SBA.¢., $30.0 million for limited service hospitality progies) o
alternatively average net income cannot exceed iB8l@n for the most recent two fiscal years, [[Buid assets of the borrower and affilic
cannot exceed specified limits, (3) tangible netttvof the borrower must be less than $15.0 milli@) the borrower must be a U.S. citizel
legal permanent resident and (5) the maximum aggee§BA loan guarantees to a borrower cannot ex$88¢ million. Maximum maturitie
for SBA 7(a) Program loans are 25 years for re@tesnd 10 years for the purchase of machinergitéwe, fixtures and/or equipment. In or
to operate as an SBLC, a licensee is required totaia a minimum regulatory capital (as definedS®BA regulations) of the greater of (1) 1
of its outstanding loans receivable and other itnaests or (2) $1.0 million, and is subject to cierather regulatory restrictions such as chi
in control provisions. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”

SBIC Program

We originate loans to small businesses throughSBICs. According to SBA regulations, SBICs may makegterm loans to smz
businesses and invest in the equity securitiesicti dusinesses. Under SBA regulations, eligiblellsbusinesses include those that have i
worth not exceeding $18 million and have averageiahfully taxable net income not exceeding $6 immilifor the most recent two fiscal ye:
To the extent approved, an SBIC can issue debentunese principal and interest is guaranteed tpédie to the debt holder in the even
non-payment by the SBIC. As a result, the debesturests of funds are usually lower compared teradtive fixedrate sources of fun
available to us.
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SBA 504 Progran

The SBA 504 Program assists small businesses ainif subordinated, lontgrm financing by guaranteeing debentures ava
through certified development companies (“CDCsf)the purpose of acquiring land, building, maehinand equipment and for moderniz
renovating or restoring existing facilities andesitA typical finance structure for an SBA 504 RPamg project would include a first mortg:
covering 50% of the project cost from a privatedien a second mortgage obtained from a CDC covenntp 40% of the project cost an
contribution of at least 10% of the project costtbg principals of the small businesses being @skisVe typically require at least a 1
contribution of the equity in a project by our lmmers. The SBA does not guarantee the first moeigaAdthough the total sizes of proje
utilizing the SBA 504 Program are unlimited, cuthgrthe maximum amount of subordinated debt in ardividual project is generally ¢
million (or $5.5 million for certain projects). Tigal project costs range in size from $1 milliorfs® million.

SECONDARY MARKET LOAN SALES

Our SBA 7(a) subsidiary sells loans pursuant toSB& 7(a) Program. The SBA guaranteed portiondhe$é loans are sold in le
sale transactions to either dealers in governmeatagteed loans or institutional investors (“Seeopdviarket Loan Salesas the loans a
fully funded. These government guaranteed portaisans may be sold for (1) a cash premium andihemum 1% SBA required servici
spread, (2) significant future servicing spread andcash premium or (3) future servicing spread armhsh premium of 10% Hybrid loar
sales”). Prior to January 1, 2010, all of thesee$ypf transactions were recorded as salas,{ve recorded premium income) for accoun
purposes. Effective January 1, 2010, due to a ehangccounting rules, we were required to permigyéeat certain of the proceeds recei
from these legally sold portions of loans (thosnsold solely for future servicing spread andéhoans sold for a cash premium of 10%
future servicing spread) as secured borrowingstfdebthe life of the loan and 100% of the loaririsluded in our loans receivable. We ca
longer record premium income on these types ofsa&lecordingly, cash premiums collected on hybo@n sales are deferred and reflected
liability on our consolidated balance sheet and rtimed as a reduction to interest expense ovelifthef the loan. Deferred cash premium
December 31, 2012 were $3.1 million.

TAX STATUS

PMC Commercial has elected to be taxed as a RE#Enthe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amertded' Code”).As a REIT
PMC Commercial is generally not subject to Fedémabme tax (including any applicable alternativenimum tax) to the extent that
distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable incoimeshareholders. Certain of PMC Commersiaubsidiaries, including First Western
PMCIC, have elected to be treated as taxable REbEidiaries; thus, their earnings are subject ®. Bederal income tax. To the extent F
Commercials taxable REIT subsidiaries retain their earningd profits, these earnings and profits will be witable for distribution to ot
shareholders.

PMC Commercial may, however, be subject to ceffaideral excise taxes and state and local taxets arcome and property. If PN
Commercial fails to qualify as a REIT in any tax@alkar, it will be subject to Federal income taaesegular corporate rates (including
applicable alternative minimum tax) and will not &lgle to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent dexgears. REITs are subject to a nun
of organizational and operational requirements urtde Code. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors — REIT ReglaRisks”for additional tax stati
information.

EMPLOYEES

We employed 32 individuals including marketing gedionals, investment professionals, operationfegsmnals and administrat
staff as of December 31, 2012. We have employmgreements with our two executive officers. Our atiens are centralized in Dall
Texas. We believe the relationship with our empésyis good.
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COMPETITION

When originating loans we compete with other sgcieommercial lenders, SBA 7(a) lenders, bankseker dealers, other REI
savings and loan associations, insurance compangksther entities that originate loans. Many esthcompetitors have greater financial
managerial resources than us, are able to prowddaces we are not able to provide.d., depository services), and may be better ak
withstand the impact of economic downturns.

Variable-rate lendingFor our variable-rate loan products, we believecampete effectively on the basis of interest rates,long-
term maturities and payment schedules, the qualiur service, our reputation in the marketplao®e] greater responsiveness to renewa
refinancing requests from borrowers.

Fixed-rate lendingin the current market, borrowers are looking preihately for fixed-rate loans; however, our abilityoffer fixed-
rate loans is limited by our cost of capital andikbility of funds.

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT REPORTS

We file with or furnish to the Securities and Exafja Commission (“SEC")n accordance with the Securities Exchange Acta¥4.
as amended (the “Exchange Act”) our annual repmitform 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-@ anr current reports on Formks-
These reports are available free of charge on alasite, www.pmctrust.com/investors, as soon anedmy practicable after we electronici
file the information with the SEC. We are providitige address to our internet site solely for tHerimation of investors. We do not intend
address to be an active link or to otherwise inomafe the contents of the website into this report.

The SEC maintains an internet site, www.sec.gogt ttontains reports, proxy and information stateasiemd other informatic
regarding issuers that file electronically with BEC.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Due to the complexity of the Company, a wide ramfgiactors could materially affect our future dey@ients and performance.
addition to the factors affecting specific businepgrations identified in connection with the dgstion of these operations and the finan
results of these operations described elsewhetiisrreport, management has identified the follgnimportant factors that could cause act
results to differ materially from those reflectedforward-looking statements or from our historigabults. These factors, which are not all
inclusive, could have a material impact on our assduations, results of operations or financiahctition and could also impair our ability
maintain dividend distributions at current or arifiated levels.

Investment Risks— Lending Activities

Changes in economic conditions could have a contimg adverse effect on our profitability.

Turmoil in the financial markets adversely affeetsonomic activity. This turmoil (including the efteof any perceived or acti
economic recession) subjects our borrowers to @il@histress which could impair their ability toisét their obligations to us. During periods
economic stress, delinquencies and losses mayagend losses may be substantial.

In addition, an increase in price levels generallyin price levels in a particular sector sucht@senergy sector, could result in a ¢
in consumer demand away from limited service hafipitproperties which collateralize the majority aur loans. A significant increase
gasoline prices within a short period of time coafféct the limited service sector of the hospijailndustry. A significant portion of the limit
service hospitality loans collateralizing our losare located on interstate highways. When gas gstarply increase, occupancy rates
properties located on interstate highways may @sereThis may cause a reduction in revenue peladi@iroom. Any sustained increast
gasoline prices could materially and adverselycffae financial condition of our borrowers whichutd cause us to experience increi
defaults.

Commercial mortgage loans expose us to a high degref risk associated with investing in real estate.

The performance and value of our loans depends upamy factors beyond our control. Commercial resthte has experienc
cyclical performance and significant fluctuations the past that impacts the value of our real estatlateralized loans. The ultim
performance and value of our loans are subjecisks mssociated with the ownership and operatioth@fproperties which collateralize
loans, including the property ownsriability to operate the property with sufficierdsb flow to meet debt service requirements.
performance and value of the properties collataradi our loans may be adversely affected by:

« Changes in national or regional economic conditi

« Changes in real estate market conditions due toggdsin national, regional or local economic cdondg or property mark

characteristics

< Disruptions in the credit markets including theed-backed securitization marke

« Competition from other propertie

« Changes in interest rates and the condition oflhe and equity capital marke

e The ongoing need for capital repairs and improves)y

* Increases in real estate tax rates and other apgmtpenses (including utilities

» A significant increase in gasoline prices in a siperiod of time;

» Adverse changes in governmental rules and fisdatips; acts of God, including earthquakes, hunm@&sand other natural disast

acts of war or terrorism; or a decrease in thelab#ity of or an increase in the cost of insurar

« Adverse changes in zoning lav

e The impact of environmental legislation and compdawith environmental laws; ar

< Other factors that are beyond our control or thamb of the commercial property owne

In the event that any of the properties underlydnig loans experience any of the foregoing eventscourrences, the value of, ¢
return on, such loans may be negatively impactearelver, our profitability and the market priceafr common shares may be negati
impacted.
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Payment defaults and other credit risks in our invetment portfolio may increase which may cause advse effects on our cash flows, n
income (loss) and ability to make distributions.

Recessionary economic conditions and adverse dawelots in the credit markets have led to businestaction, liquidity issues a
other problems for many of the businesses we fi@afs a result, payment defaults and other crégkitrin our investment portfolio increas
and may continue to increase, which has causedmarydcontinue to cause, adverse effects on our fbash, results of operations and abi
to make distributions.

Historically, we have not experienced significamgdes for most of our real estate secured loansodaer borrowersequity in thei
properties, the value of the underlying collatetiag cash flows from operations of the businessdsother factors such as having recour:
the guarantors. However, due to the prolonged aoandownturn and the current economic environmesmst,believe that in many instanc
our borrowers’equity in their properties has eroded and may &r#rode which may result in increased forecloseté/ity and credit losse
Whenever our borrowers experience significant apegalifficulties and we are forced to liquidatestbollateral underlying the loan, losses
be substantial.

We may increase loan loss reserves due to gengsaldss and economic conditions and increasedt @ediliquidity risks which me
continue to have an adverse effect on our finam@alormance; however, there can be no assuraatéhi loan loss reserves we establish
be sufficient.

The commercial real estate loans we originate arailject to the risks of default and foreclosure whih could result in losses to us.

The commercial real estate loans we originate allateralized by incom@roducing properties (primarily limited service hiality
properties) and we are subject to risks of defanlt foreclosure. In the event of a default undemcatgage loan, we bear a risk of los:
principal to the extent of any deficiency betweka value of the collateral and the unpaid princlslance of the mortgage loan, which c
have a material adverse effect on our cash floas foperations and net income (loss). If a borrodefaults on one of our commercial |
estate loans and the underlying property collatengl the loan is insufficient to satisfy the oatstling balance of the loan, we may suff
loss. In addition to losses related to collatediaglencies, during the foreclosure process we mayr costs related to the protection of
collateral including unpaid real estate taxes, lidgas, franchise fees, insurance and operatingtfalie to the extent the property is be
operated by a court-appointed receiver.

Foreclosure and bankruptcy are complex and somstiemgthy processes that are subject to Federadtatellaws and regulations.
action to foreclose on a property is subject to ynah the delays and expenses of other lawsuitshéf defendant raises defense:
counterclaims. In the event of a default by a meaytyy, these restrictions, among other things, mpete our ability to foreclose on or sell
mortgaged property or to obtain proceeds sufficienepay all amounts due to us on the mortgage. IBarrowers have the option of seel
Federal bankruptcy protection which could delay filveclosure process. In conjunction with the bapkry process, the terms of the |
agreements may be modified. Typically, delays iae threclosure process will have a negative impaxcior results of operations anc
financial condition due to direct and indirect sostcurred and possible deterioration of the valigne collateral.

Our ability to sell any properties we own as a ltestiforeclosure will be impacted by changes iomamic and other conditions. C
ability to sell these properties and the pricesraeeive on their sale are affected by many faciaduding but not limited to, the number
potential buyers, the condition of the property ttumber of competing properties on the marketadher market conditions. If we are requ
to hold a property for an extended period of timelwose to operate the property, it could havegative impact on our results of operat
and/or financial condition due to direct and indireosts incurred and possible deterioration ofvéilae of the collateral resulting in impairm
losses.

There are significant risks in lending to small bugiesses.

Our loans receivable consist primarily of loansioall, privatelyowned businesses. There is no publicly availatflerination abot
these businesses; therefore, we must rely on ouwr dwe diligence to obtain information in connectigith our investment decisions. (
borrowers may not meet net income, cash flow ahdratoverage tests typically imposed by banks. &dveer’s ability to repay its loan m
be adversely impacted by numerous factors, includindownturn in its industry or other negative looa macro economic conditiot
Deterioration in a borrowes’financial condition and prospects may be accomplaoy deterioration in the collateral for the lodm addition
small businesses typically depend on the managetalemts and efforts of one person or a small gafupeople for their success. The los
services of one or more of these persons could aaverse impact on the
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operations of the small business. Small companiestypically more vulnerable to customer prefersncearket conditions and econol
downturns and often need additional capital to ma@inthe business, expand or compete. These fagtayshave an impact on the ultim
recovery of our loans receivable from such busieesisoans to small businesses, therefore, invohigladegree of business and financial
which can result in substantial losses and accglylshould be considered speculative.

We depend on the accuracy of information provided ¥ potential borrowers and guarantors.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter itrtfmsactions with potential borrowers and/or thggiarantors, we rely on cert
information furnished to us by or on behalf of pudial borrowers and/or guarantors. We also relyrepresentations of potential borrow
and/or guarantors as to the accuracy of that irdtion. Our financial condition and results of openas could be negatively impacted to
extent we rely on financial statements or othesrimiation that is inaccurate or materially misleagdin

Longer term loans and our real estate owned (“REO"are typically illiquid and their value may decrea®.

Our commercial real estate loans and real estapairac through foreclosure are typically illiquicviestments. Therefore, we will
unable to vary our portfolio promptly in responseechanging economic, financial and investment dimal. As a result, the fair market va
of these investments may decrease in the futuréassds may result.

There is typically no public market or establistetling market for the loans we originate. Accogtimthe market value for our loc
will typically be less than the estimated fair \alof our loans. The illiquid nature of our loansynaalversely affect our ability to dispose
such loans at times when it may be advantageonsamssary for us to liquidate such investments.

Changes in interest rates could negatively affecehding operations, which could result in reduced eaings and dividends.

As a result of our current dependence on varigdtiedoans, our interest income will be reducedrdulow interest rate environmer
During any period that LIBOR or the prime rate éd&ses, interest income on our loans will decline.

Changes in interest rates do not have an immealigiact on the interest income of our fixeste loans. Our interest rate risk on
fixed-rate loans is primarily due to loan prepayments eralurities. The average maturity of our loan mditf is less than its avers
contractual terms because of prepayments. Assumantset liquidity, the average life of mortgage lsamnds to increase when the cur
mortgage rates are substantially higher than ratesxisting mortgage loans and, conversely, deergdwmen the current mortgage rates
substantially lower than rates on existing mortgiagas (due to refinancings of fixed-rate loanbafer rates).

Our results of operations are impacted by the ‘@girbetween the rate at which we borrow funds and ake at which we loan the
funds. During periods of changing interest rateterest rate mismatches could negatively impactresults of operations, dividend yield,
the market price of our common shares.

At the present time, we are primarily originatingriable-rate loans and have certain debt whichrigterm and at fixed interest rat
If the yield on loans originated with funds obtaintom fixed+ate borrowings fails to cover the cost of suchd&nour cash flow will k
reduced.

Competition might prevent us from originating loansat favorable yields, which would harm our resultsof operations and our ability tc
continue paying dividends at current or anticipatedlevels.

Our results of operations are impacted by our tgtiti originate loans at favorable spreads overomst of funds. In originating loal
we compete with other SBA 7(a) lenders, speciatisnmercial lenders, banks, broker dealers, othelTREdavings and loan associatit
insurance companies and other entities that otigitemns, many of which have greater financial weses than us. As a result, we may nc
able to originate sufficient loans at favorableespls over our cost of funds, which would harm esults of operations and consequently
ability to continue paying dividends at currentaticipated levels.
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Our operating results will depend, in part, on theeffectiveness of our marketing programs.

In general, due to the highly competitive natureoof business, we must execute efficient and éffegiromotional and marketi
programs. We may, from time to time, change ourket#ng strategies, including the timing or nature ppomotional programs. TI
effectiveness of our marketing and promotion pcastiis important to our ability to locate potenbafrowers and retain existing borrower:
our marketing programs are not successful, oultsestioperations and financial condition may beedely affected.

Government Program and Regulatory Risks

We have specific risks associated with originatingpans under the SBA 7(a) Program.

We sell the guaranteed portion of our SBA 7(a) Paogloans into the secondary market. These sales flesulted in collecting ca
premiums and/or have created a stream of futurdcemy spread. There can be no assurance that Wéevable to continue originating the
loans, that a secondary market will exist or thatwill continue to realize premiums upon the sdlthe guaranteed portion of these loans.

We sell the guaranteed portion of our SBA 7(a) Paogloans and retain the credit risk on the gaaranteed portion of the loans.
share prarata with the SBA in any recoveries. In the evendefault on an SBA loan, our pursuit of remedigaiast a borrower is subject
SBA rules and in some instances SBA approval. éf #BA establishes that a loss on an SBA guararteadis attributable to significe
technical deficiencies in the manner in which thenl was originated, funded or serviced by us, B& Bay seek recovery of the principal |
related to the deficiency from us. With respedthi® guaranteed portion of SBA loans that have lsedh the SBA will first honor its guaran
and then seek compensation from us in the evenhatluss is deemed to be attributable to techmiefitiencies. There can be no assurance
we will not experience a loss due to significarfidencies with our underwriting or servicing of 8Boans.

In certain instances, including liquidation or ajexoff of an SBA guaranteed loan, we may have aivable for the SBAS guarantee
portion of legal fees, operating expenses, progexgs paid etc. related to the loan or the colihi@pon and subsequent to foreclosure). V
we believe expenses incurred were justified aneéseary for the care and preservation of the codlatnd within the established rules of
SBA, there can be no assurance that the SBA witilyarse us. In addition, reimbursement from the SBA time consuming and leng
process and the SBA may seek compensation frorlated to reimbursement of expenses which it doebelieve were necessary for the
and preservation of the loan or its collateral.

Curtailment of our ability to utilize the SBA 7(a) Program could adversely affect our financial conditon and results of operations.

We are dependent upon the Federal government tatairathe SBA 7(a) Program. There can be no assertrat the program will |
maintained or that loans will continue to be gusgad at current levels. In addition, there can beassurance that our SBA 7(a) Prog
lending subsidiary will be able to maintain itstataas a Preferred Lender or that we can maint&irsBA 7(a) license.

If we cannot continue originating and selling goweent guaranteed loans at current levels, we cexjerience a decrease in ful
servicing spreads and earned premiums. From tirtigr the SBA has reached its internal budgeteddimund ceased to guarantee loans
stated period of time. In addition, the SBA mayrae its rules regarding loans or Congress may ddgplation or fail to approve a bud
that would have the effect of discontinuing, redigcavailability of funds for, or changing loan prams. Nongovernmental programs co
replace government programs for some borrowerstheuterms might not be equally acceptable. Iféhgdsanges occur, the volume of loar
small businesses that now qualify for governmergnteed loans could decline, as could the prdfiitabf these loans.

First Western has been granted national PLP statdsoriginates, sells and services small busiressland is authorized to pl
SBA guarantees on loans without seeking prior SBAew and approval. Being a national lender, PlaRustallows First Western to expe:
loans since First Western is not required to preapplications to the SBA for concurrent review approval. The loss of PLP status cc
adversely impact our marketing efforts and ultiatean origination volume which could negativetypact our financial condition and res
of operations.
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Our profitability may be impacted by the volume of SBA 7(a) Program loan originations.

As a result of our focus on the origination of SB@) Program loans, our income and ability to cargito pay dividends at curren
anticipated levels is dependent upon the volumauofSBA 7(a) Program loan originations due to thidits to sell the government guarant
portion of these loans. In originating SBA 7(a) ¢fam loans, we compete with other SBA 7(a) lendgpecialty commercial lenders, bat
broker dealers, other REITs, savings and loan &ssmts, insurance companies and other entitiesdhginate loans, many of which h
greater financial resources than us. Any redudtiche volume of these loan originations could riegdy affect us.

Any downgrade in the U.S.5 credit rating could materially adversely affect ar business, financial condition, results of operabns anc
share price.

U.S. debt ceiling and budget deficit concerns cduwseredit rating agency downgrade to the 8.8redit rating for the first time
history. In addition, there potentially may be fitidowngrades. Any default by the U.S. on its ailans, the perceived risk of such a de!
or any downgrade of the U.S.tredit rating could have a material adverse effacthe financial markets and economic conditionthe U.S
and throughout the world which could negativelyeaffour business, financial condition, results pérations and share price.

These economic and market conditions could nedstivepact the value of the government guaranteedigro of our SBA 7(c
Program loans or the interest rates that we magHaeged on future SBIC debenture issuances. Intiaddithese economic and mai
conditions could adversely affect our business amymways, including but not limited to, adversehpacting our ability to obtain financing
our investments or increasing the cost of sucmfiirgy if it is obtained.

Liguidity and Capital Resources Risks

In general, in order for us to repay indebtednessaotimely basis, we may be required to disposasskts when we would
otherwise do so and at prices which may be bel@wn#t book value of such assets. These disposifamssets could have a material adw
effect on our financial condition and results okogtions.

If an event of default occurs under our revolving cedit facility (“Revolver”), the lender is permitted to accelerate repayment othe
outstanding obligation.

The occurrence of an event of default permits ¢éinelér under our Revolver to accelerate repaymeait amounts due and to termin
its commitment to lend thereunder. Our investmangspredominantly lontgerm; therefore, if the Revolver is accelerated,coeld be forced 1
reduce SBA 7(a) Program loan originations or taiti@qte or otherwise dispose of assets at a timevoved not ordinarily do so and/or at pri
which we may not believe are reasonable. The exdst®f an event of default can restrict us fromrdwwing under our Revolver and fr
declaring dividends or other cash distributionsuo shareholders. There can be no assurance tleaeanof default will not occur.

There are risks associated with our outstanding anéuture indebtedness.

At December 31, 2012, we had $56.2 million of debtcluding $41.0 million of secured borrowinggevernment guaranteed loans
which payments are not due unless payments areveelcen the loans underlying them). This debt meduyeginning in September 2013
through 2035. We also issued $6.0 million of SBAelgures during March 2013. We will likely incurditibnal indebtedness in the futt
Our ability to pay interest and repay the principabur indebtedness when due is dependent upoalslity to manage our business operati
generate sufficient cash flows to service the dwlot other factors described herein. There can Bssorance that we will manage these
successfully.

In addition, we may have to refinance some or Bbwr outstanding debt as it matures. There islathiat we may be not be able
refinance existing debt or refinance on terms astlas favorable as those that currently existhEumore, if prevailing interest rates are hi
at the time of refinancing, our interest expenseldiéncrease.

Turmoil in financial markets could increase our cos of borrowing and impede access to or increase thmst of financing our operation:
or investments.

We rely upon access to capital markets as a safrliquidity to satisfy our working capital needg,ow our business and inves
loans. Turmoil in the capital markets has consediequity and debt capital available for
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investment in commercial real estate. Prolonge@nececessionary conditions, concentration in thetdd service hospitality industry a
increased loan losses could further limit accesgh&tse markets and may restrict us from continuang current business strategy
implementing new business strategies.

To the extent credit and equity markets experiesigaificant disruption, many businesses will be hlaato obtain financing ¢
acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, when gguiarkets experience rapid and wide fluctuationgalue, credit availability could diminish
disappear. During periods of credit and equity readisruptions, our cost of borrowing may increasd it may be more difficult or impossi
to obtain financing on acceptable terms.

The market demand for Secondary Market Loan Sales iay decline or be temporarily suspended.

The market for the sale of the government guaranpeetion of SBA 7(a) Program loans may diminishi/an the premiums, if an
achieved on selling loans into that market maydskiced which could have a material adverse effedus ability to create availability unc
our Revolver and originate new loans. To the extieatcapital and credit markets experience vaatdind disruption, there may be a decr
in liquidity to acquire the government guaranteedtipn of loans which are typically sold into thecendary market. In addition, if mar
disruption and volatility are substantial, we mayperience an adverse effect, which may be matealur ability to access capital marl
and on our financial condition and results of ofieres. This market dislocation could be a resultleéreased investor demand for a$matke:
securities in general or loans to a particular stiduand/or increased investor yield requirements.

We use leverage to fund our capital needs which matjies the effect of changing interest rates on ougarnings.

We have borrowed funds and, as markets allow, éhterborrow additional funds for our capital neeflsvate lenders and the S
have fixed dollar claims on our assets superidh#oclaims of the holders of our common sharesetaye magnifies the effect that rising
falling interest rates have on our earnings. Argréase in the interest rate earned on investmarggdess of the interest rate on the fi
obtained from borrowings would cause our net incdlogs) and earnings (loss) per share to incredeseréase) more than they would witt
leverage, while any decrease in the interest rateeel by us on investments would cause net incéomss)(and earnings per share to de:
(increase) by a greater amount than they wouldowitfeverage. Leverage is thus generally considergukculative investment technique.

Investment Risks— General

We have concentrations of investments which may natively impact our financial condition and resultsof operations.

Substantially all of our revenue is generated fioems collateralized by hospitality properties.Ddcember 31, 2012, our loans w
94% concentrated in the hospitality industry. Aagtbrs that negatively impact the hospitality irtdyisincluding recessions, severe wea
events (such as hurricanes, blizzards, floods), elepressed commercial real estate markets, trasgictions, bankruptcies or other politica
geopolitical events, could have a material adveffeet on our financial condition and results oéogtions.

At December 31, 2012, 15% of our loans receivabdeevcollateralized by properties in Texas. No ostate had a concentratior
10% or greater of our loans receivable at Decer@be2012. A decline in economic conditions in atatesin which we have a concentratiol
investments could have a material adverse effedunifinancial condition and results of operations.

We have not loaned more than 10% of our assetsytaiagle borrower; however, we have an affiliaggdup of obligors representi
approximately 5% of our loans receivable at Decamfie 2012. Any significant decline in the finariciéatus of this group could haw
material adverse effect on our financial conditéom results of operations.

We are subject to prepayment risk on our loans redeable which could result in losses or reduced eaings and negatively affect ou
cash available for distribution to shareholders.

We experience prepayments on our loans receivAlsieuming capital availability, during decreasingenest rate environments ¢
when competition is greater, prepayments of ougdixate loans have generally been re-loaned or ¢tbathto be rdeaned at lower intere
rates than the prepaid loans receivable. For prapats on variableate loans, if the spread we charge over LIBORhergrime rate were
decrease, the lower interest rates we would recgivihese new loans receivable would have an aghedfsct on our results of operations
depending upon the rate of future prepayments, fordlyer impact our results of operations.
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Changes in our business strategy or restructuring foour business may increase our costs or otherwisafect the profitability of our
business and/or the value of our common shares.

Our future business and financial performance megedd, in part, on our ability to grow through sssfully integrating ne
investments. We may incur significant costs in ¢laluation of new investment opportunities. Sudtdlgsintegrating new investments p
pressure on our marketing and management resoamnckeae may fail to invest sufficient funds and/esaurces to make it successful. If we
not successful in the integration of new investragour results of operations could be materiallyeasely affected, our revenues cc
decrease and our profitability could decline.

As changes in our business environment occur, we megd to adjust our business strategies to mesetlchanges or we n
otherwise find it necessary to restructure our apens. We may also need to invest in new busirses® have shoterm returns that a
negative or low and whose ultimate business prdspge uncertain. Costs may increase and the retumew investments may be lower t
prior to the change in strategy or restructuring.

Costs include both direct expenses and the indamst of managemessttime which may be focused on strategic initiatiirestead ¢
oversight of our current business strategy andtdalay operations. In addition, these costs of evalgatew business initiatives have been
may continue to be significant.

Costs incurred in conjunction with the evaluatidrswategic initiatives and/or uncertain prospeotsy have a material adverse ef
on our financial condition, results of operatiordamlue of our common shares. The market priceuofsbares could be volatile as initiati
are explored.

Our Board of Trust Managers (“Board”) may change operating policies and strategies withbshareholder approval or prior notice anc
such change could harm our business and results operations and the value of our common shares.

Our Board has the authority to modify or waive awnrent operating policies and strategies withotabrpnotice and withot
shareholder approval. We cannot predict the effgt changes to our current operating policies drategjies would have on our busin
operating results and value of our common shamsetier, the effect could be adverse.

Operating Risks

We have incurred net losses and may experience futunet losses.

Our income (loss) from continuing operations antineome (loss) have been and continue to be aelyeadfected by, among otf
things, the economic environment, the costs ofuatalg strategic alternatives and the selling efgbvernment guaranteed portion of our ¢
7(a) loans as hybrids, which does not allow fooggttion of cash premiums collected as income. Vg imcur additional (1) losses relatet
our loan portfolio and (2) costs related to stratégitiatives or alternatives that could matesadind adversely affect our business, divic
distributions, results of operations, financial dbion and/or the market value of our common shares

Economic slowdowns, negative political events anchanges in the competitive environment could adverge affect future operating
results.

Several factors impact the hospitality industry.d¥lof the businesses to which we have made, ormake, loans are susceptible
economic slowdowns or recessions. Generally, dwetanomic downturns there may be reductions innessi travel and consumers take fe
vacations. In addition, the environment for tragah be significantly affected by a variety of fastincluding adverse weather condition
natural disasters, health concerns, internatigpwditical or military developments and terroristazks. If revenue for the limited service se
of the hospitality industry were to experience #igant sustained reductions, the ability of ourrdoavers to meet their obligations could
impaired and loan losses could increase. Bankregtcecessions, or other political or geopoliteatnts could continue to negatively affect
borrowers. Our noperforming assets may increase during these peridusse conditions could lead to additional lossesur portfolio and
decrease in our interest income, net income (lsd)the value of our assets.
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We believe the risks associated with our operatamesmore severe during periods of economic slowdomrecession. Declining re¢
estate values may further reduce the level of newtgage loan originations, since borrowers oftea esisting property value increase:
support investment in additional properties.

Borrowers may also be less able to meet their slelviice, property taxes, insurance and/or franatégairements (including requir
property improvement plans) if economic conditiaisnot further improve. Furthermore, declining coencial real estate values significal
increase the likelihood that we will incur losses aur loans in the event of default because theevaf our collateral may be insufficient
cover our exposure. Increased payment defaultsclfssures and/or losses could adversely affectemuits of operations, financial conditi
liquidity, business prospects and our ability takendividend distributions.

Many of our competitors have greater financial ar@hagerial resources than us and are able to greeidvices that we are not abl
provide (i.e., depository services). As a result of these comgrstisize and diversified income resources, they malpditer able to withstai
the impact of economic downturns.

There may be significant fluctuations in our quartely results which may adversely affect our share pce.

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate based onmber of factors, including, among others:
* Interest rate change

« Expenses related to REO or assets currently ifotteelosure proces

* Expenses related to exploration of strategic adtiras or initiatives

e The amount of nc-performing loans

* The volume, type and timing of loan originationsl gmepayments of our loans receival

* Recognition and amount of premium, if any, on seleoy market loan sale

e The recognition of gains or losses on investme

e The level of competition in our markets; ¢

e General economic conditions, especially those whfédct the hospitality industr

As a result of the above factors, quarterly reshtsuld not be relied upon as being indicativeefgrmance in future quarters.
Establishing loan loss reserves entails significajidgment and may materially impact our results ofoperations.

We have a quarterly review process to identify analuate potential exposure to loan losses. Therm@tation of whether significs
doubt exists and whether a loan loss reserve isssacy requires judgment and consideration of dlees fand circumstances existing at
evaluation date. Loans that require specific idieatiion review are identified based on one or mmegative characteristics including, but
limited to, non-payment or lack of timely paymefitpoincipal and/or interest, ngmayment or lack of timely payment of property taf@sar
extended period of time, insurance defaults an@tamchise defaults. The specific identification gges begins with an evaluation of
estimated fair value of the loan. In determiningineated fair value, management utilizes the pregehte of the expected cash flows discou
at the loars effective interest rate and/or an estimationrafanlying collateral values using appraisals, brgkéee opinions, tax assessed vi
and/or revenue analysis. Additionally, further opemto the facts and circumstances of the individaerowers, the limited service hospita
industry and the economy may require the establstirof additional loan loss reserves and the efieatur results of operations may
material. If our judgments underlying the estabtigimt of our loan loss reserves are not correctresults of operations may be materi
impacted.

Whenever our borrowers experience significant apegalifficulties and we are forced to liquidatestbollateral underlying the loa
losses may be substantial.

If we lower our dividend, the market value of our @mmon shares may decline.

The level of our dividend is established by our Boftom time to time based on a variety of factangjuding, but not limited ti
actual and projected cash flows available for dimd distributions, expectations for future earnjnBEIT taxable income (loss) &
maintenance of REIT status, the economic enviromjrempetition, our ability to obtain leverage, doan portfolio performance and «
ability to maintain a stable dividend consideritg foregoing factors. Various factors could cause Board to decrease our dividend le
including continued credit market dislocationsyrterof our Revolver, borrower defaults resultingaimaterial reduction in our cash flows
material losses resulting from loan liquidatiorisvé lower our dividend, the market value of oumzoon shares could be adversely affected.
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Our stock price could become volatile and the marktevalue of our common shares may decline.

Many of the risks stated herein could affect owarsiprice. In addition, the timing of any publicnanncements such as managel
changes or initiation of strategic initiatives abudffect our share price. Our shares are subjespézulation in the press and the an
community. A significant drop in our share priceultbalso expose us to the risk of securities chton lawsuits, which could result
substantial costs and divert management’s atteatioiresources, which could adversely affect osimmss.

We have risk and substantial expenses associatedtwholding and/or operating our REO.

Our REO is subject to a variety of risks includibgt not limited to:

* We are dependent upon thjpdrty managers to operate and manage our REO. &5, PMC Commercial or its subsidiar
cannot directly operate hospitality properti

* Our REO is generally operated at a loss and sigsefomay be substanti

» Our insurance coverage may not be sufficient tty fulsure our businesses and assets from claim&maifidbilities, including
environmental liabilities

«  We may be required to make significant capital iowements to maintain our RE

e In conjunction with the operations of our REO, we aubject to numerous Federal and state laws amérigment regulatiol
including environmental, occupational health arfétya state and local taxes and laws relating teess for disabled persons; ¢

* Under various laws and regulations, we may be dened liable for the costs of remediating or remgvihazardous substan
found on our property, regardless of whether weewesponsible for its presen

The ultimate costs may be material to our financtaddition or results of operations.
We could be subject to compliance with environmentdaws and regulations.

In general, we are not subject to environmentaklawd regulations; however, our borrowers are stibhjethese laws. In conjuncti
with REO, we could be held responsible for envirental liabilities which we did not create. Thesabllities, if incurred, could materia
adversely affect our business, cash flow and ligyid

We depend on our key personnel, and the loss of any our key personnel could adversely affect our @rations.

We depend on the diligence, experience and skilusfkey personnel (two executive officers) whovidle management services
the selection, acquisition, structuring, monitorangl sale of our portfolio assets and the borros/inged to acquire these assets. In additio
loss of either of our executive officers would caas event of default on our Revolver. The lossithfer of our executive officers could he
our business, financial condition, cash flow arglhes of operations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and dusequent changes could adversely affect our finaradi condition or results of
operations.

As a company whose common shares are publiclydrade are subject to the rules and regulation$@fSEC. In addition, many
our operations are regulated by the SBA. Changdswa that govern our entities may significantljeaf our business. Laws and regulat
may be changed from time to time, and the integpiats of the relevant laws and regulations are silbject to change. Any change in the
or regulations governing our business could hamagerial impact on our financial condition or réswf operations.

At any time, U.S. Federal income tax laws goverriRi Ts or the administrative interpretations ofsadaws may be amended. An
those new laws or interpretations thereof may tfkect retroactively and could adversely affect fimancial condition or results of operatic
Ordinary REIT dividends are currently generally jeabto higher tax rates applicable to ordinaryoime (a maximum rate of 35%) compare
standard londgerm capital gains tax of 15% to 20% effective 012 and 15% to 20% (high income taxpayers) on divits. This legislatic
may cause shares in n®EIT corporations to be a more attractive investntenndividual investors than shares in REITs amaly adverse
affect the market price of our common shares.

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“ADATequires all public accommodations and commeraailifies to meet feder
requirements related to access and use by dispbladns. Compliance with the ADA requirements caoatflire removal of access barriers
additional capital improvements to properties. didiion, new requirements are being added. A detetion that our properties owned or
properties we finance are not in compliance with ADA could result in imposition of fine by the U.SGovernment to us or our borrower:
an award of damages to private litigants.
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Legal proceedings in which we are, or may be, a parmay adversely affect us.

We are currently and may in the future become sulifelegal proceedings and commercial or contedatiisputes. These typica
arise in the ordinary course of businedse(, collection of loans receivable). There exists tlosgibility that these proceedings and/or 1
resolution may have an adverse impact on our esfilbperations.

Changes in accounting standards may adversely impgaour financial condition and/or results of operatons.

As a company whose common shares are publiclydragde are subject to the rules and regulationsi®fd.S. Financial Accountil
Standards Board (“FASB”) related to generally atedpaccounting principles (“GAAP"arious changes to GAAP are constantly b
considered, some of which could materially impagt @ported financial condition and/or results pémations. In addition, the SEC is curre
considering whether publicly traded companies & thS. should be required to prepare financiakstants in accordance with Internatic
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSifstead of the current GAAP in the U.S. IFRS isanprehensive set of accounting stand
promulgated by the International Accounting Stadda@Board which are currently in effect for mostesticountries in the world. A change
any accounting standard could materially impactreported financial condition and/or results of i@tiens.

REIT Related Risks

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject PMC Comnercial to U.S. Federal income tax.

If a company meets certain income and asset dfieatson and income distribution requirements untter Code, it can qualify as
REIT and, to the extent the dividends paid dedundsautilized, corporate level Federal income taoas be reduced or eliminated. We woul
subject to corporate level Federal income tax ifwere unable to comply with these requirementduifing any available remedies. PI
Commercial is also subject to a ndeductible 4% excise tax (and, in certain caseqorate level income tax) if we fail to make cen
distributions. Failure to qualify as a REIT wouldbgect us to Federal income tax as if we were dinary corporation, resulting in a substar
reduction in both our net assets and the amouinicofne available for distribution to our sharehotde

We believe that we have operated in a manner tlatsaus to qualify as a REIT under the Code ardrid to continue to so oper:
Although we believe that we are organized and dpesa a REIT, no assurance can be given that wecavitinue to remain qualified a:
REIT. Qualification as a REIT involves the applioatof technical and complex provisions of the Céalewhich there are limited judicial
administrative interpretations and involves theedmination of various factual matters and circumsés not entirely within our control.
addition, no assurance can be given that new &8l regulations, administrative interpretatiarscourt decisions will not significan
change the tax laws with respect to qualificatie@darEIT or the Federal income tax consequencssabf qualification.

In addition, compliance with the REIT qualificaticests could restrict our ability to take advantagfeattractive investme
opportunities in non-qualifying assets, which wontbatively affect the cash available for distribntto our shareholders.

If PMC Commercial fails to qualify as a REIT, we ynamong other things:

* Not be allowed a deduction for distributions to shareholders in computing our taxable inco

« Be subject to U.S. Federal income tax, including applicable alternative minimum tax, on our taxaiicome at regular corpor
rates;

* Be subject to increased state and local taxes;

* Unless entitled to relief under certain statutomyvisions, be disqualified from treatment as a RféliTthe taxable year in which
lost our qualification and the four taxable yeaoiving the year during which we lost our qualiion.

As a result of these factors, failure to qualify @aREIT could also impair our ability to expand dawsiness and raise capi
substantially reduce the funds available for distiion to our shareholders and may reduce the mprle& of our common shares.
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Ownership limitations associated with our REIT statis may restrict change of control or business comibation opportunities.

In order for PMC Commercial to qualify as a REIT, more than 50% in value of our outstanding comrsioares may be own
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individuslduring the last half of any calendar year. “lndiisals” include natural persons, priv
foundations, some employee benefit plans and traetssome charitable trusts.

To preserve PMC CommercialREIT status, our declaration of trust generalghibits any shareholder from directly or indirg
owning more than 9.8% of any class or series ofooistanding common shares or preferred sharesutipecific waiver from our Board. T
ownership limitation could have the effect of digraging a takeover or other transaction in whichlés of our common shares might rec
a premium for their shares over the then prevaitiragket price or which holders might believe toolieerwise in their best interests.

Failure to make required distributions to our sharenolders would subject us to tax.

In order to qualify as a REIT, an entity generafiyst distribute to its shareholders, each taxablr,yat least 90% of its taxa
income, other than any net capital gain and exolydhe nondistributed taxable income of taxable REIT subsidi& As a result, o
shareholders receive periodic distributions from $isch distributions are taxable as ordinary incaméne extent that they are made ot
current or accumulated earnings and profits. Toetttent that a REIT satisfies the 90% distributiequirement, but distributes less than 1!
of its taxable income, it will be subject to Federarporate income tax on its undistributed inconmeaddition, the REIT will incur a 4
nondeductible excise tax on the amount, if anywhich its distributions in any calendar year asslthan the sum of:

» 85% of its ordinary income for that ye:

* 95% of its capital gain net income for that yead

* 100% of its undistributed taxable income from psiears.

We have paid out, and intend to continue to pay @ut REIT taxable income to shareholders in a raaimtended to satisfy the 9(
distribution requirement and to avoid Federal coapmincome tax.

Our taxable income (loss) may substantially exaa@dnet income (loss) as determined based on GAgdauUse, for example, cap
losses will be deducted in determining GAAP incoima, may not be deductible in computing taxableme. In addition, we may invest
assets that generate taxable income in excessoobeic income or in advance of the correspondirgh dlow from the assets, referred tc
excess non-cash income. Although some types ofcash-income are excluded in determining the 90%iloligion requirement, we will inc
Federal corporate income tax and the 4% excisavidixrespect to any noaash income items if we do not distribute thosmgen an annu
basis. As a result of the foregoing, we may gerdess cash flow than taxable income in a particggar. In that event, we may be require
incur debt, liquidate nonash assets at rates or times that we regard asarable or, if available, use cash reserves ierotd satisfy th
distribution requirement and to avoid federal cogt® income tax and the 4% excise tax in that year.

Our ownership of and relationship with our taxable REIT subsidiaries will be limited, and a failure to comply with the limits would
jeopardize our REIT status and may result in the aplication of a 100% excise tax.

Subject to certain restrictions, a REIT may owntad00% of the stock of one or more taxable REIbssliaries. A taxable RE
subsidiary may earn income that would not be qualif income if earned directly by the parent REBDth the subsidiary and the REIT r
jointly elect to treat the subsidiary as a taxdREIT subsidiary. A corporation of which a taxablEIR subsidiary directly or indirectly ow
more than 35% of the voting power or value of tteels will automatically be treated as a taxable RElbsidiary. Overall, no more than 2
of the value of a REIB assets may consist of stock or securities ofoomaore taxable REIT subsidiaries. A taxable REIbDsidiary general
will pay income tax at regular corporate rates oy taxable income that it earns. In addition, taeable REIT subsidiary rules limit t
deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a talgaREIT subsidiary to its parent REIT to assuia the taxable REIT subsidiary is subjec
an appropriate level of corporate taxation. Theswlso impose a 100% excise tax on certain triopadetween a taxable REIT subsid
and its parent REIT that are not conducted on arisalength basis.

Our taxable REIT subsidiaries are subject to nortogborate income taxes. We continuously moniterwhlue of our investments
taxable REIT subsidiaries for the purpose of emgudompliance with the rule that no more than 25%e value of our assets may consis
taxable REIT subsidiary stock and securities (whchpplied at the end of each calendar quartdr®®. dggregate value of our taxable R
subsidiary stock and securities is less than 25%ef/alue of our total assets (including our tédXEIT subsidiary stock and securities) &
December
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31, 2012. In addition, we will scrutinize all of ptransactions with our taxable REIT subsidiariesthe purpose of ensuring that they
entered into on arm’ength terms in order to avoid incurring the 100%ise tax described above. There are no distributgmuiremen
applicable to the taxable REIT subsidiaries andra#tx earnings may be retained. There can be noasserhowever, that we will be able
comply with the 25% limitation on ownership of tik@ REIT subsidiary stock and securities on an onggbasis so as to maintain REIT sti
or to avoid application of the 100% excise tax isguon certain non-arm’s-length transactions.
Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
Item 2. PROPERTIES

We lease office space for our corporate headquairddallas, Texas under an operating lease whiplres in February 2015.
Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the normal course of business we are periogigaity to certain legal actions and proceedingsliring matters that are gener:
incidental to our business.€., collection of loans receivable). In managem&mpinion, the resolution of these legal actiond proceeding
will not have a material adverse effect on our otidated financial statements.
Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth the name, age arxitipm of our executive officers as of December &112:

Name Age Title
Jan F. Sali 62 President, Chief Executive Officer, Secretary anega$ure!
Barry N. Berlin 52 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Jan F. Salit has been Chief Executive Officer, 8&acy and Treasurer since October 2012. Mr. Salg ®hief Operating Officer a
Treasurer from October 2008 to October 2012, Exesufice President from June 1993 to October 2@t Chief Investment Officer a
Assistant Secretary from January 1994 to Octob&22Mr. Salit was also Executive Vice PresidenPMC Capital, Inc. from May 1993
February 2004 and Chief Investment Officer and #tasit Secretary of PMC Capital, Inc. from March498 February 2004. Mr. Salit has ¢
been a member of the Board since October 2012.

Barry N. Berlin has been Executive Vice Presidémtes October 2008 and Chief Financial Officer siduae 1993. Mr. Berlin was a
Chief Financial Officer of PMC Capital, Inc. fromoMember 1992 to February 2004. From August 1986deember 1992, Mr. Berlin was
audit manager with Imber and Company, Certifiedlieukccountants. Mr. Berlin is a certified public@untant.
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common shares are traded on the NYSE MKT utidesymbol “PCC.The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, th
high and low sales prices as reported on the NY$H Npreviously NYSE Amex) and the regular dividenms share declared by us for €
such period.

Regular
Dividends Pe
Quarter Ende High Low Share
December 31, 2012 $ 7.7¢ $ 6.0¢ $0.12
September 30, 201 $ 8.2¢ $ 7.3¢ $0.16
June 30, 201 $ 8.7¢ $ 7.5C $0.16
March 31, 201: $ 9.0C $ 6.9¢ $0.16
December 31, 201 $ 8.0C $ 6.84 $0.16
September 30, 201 $ 8.5€ $ 7.5C $0.16
June 30, 201 $ 8.97 $ 8.1¢ $0.16
March 31, 201: $ 9.4t $ 8.2¢ $0.16

On March 5, 2013, there were approximately 700 éslabf record of our common shares, excluding $tolclers whose shares w
held by brokerage firms, depositories and othetitit®onal firms in “street namefor their customers. The last reported sales poiceur
common shares on March 5, 2013 was $7.03.

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemtden and as declared by our Board. In determinivgdehd policy, our Boat
considers many factors including, but not limitegddctual and projected cash flows available fordéind distribution, expectations for fut
earnings, REIT taxable income (loss) and maintemaidREIT status, the economic environment, cortipati our ability to obtain leverag
our loan portfolio performance and our ability taintain a stable dividend considering the foregdaxgors. In order to maintain REIT sta
PMC Commercial is required to pay out 90% of REdXable income. Consequently, the dividend rate quaaterly basis will not necessa
correlate directly to any single factor such as Rt&kable income (loss) or earnings expectations.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Board deiaad that the quarterly cash dividend needed teetiaced in order to better align
dividend with core operations. As a result, thertprly dividend was reduced from $0.16 per shar8d2 per share for the fourth quarte
2012. The Board increased the quarterly dividenthf$0.12 per share to $0.125 per share for thedfirarter 2013 dividend to be paid in A
2013. It is anticipated that this increased qubridividend has been established in an amountdlatreasonably be expected to be maint:
over the next year although no assurance can e govthat effect. To the extent necessary, thedadl adjust the dividend on a quarte
basis thereafter.

During 2012, due primarily to deductible expenselmted to exploration of strategic alternatives, lwaal a taxable loss. Thus,
dividends were deemed to be non-taxable returcauital.

We have a covenant within our Revolver that maytloar ability to pay out returns of capital as fpaf our dividends. This restricti
has not historically limited the amount of dividenge have paid and management does not believé thitltrestrict future dividend paymen
See “Selected Financial Data” in Item 6, “ManagetiseDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditemmd Results of OperationsLiquidity
and Capital Resources” in Iltem 7 and “FinanciateSteents and Supplementary Daita'ltem 8 for additional information concerning wignds

We have not had any sales of unregistered seaudtigng the last three years.

See Iltem 12 in this Form 10-K for information redjag our equity compensation plans.
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Performance Graph

The following information in Item 5 is not deemexlte “soliciting material” or to be “filedivith the SEC or subject to Regulation 1
or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 19%k¢hange Act”)or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchangjet, and will not b
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgfiinder the Securities Act of 1933 or the ExcleaAgt, except to the extent the Comp
specifically incorporates it by reference into sacfiling.

The line graph below compares the percentage chiantfe cumulative total shareholder return on common shares of benefic
interest with the cumulative total return of thesRell 2000 and our Peer Group which consists giudllicly traded investment companies
have the primary focus of mortgabacked security REITs and specialty finance REidted on the NYSE, NYSE MKT and the NASDAQ
which coverage is provided by SNL Financial LC fioe period from December 31, 2007 through Decer8beP012 assuming an investrr
of $100 on December 31, 2007 and the reinvestnfedivimends. The share price performance showrhergtaph is not necessarily indica

of future price performance.

Total Return Performance
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PMC Commercial Trust Peer Gro 100.0( 65.7( 83.0( 103.0: 100.5¢ 120.81
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22



Table of Contents

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following is a summary of our Selected FinahBiata as of and for the five years in the periodedd December 31, 2012. ~
following data should be read in conjunction withr @onsolidated financial statements and the ntiteeeto and “Item 7. Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition d&ekults of Operations” appearing elsewhere inFlisn 10K. The selected financial d:
presented below has been derived from our congetidanancial statements.

Years Ended December &

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except per share informat
Total revenues (1 § 17,065 § 16,076 $ 15,463 $ 16,267 § 23,117
Total expenses (& $ 17,856 § 11,270 ¢§ 10,752 ¢§ 10,377 § 13,776
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (1,356 $ 4,692 $ 4,842 $ 6,057 $ 9,022
Discontinued operations (. ¢ (823 $ (1,045 ¢ (545) ¢ 704 ¢ 784
Net income (loss) (4 $ (2179 $ 3,647 $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ 9,806
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 10,585 10,570 10,554 10,573 10,767

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common sl

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.13 $ 0.44 $ 0.46 $ 0.57 ¢ 0.84
Net income (loss 8 (0.21; 3 0.34 3 0.41 3 0.64 8 0.91
Dividends declared, comm ¢ 6,35 $ 6,767 $ 6,757 $ 7,445 ¢ 10,908
Dividends per common sha 8 0.60 3 0.64 3 0.64 ¢ 0.705 ¢ 1.015
Net asset value per common sh $ 1315 $ 1397 $ 14.26 $ 14.45 $ 1443
Return on total assets ( 0.73% 2.96% 3.41% 4.15% 6.15%
Return on equity (€ -1.53% 2.46% 2.85% 4.43% 6.33%
At December 31
2012 2011 2010 (7) 2009 2008
(In thousands
Loans receivable, net (. $ 238,99 $ 234,42 $ 233,21 $ 196,64: $ 179,80
Retained interests in transferred as $ 77: ¢ 99¢ ¢ 1,01C ¢ 12,527 $ 33,24¢
Total asset $ 247,70 $ 251,24 $ 252,12 $ 228,24: $ 227,52
Debt $ 97,16¢ ¢ 95,86: ¢ 92,96¢ $ 68,50¢ $ 61,81
Total beneficiarie’ equity § 138,32 ¢ 146,83( $ 149,66( ¢ 151,55¢ $ 153,46.

(1) The decrease in total revenues and income fromiragng operations from 2008 to 2010 is primarilyedto declines in LIBOR.
December 31, 2012, 53% of our loans were basedIBOR. In addition, due to a change in accountingesueffective January
2010, our total revenues will fluctuate significlgribased on Secondary Market Loan Sales and redgodemium income

(2) During 2012, includes $3.9 million related to theakiation of strategic alternatives and $2.1 mifliof severance and related bent
expense

(3) We foreclosed on the underlying collateral of thiemspitality properties during 2010 which generat&gnificant operating ar
impairment losses during 2010, 2011 and 2(

(4) The decrease in net income (loss) from 2011 to 20&Re primarily to costs associated with the agtibn of strategic alternatives
$3.9 million and severance and related benefiteagp of $2.1 million during 201

(5) Earnings (loss) before interest expense and indamxes as a percentage of average total as

(6) Earnings (loss) as a percentage of average totakkeiaries equity

(7) Effective January 1, 2010, due to a change in aoting rules, the assets and liabilities of the-balance sheet securitizations w
consolidated. In addition, effective January 1, @0due to a change in accounting rules, proceedsived from legally sold portio
of loans pursuant to Secondary Market Loan Salessé sold for excess spread or those sold for a ¢88h premium and exc
spread) are permanently treated as secured borrgsvior the life of the loar

(8) Our loans receivable increased during 2010 primadle to the consolidation of several previousftbalance sheet securitizatior

23



Table of Contents

Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiamctvith our Consolidated Financial Statements &nel related notes that appe
elsewhere in this document. For a more detailecmigson of the risks affecting our financial cotidn and results of operations, seRisk
Factor<” in Item 1A of this Form 10-K.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Business Overview

We are a commercial finance company that specglizelending to the limited service hospitality irstry. In general, both t
commercial finance and hospitality industries eigrared turbulence during the last several years.bdlieve the economic environmen
complicated and risky and will continue to presamllenges to us and our industry in the near éutur

We are primarily a commercial mortgage lender trainates loans to small businesses that are ipafig collateralized by first lier
on the real estate of the related business. Outanding loans are predominantly (94% at DecembeR@312) to borrowers in the hospita
industry.

We are organized as a REIT. Our loan underwritmgansistent and, among other things, typicallyuireg (1) significant equi
investments by the borrower in the property, (2speal guarantees from the principals of the boemw3) operating experience by
borrower and (4) evidence of adequate repaymetityabVe do not originate any “higher-riskdans such as option ARM products, junior
mortgages, high loan-tealue ratio mortgages, interest only loans, subpiimans or loans with initial teaser rates. We disaot originate ar
residential loans.

Our business of originating loans is affected byegal commercial real estate fundamentals andwbeath economic environment. \
have designed our strategy to be flexible so treatan adjust our loan origination activities inieipation of, and in reaction to, changes in
commercial real estate capital and property marketsthe overall economy as well as changes tspheific characteristics of the underly
real estate assets that serve as collateral fan#jerity of our investments.

We are focusing our origination efforts on SBA 7RPapgram loans which require less capital due ¢oathility to sell the governme
guaranteed portion of such loans. We utilize thé SBa) Program to originate small business loansarily secured by real estate, and 1
sell the government guaranteed portion to investie underwriting criteria of the SBA 7(a) Prograne less stringent than our nBBA 7(a
Program loan originations; thus, we are able tgioate loans that we would not otherwise be ableriginate as a result of the SBA guarantee

We believe that our commercial lending business $tasng longterm fundamentals. However, due to prolonged réaoess
economic conditions, we have experienced, and roagirzie to experience, the following:

. Loan origination limitations due to the lack of dahility of longel-term liquidity;

. Reduced operating margins due to lack of econoofissale;

. Limited access to capital, and if such capitaMailable, at increased cos

. An increase in loan default

. An increase in modifications to loan terms and Iited debt restructuring

. An increase in the holding periods related to RE® & corresponding increase in expenses relatdtese asset

. An increase in loan loss reserves and asset impatsnanc

. Reduced cash available for distribution to shamisl, particularly as our portfolio yield was redddyy lower variable intere

rates, scheduled maturities, prepayments an-performing loans

We seek to position ourselves to be able to takarstdge of opportunities once market conditionsnitesind to maximize sharehol
value over time. To do this, we will continue tefis on:

. Enhancing cash flows from our investment portfc

. Originating quality assets and earning interestfaed;

. Paying dividends to our shareholde
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. Increasing our volume of SBA 7(a) Program loaniodgons;
. Repositioning and marketing of r-performing asset:

. Exploring alternative financing sources; ¢

. Developing an expanded business p

We believe that these are the appropriate stepsgition us for long-term growth.
Business Strategy

The Board of Trust Managers (“BoardWjth the assistance of executive management, lkas ta proactive approach to develoj
our strategic growth initiatives that are being lempented to take advantage of our core competermapitalize on opportunities to drive long-
term growth and maximize value for our shareholders

We remain committed to enhancing our core operatlpncontinuing to focus on maintaining and increg®ur SBA 7(a) Progra
loan origination volume, placing a revised emphasiour SBIC loan origination volume and increasing loan originations outside of «
SBA and SBIC programs. In 2011, the SBA 7(a) Pnogveas modified to increase the maximum loan guarafrom 75% of up to $2.0 millic
to 75% of up to $5.0 million. Due to our limited amnt of available capital, we refrained from takedyantage of this program enhancen
During the fourth quarter of 2012, we commencedhérative to increase our originations of large8/&S7(a) Program loans. We increased
marketing efforts to identify more loan originatiopportunities for SBA eligible loans with a pripai amount greater than $2.0 million. Du
the recent commencement of this initiative anddéased competition, our marketing efforts to dateeh@sulted in limited success an
December 31, 2012, we had two outstanding commitnfam SBA 7(a) Program loans with a principal amioin excess of $2.0 millio
Despite increased efforts, in many instances siitter the opportunities did not meet our undemgitstandards, the borrower did not n
SBA 7(a) Program eligibility requirements or therowas able to be financed through more tradititerading sources, we have not yet k
able to increase our larger balance SBA 7(a) Prodcan originations as significantly as we hopedwdver, we remain optimistic that «
marketing efforts will result in additional largealance SBA 7(a) Program loan origination oppottesi

Our portfolio continues to be predominantly comgdiof variablerate loans, which when combined with the histoljcklw level of
interest rates, has continued to negatively impactresults of operations. We should experienceeased revenues if interest rates rise. V
we believe that our current business plan has baeoessful and stable, it is our intention to erklmar strategic growth initiatives to bu
shareholder value. In addition to executing orgagiowth opportunities through our SBA and SBIC legdplatforms, we have also be
exploring the potential for other opportunities gpowth including obtaining alternative sourcesapital, joint venture opportunities with th
parties as well as complementary lines of busiimedading leveraged property acquisitions, an agenwmon-agency mortgadecked securi
(“MBS") purchase program and other nemding real estate related investments that wie\aelcould be accretive to value and provi
stronger growth platform. Costs associated witHagpion of these opportunities will be incurredazould be material.

Based on our initial evaluation of our ability tewetlop either an agency or nagency MBS purchase program, we determined t
this time, an MBS strategy would not be scalabld aould have limited anticipated returns on investindue to our size. In addition,
evaluated strategies that involve acquiring prager{both hospitality and ndmespitality) through the utilization of leveragee\(erage
property acquisitions). Based on current marketltams, including market acceptance of true “hgbfREITs, while the metrics of the as:
that may be available for acquisition could provjmsitive results, the time it would take to acleievitical mass combined with the risk
ownership and the potential for share price erosioa to lack of comparable REITs that have utilizetlybrid REIT structure, make t
strategy too risky at this time. However, becomanigybrid REIT may have a greater market acceptamttes future.

General Economic Environment
Commercial Real Estate and Lodging Industry

The recession subjected our borrowers to finansiedss. Due to the prolonged economic downturn twed current econorr
environment, we believe that in general, our boa@iequity in their properties has eroded and may efodber which could result in
increase in foreclosure activity and credit los3é® lagging impact of the adverse economic coowfitimay continue to have an adverse ¢
on the financial condition of the
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individual borrowers and the limited service hoality industry which may require the establishmehadditional loan loss reserves and
effect on our results of operations and financtaidition may be material. We continue to experieissaes related to our borrowers incluc
payment delinquencies, slow pays, insufficient &ipdyments, nopayment or lack of timely payment of real estateesaand franchise fe
requests for payment deferrals and interest onlyoge, lack of cash flow, shortage of funds fornthise required improvements
maintenance issues jeopardizing continuation ohdinéses, terminating franchises, conversion toele$sanchises or independent ste
deterioration of the physical property (our coltaty and declining property values. Typically, des on real estate secured loans are t
significant as non-real estate secured loans dtleetborrowersequity in their properties, the value of the ungied collateral, the cash flo
from operations of the businesses and other factach as having recourse to the guarantors.

As part of our efforts to assist those borrowers ware experiencing negative cash flows, we tempyrar permanently modified tt
terms of certain loans receivable or have allowesiliced payments. In some instances, we are natbjetto determine if these concess
were, or will be, sufficient to improve those bamers’ cash flows such that future modifications will et necessary. Additional modificatic
continue to occur to assist some of these borrowarsther instances, borrowers have defaultedhair tmodified terms. We also he
temporarily or permanently modified the terms ofta@ loans receivable or have allowed reduced magsmto borrowers who have j
recently begun experiencing negative cash flows. B8keve that economic conditions have improved|uiding those associated with
hospitality industry. However, there can be noaiaty that these improved economic conditions téhefit borrowers whose cash flow is
currently sufficient to cover their debt service that they are able to continue to make paymentcaordance with their loan docume
without capital investment.

During the recession, there was an increase ingaget defaults and foreclosures in the broader coniaheeal estate market and th
defaults may continue. The increase was due intpantedit market turmoil and declining propertgledlows and property values. In additi
when foreclosures on commercial real estate prigseiricrease, the property values typically decémen further as supply exceeds dem
We have experienced an increase in litigation edlab our borrowers (including those who have fifed bankruptcy reorganization) &
foreclosure activity. In conjunction with this imease in foreclosure activity, we have experienesed, will likely continue to experience,
increase in expenses, including general and adiratiise, provision for loan losses and impairmerssks. Further, our ability to sell our |
estate owned (“REO”and the prices we receive on sale are affected d&yynfactors, including but not limited to, the nweniof potentie
buyers, the condition of the property, the humblecampeting properties on the market, the lengthirngé on the market and other ma
conditions. As a result of the challenging econorgvaditions, our holding periods for our REO hawmeréased. The lagging impact of
adverse economic conditions may continue to hawedaerrse effect on our REO and the limited serkimepitality industry which may result
additional impairment losses and the effect onreaults of operations and financial condition mayntaterial. Currently, we are in the proc
of foreclosing on the collateral underlying thramited service hospitality properties.

Our provision for loan losses (excluding reductiansl recoveries of loan losses) as a percentagerofeighted average outstanc
Loans Receivable Subject To Credit Risk (our lo@teivable excluding SBA 7(a) loans receivable jetttto secured borrowings since
SBA has guaranteed payment of the principal) irsgdao 1.25% during 2012 from 0.40% during 20112012, our provision for loi
losses increased to $1,934,000 from $460,000 irl.20the predominant reason for the increase in prowifor loan losses during 2012 \
foreclosures of the underlying collateral of loahsing 2012 and loans currently in the procesooddlosure. Realized losses of $333,00(
$257,000 during 2012 and 2011, respectively, wecegnized upon liquidation of the collateral undied loans. Based on loans currentl
the process of foreclosure, we anticipate thaizedllosses during 2013 will be greater than lossakzed during 2012. However, there ca
no assurance that the foreclosure processes wilbbleted as expected (or be completed at athatrthe estimated liquidation value of
assets underlying these loans will not decline.

Liquidity
Our unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Rewet”) matures on June 30, 2014. The interest rate isepléiss 50 basis points or

30-day LIBOR plus 2%, at our option. The amount a\x@daunder the Revolver automatically increased f&86 million to $40 million o
January 1, 2013.
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We currently are targeting 2013 loan originatiounee of between $55 million and $65 million of whi§40 million to $50 millio
would be SBA 7(a) Program loans.

Lodging Industry Trends

Based on a forecast provided by leading lodgingustiy analyst PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“Pw@3,well as various otr
industry analysts, we anticipate that the overatidamentals of the lodging industry will remairosty in 2013. Demand has exceeded st
growth resulting in industry pricing power and aseault, average daily rate (“ADRT¥ expected to increase in all sectors of the g
industry during 2013. PwC expects growth in occupaand ADR to result in a 5.9% increase in revepee available room (“RevParih
2013.

For our borrowers, the stronger market (if achi@wamlld improve revenues that will benefit castwfland the ability to cover the
debt service. In addition, as the market rebouwesywould expect that values of hospitality propertivill increase and become more stable
that there will be an increase in qualified buyfersour foreclosed properties.

However, there is concern that any positive treswldd reverse quickly. With a pace of economic vecy that remains subdued, i
political and economic uncertainties looming, ipassible that the United States could fall ba¢t another recession.

Strategic Alternatives and Severance

During 2011, we received certain inquiries expmegs preliminary interest in potential strategemgactions. The Board establishi
special committee of all independent trust manateevaluate these inquiries as well as other piatestrategic alternatives that could enh
shareholder value. The special committee hiredanial advisor to assist it in the evaluation.@cumulative basis, we expensed $4,64¢
related to the evaluation of strategic alternatives

The special committee and its advisors evaluatedritiications of interest received and conductedoaess that resulted in exten:
discussions and due diligence with one interestatypThe special committee ultimately determinkdt tit was in the best interests of
shareholders to terminate such discussions.

The special committee and the Board determinedoimection with the strategic alternatives evatmprocess, that it was in the t
interests of our shareholders to continue to opeaatan independent entity and focus aggressivetieveloping an expanded business pli
improve operating performance and lalegm growth potential. Upon the recommendationhef $pecial committee, the Board suspende
formal strategic alternative process in the fougptlarter of 2012 and the special committee was diddh

In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2012, wexorded a oné@me severance charge of $2.1 million relating tsegparatio
agreement with our previous Chief Executive Offideance Rosemore. Jan Salit, previously our Chigérating Officer and Chief Investm
Officer, was promoted to Chief Executive Officer.

Secondary Market Loan Sales
General

During 2012, we sold $27.0 million of the guaradte®rtion of SBA 7(a) Program loans. Beginning g, 2010, loans were s
for (1) cash premiums and 100 basis points (1% (tinimum spread required to be retained pursui@BBA regulations) as the servic
spread on the sold portion of the loan, (2) futseevicing spreads averaging 188 basis points (@ofuthe 100 basis points required tc
retained) and cash premiums of 10%e(, “hybrid loan sales or hybrid"r (3) future servicing spreads averaging 438 bagists (includin
the 100 basis points required to be retained) anchsh premiums.

Effective January 1, 2010, due to a change in atguy rules, we are required to permanently treatain of the proceeds recei
from legally sold portions of loans (those loanklswlely for future servicing spread and hybridrcsales) as secured borrowings (debt) fc
life of the loan and 100% of the loan is includadur loans receivable. We can no longer recorchppne income on these types of sales
these loan sales, we receive a spread betweentérest rate due to us from our borrowers andatepayable to the purchasers of the
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guaranteed portions of the loans. Cash premiurnisatetl on hybrid loan sales are deferred and teflieas a liability on our consolida
balance sheet and amortized as a reduction tesitekpense over the life of the loan. Deferreth ggemiums at December 31, 2012 were
million.

For tax purposes, since all Secondary Market LadasSare legal sales, we are required to recortsdmsed on present value cash
techniques consistent with the book accountingrireat utilized until January 1, 2010. For tax pwgm we had gains of $994,000 during :
related to hybrid loan sales but did not recogmizg gain for book purposes. For book purposescaéisé premium is amortized as a reduc
of interest expense over the life of the loan ushrgginterest method or fully amortized upon paysfthe loan. We record income as we rec
the excess spread as we service the sold portidheofoan. When we sell loans and retain servigpgads greater than 100 basis pc
management believes that the value of the futurécsieg spreads retained was greater than the foregash premiums.

Our Secondary Market Loan Sales were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 20

Principal Premium Gain Upon Sal
Type of Sal Sold Receivec Book Tax
Cash premiun ¢ 18,473,000 $ 2,470,000 ¢ 1,889,000 § 2,152,000
Hybrid 8,498,000 850,000 994,000

§ 26,971,000 ¢§ 3,320,000 ¢ 1,889,000 § 3,146,000

Year Ended December 31, 20

Principal Premium Gain Upon Sal
Type of Sal Sold Receivec Book Tax
Cash premiun $ 15,774,000 $ 1,728,000 ¢ 1,450,000 ¢ 1,654,000
Hybrid 11,638,000 1,164,000 1,399,000

§ 27,412,000 § 2,892,000 § 1,450,000 § 3,053,000

Based on the current level of cash premiums omgtivernment guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) Progi@eng, we expect the majority
our 2013 Secondary Market Loan Sales to be fosh peemium and the SBA required 1% servicing spread
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The following is a cash flow analysis of the diface between selling a loan for cash premium vessligig a loan for future exce
spread versus selling a loan for a cash premiunfignde excess spread:

Servicing
Cash
Premium Spreac Hybrid

Loan amount ¢ 1,000,000 ¢ 1,000,000 ¢ 1,000,000
Guaranteed portion of total loi 75.00% 75.00% 75.00%
Guaranteed loan amou ¢ 750,000 ¢§ 750,000 ¢ 750,000
Rate paid by borrowe 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Rate paid to purchas 5.00% 1.75% 4.00%
Total spread on sold portion of lo 1.00% 4.25% 2.00%
Premium percentag 14.00% - 10.00%
Proceeds from sa $ 855000 ¢ 750,000 ¢ 825,000
Premium receive ¢ 105,000 ¢ = & 75,000
Future servicing sprea

Estimated cash flow- Year 1 $ 7,400 ¢ 31,600 § 14,900

Estimated cash flov- Initial 5 years $ 35,700 ¢ 151900 ¢ 71,500
Total cash from sale at the end of 5 years ¢ 890,700 ¢ 901,900 ¢ 896,500

(1) Does not include the cash flow from the retainedipo of the loan
LOAN PORTFOLIO INFORMATION AND STATISTICS
General

Loans funded during 2012 and 2011 were $54.2 millind $38.4 million, respectively. We anticipataridundings to be between ¢
million and $65 million during 2013. At December,2D12 and 2011, our outstanding commitments td fugw loans were $19.5 million &
$14.3 million, respectively. The majority of ourmmitments are for SBA 7(a) Program loans with aerast rate based on the prime
which provide an interest rate match with our pnéseurces of funds. These loans also provide ah @Birantee typically for 75% of the Ic
amount. We are also marketing to originate comraéraortgage loans through our SBICs or PMC Comnaérci

We continue to actively monitor and manage our mdéproblem loans. In certain instances, wheig likely to maximize our retur
we will consider restructuring loans. As we conérto pursue ways of improving our overall recovangl repayment on these loans, we
experience reductions in net investment income aash flow. Liquidity for commercial properties inding hospitality properties rema
limited since banks remain hesitant to lend in seimamstances.

Loan Activity

In addition to our retained portfolio of $242.1 lioih at December 31, 2012, we service $71.4 millbidraggregate principal balar
remaining on Secondary Market Loan Sales that baes accounted for as sales. Since we retain @uadsnterest in the cash flows from
sold loans, the performance of these loans impaatsprofitability and our cash available for divigkdistributions. Therefore, we prov
information on both our retained portfolio and Aggregate Portfolio (retained portfolio plus centdegally sold government guarant
portions of SBA 7(a) Program loan sales which ateracorded on our balance sheet).
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Information on our Aggregate Portfolio, includingepayment trends, was as follows:

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands
Aggregate Portfolio (1 $313,541  $297,453  $284,451  $273,687  $275,530
Loans funde $54,161 $38,352 $38,440 $30,435 $34,587
Prepayments (z $20,181 $10,352 $10,830 $12,795 $68,556
% Prepayments (: 6.8% 3.6% 4.0% 4.6% 21.0%

(1) Portfolio outstanding before loan loss reserves dateérred commitment fee
(2) Does not include balloon maturities of SBA 504 Paogloans.
(3) Represents prepayments as a percentage of our daggr&ortfolio outstanding as of the beginninghef applicable yeau

Market Interest Rates

The net interest margin for our leveraged portfididependent upon the difference between theafasir borrowed funds and the r
at which we invest these funds (the “net interpséad”). The interest rate yield curve caused macgmpression i(e., the margins we recei
between the interest rate we charge our borroweds the interest rate we are charged by our lendake compressed). The mal
compression lowers our profitability and may hamerapact on our ability to maintain our dividenctla¢ current or anticipated amounts.

On our variableate loans, we charge a spread over a base rdter EIBOR or the prime rate which is effective the first day ¢
each quarter. For the first quarter of 2013, thBQR and prime rates are 0.31% and 3.25%, respéctiVde prime rate has remair
unchanged during the last three years. Historictlly LIBOR base rates were as follows:

2012 2011 2010
First Quarte 0.58% 0.30% 0.25%
Second Quarte 0.47% 0.30% 0.29%
Third Quartel 0.46% 0.25% 0.53%
Fourth Quarte 0.36% 0.37% 0.29%
Average 0.47% 0.31% 0.34%

Most of our loans receivable ($200.2 million) and debt ($80.0 million) are based on LIBOR or thienge rate. On the net differer
of $120.2 million between our variable-rate loand debt, interest rate changes will have an impadaur future earnings.
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Loans Receivable Rollforwards

The following table summarizes our loan activity floe five-year period ended December 31, 2012:

Years Ended December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands

Loans receivable, n- beginning of yea $ 234,427 ¢ 233,218 ¢ 196,642 ¢ 179,807 ¢ 165,969
Loans originater- funded (1) 54,161 38,352 38,440 30,435 34,587
Loans originater- nor-cash (1 1,225 1,172 31,261 32,563 21,363
Principal reductions (1 (47,035) (37,247) (28,691) (39,636) (42,026)
Loans transferred to REO ( (1,481) (409) (4,040) (4,948) -
Other adjustments ({ (2,306) (659) (394) (1,579) (86)
Loans receivable, n- end of yea $ 238,991 ¢ 234,427 ¢ 233,218 § 196,642 ¢ 179,807

(1) See detailed information belo
(2) Loans on which the collateral was foreclosed upod the assets were subsequently classified as
(3) Represents the net change in loan loss reserv&asutits and deferred commitment fe
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Detailed information on our loans originated anithgipal reductions for the fivgear period ended December 31, 2012 was as fol

Years Ended December
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands

Loans Originated
Loans Fundec

Commercial mortgage loal ¢ 19339 ¢ 4680 ¢§ 4908 § 2425 ¢ 19,739
SBA 7(a) Program loar 34,822 33,672 33,532 28,010 10,971
SBA 504 Program loans ( - - - - 3,877
Total loans funde 54,161 38,352 38,440 30,435 34,587
Non-cash Loan Origination:
2003 Joint Venture (2 - - - 19,993 -
Off balance sheet reconsolidations - - - 12,570 21,363
Previously unconsolidated off balance sheet
entities (4) - - 27,936 - -
Loans originated to facilitate the sales of R 1,225 1,172 3,325 - -
Total nor-cash loan originatior 1,225 1,172 31,261 32,563 21,363
Total loans originate ¢ 55386 ¢ 39524 ¢ 69,701 ¢ 62,998 ¢ 55,950
Principal Reductions (5
Prepayment $ 15691 ¢ 8357 ¢ 9,716 ¢ 5600 ¢ 27,938
Proceeds from the sale of SBA 7(a)

Program loans (€ 18,473 15,774 7,692 24,996 4,059
Scheduled principal paymer 12,871 13,116 11,283 9,040 5,330
Balloon maturities of SBA 504 Program lo¢ - - - - 4,699
Total principal reduction $ 47035 ¢ 37,247 ¢ 28691 § 39,636 § 42,026

(1) Represents second mortgages originated throug®B# 504 Program which are repaid by certified depeient companie

(2) We attained, but did not exercise, our “clegmaall” provision resulting in securitized loans gh were previously offalance sheet bei
included in our loans receivabl

(3) We exercised our “clean-up call” provisions witing in securitized loans which were previousffttmlance sheet being included in
loans receivable

(4) Due to a change in accounting rules effective Jayia 2010, securitized loans which were previoast:balance sheet were consolida
and included in our loans receivab

(5) Does not include principal reductions for loansrséerred to REC

(6) During 2010, 2011 and 2012, represents proceeds fiiwe sale of the government guaranteed portioBBA 7(a) Program loans sc
solely for cash premiums due to a change in acéogmtiles.

Prepayment Activity

The timing and volume of our prepayment activity fmth our variable and fixedite loans fluctuate and are impacted by num
factors including the following:

« The competitive lending environmeri.e., availability of alternative financing

e The current and anticipated interest rate envirarin

« The market value of, and ability to sell, limitegh@ce hospitality properties; ai

< The amount of the prepayment fee and the lenggtegdayment prohibition, if an'

It is difficult for us to accurately predict the lume or timing of prepayments since the factortetisabove are not aithclusive ani
changes in one factor are not isolated from chaimgasother which might magnify or counteract thteror volume of prepayment activity.
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When loans receivable are repaid prior to theirumigt we may receive prepayment fees. Prepaynmes fesult in onéme increase
in our income. In general, the proceeds from thepayments we receive are either used to repay delgsted initially in tempora
investments or if related to our SBICs held for irs¢heir operations. In addition, loans originatattler the SBA 7(a) Program do not
prepayment fees which are retained by us.

PORTFOLIO QUALITY

Our provision for loan losses (excluding reductiansl recoveries of loan losses) as a percentagerofeighted average outstanc
Loans Receivable Subject To Credit Risk was 1.25% @.40% during 2012 and 2011, respectively. Whenewur borrowers experier
significant operating difficulties and we are fadde liquidate the collateral underlying the lolosses may be substantial.

During the fiveyear period ended December 31, 2012, our aggregatesion for loan losses, net, was $4.5 millioMérbasis poin
per year based on the fiyear average of our Loans Receivable Subject TaiCRisk. Our total loan loss reserves as a peagendf ou
weighted average Loans Receivable Subject to CiRislit were 1.70% at December 31, 2012.

The following table represents an aging of our loReceivable Subject to Credit Risk (balances sgmrteour investment in the lo:
prior to loan loss reserves and deferred capit@dlests (commitment fees)) at December 31, 2012:

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Category Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
Current (1) $ 198,282 97.1% ¢ 170,429 96.8% ¢ 27,853 98.8%
Between 30 and 59 days delinquent 2,824 1.4% 2,482 1.4% 342 1.2%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu 1 - - - 1 -
Over 89 days delinquent ( 3,111 1.5% 3,111 1.8% -

§ 204,218 100.0% § 176,022 100.0% ¢ 28,196 100.0%

(1) Includes $7.6 million of loans classified as traedbldebt restructurings which are current at Decen8iie 2012 based on revised n
terms.

(2) Includes $2.3 million of loans classified as traetbldebt restructurings. We are currently in theqass of foreclosing on the collate
underlying an SBA 7(a) Program loan — a limitedvéeg hospitality property with a principal balance of $211,000 (excluding
government guaranteed portion as it sold as a ld)b

(3) Loans are classified as troubled debt restructusing/e are currently in the process of foreclosinglee collateral underlying these lo¢
—two limited service hospitality propertie

Our policy with respect to loans which are in arseas to interest payments for a period of 60 daywore is generally to discontir
the accrual of interest income. To the extent ctitbe of a loan becomes unlikely, we will delivedafault notice and begin foreclosure
liquidation proceedings when we determine thatyiticf these remedies is the most appropriate ecofsction.

Management closely monitors our loans which regeiraluation for loan loss reserves based on spddiintification metrics whic
are classified into three categories: Doubtful, Sabdard and Other Assets Especially Mentioned E®IA (together ‘Specific Identificatio
Loans”). Loans classified as Doubtful are generlans which are not complying with their contradtierms, the collection of the balance
the principal is considered impaired and on whidhfair value of the collateral is less than theaming unamortized principal balance. Tt
loans are typically placed on nawgcrual status and are generally in the forecloptoeess. Loans classified as Substandard areajlgniiose
loans that are either not complying or had previonst complied with their contractual terms and/iéather credit weaknesses which |
make payment default or principal exposure likaly fot yet certain. Loans classified as OAEM anmaegelly loans for which the credit qua
of the borrowers has temporarily deteriorated. €glly these borrowers, whose loans are classife@AEM, are current on their payme
however, they may be delinquent on their propeatges, insurance, or franchise fees or may be umgleements which provide for intel
only payments during a short period of time.
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Management has classified our Loans ReceivableeSufljo Credit Risk as follows (balances represemtiovestment in the loa
prior to loan loss reserves and deferred capit@dlimests (commitment fees)):

December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $ 187,749 92.0% ¢ 159,994 90.9% ¢ 27,755 98.5%
OAEM 81 - - - 81 0.3%
Substandar 13,043 6.4% 12,917 7.3% 126 0.4%
Doubtful 3,345 1.6% 3,111 1.8% 234 0.8%

§ 204,218 100.0% § 176,022 100.0% § 28,196 100.0%

December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $ 189,836 92.2% $ 167,397 91.6% ¢ 22,439 96.6%
OAEM 3,354 1.6% 3,317 1.8% 37 0.1%
Substandar 10,790 5.2% 10,569 5.8% 221 1.0%
Doubtful 1,983 1.0% 1,442 0.8% 541 2.3%

§ 205,963 100.0% ¢ 182,725 100.0% ¢ 23,238 100.0%

We begin foreclosure and liquidation proceedingemnvive determine the pursuit of these remedieseisrtbst appropriate course
action. Foreclosure and bankruptcy are complexsanaetimes lengthy processes that are subject ter&lehd state laws and regulations.

Properties being foreclosed upon typically haveedetated both physically (requiring certain repa@nd maintenance &
discretionary capital spending) and in their maskgét.e., issues with the properties’endors and reputation requiring rebuilding of t
customer and vendor bases). To the extent propeteeacquired through foreclosure, we will incalding costs including, but not limited
taxes, legal fees and insurance. In many casesaéh) flows have been reduced such that expensegexevenues and (2) franchise is
must be addressed.€., quality and brand standards and rmEayment of franchise fees). Notwithstanding thedaing, we believe that in m
cases it is prudent to continue to have the businpsrate until it can be sold because of a prgfemcreased marketability as an operz
entity compared to non-operating (demonstratedhicstlly through our sales efforts and from infotioa received from thirgsarty brokers
We hire third-party management companies to opéhatproperties until they are sold.

Currently, we are in the process of foreclosingtmn collateral underlying three limited service pitality properties two which ar
located in Wyoming and one which is located in Wiskin. Completion of the foreclosure process fer ¥filyoming properties is expec
during the second or third quarter of 2013 whilenptetion of the foreclosure process for the Wisaopsoperty is expected during the fot
quarter of 2013.

In connection with the sale of our REO, we may iiceaa portion of the purchase price of the propdiese loans will typically be
market rates of interest. While these loans aréuated using the same methodology as our loansvedate, certain lending criteria may not
able to be achieved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caodind our results of operations is based uporconsolidated financial statemei
which have been prepared in accordance with GAAR. @reparation of these financial statements reguis to make estimates and judgrr
that affect the reported amounts of assets, lt@sli revenues and expenses and related disclo$urentingent assets and liabilities. ¢
management has discussed the development andigeletthese critical accounting policies and esti@s with the audit committee of «
Board, and the audit committee has reviewed thelatiares relating to these policies and estimatelsdied in this annual report.

We believe the following critical accounting corsidtions and significant accounting policies repné®ur more significant judgme
and estimates used in the preparation of our cmleetl financial statements.

Determination of Loan Loss Reserves

We have a quarterly review process to identify emaluate potential exposure to loan losses. Ldaatsréquire specific identificatir
review are troubled debt restructurings and loaestified based on one or more negative charatitsrigcluding, but not limited to, non-
payment or lack of timely payment of interest anghidncipal, nonpayment or lack of timely payment of property takasan extended peri
of time, insurance defaults and/or franchise dégadlhe specific identification evaluation beginghwan evaluation of the estimated fair ve
of the loan. In determining estimated fair valu@nagement utilizes the present value of the exgdatare cash flows discounted at the I@an’
effective interest rate and/or an estimation ofuihderlying collateral values using appraisalskergrice opinions, tax assessed value al
revenue analysis. Appraisals are ordered on almgsase basis when management believes that the e@mnofithe property warrant tha
current appraisal be performed. We generally ob8RREA appraisals from certified appraisers froational companies. Management
appraisals as tools in conjunction with other dateants of collateral value as described abovestonate collateral values, not as the
determinant of value due to the current economigrenment. The property valuation takes into coasadion current information on prope
values in general and value changes in commeredlastate and/or hospitality properties. The fodiba of liquidation is then determins
based on many factors and is unique to each ing@itban. These probability determinations includi@croeconomic factors, the locatior
the property and economic environment where thegatg is located, industry specific factors relgtprimarily to the hospitality industry (a
further to the limited service segment of the htajty industry), our historical experience withmsiar borrowers and/or individual borrower
collateral characteristics, and in certain circuanses, the strength of the guarantors. The liquidairobability is then applied to the expos
to loss to determine the general or specific reséwthat loan and the ultimate determinationoastiether the loan is considered impaired.

The general loan loss reserve is established whaiteble information indicates that it is probakbléoss has occurred in the portfi
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably gstim&ignificant judgment is required in determinthe general loan loss reserve, inclu
estimates of the likelihood of default and theraatied fair value of the collateral. The generahlt@ss reserve includes those loans which
have negative characteristics which have not yebine known to us. In addition to the reserves éstedl on loans not considered impa
that have been evaluated under a specific evatuatie general loan loss reserve uses a consis&thbdology to determine a loss percen
to be applied to outstanding loan balances. These percentages are based on many factors, pgneamhulative and recent loss histc
general economic conditions and more specificallyant trends in the limited service hospitalitgdustry.

Upon sale of the government guaranteed portion 8BA 7(a) Program loan, the unguaranteed portiothefloan retained by us
valued on a fair value basis and a discount isrdszbas a reduction in basis of the retained portibthe loan. At December 31, 2012,
aggregate discounts on the retained portions ofSBA 7(a) Program loans were $2.1 million. In aiddit in establishing general reserve:
our loan portfolio, the SBA 7(a) retained portiohowr loans are separately evaluated and genesehwe percentages applied are typic
higher to address the potential for greater lossnulquidation of the underlying collateral on tomeguaranteed SBA 7(a) Program |
portfolio.

Additional changes to the facts and circumstanédéleoindividual borrowers, the limited service hitality industry and the econor
may require the establishment of significant addil loan loss reserves and the effect on ourtestibperations may be material.
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Valuation of REO and Impaired Loans

REO consists of properties acquired through foseale in partial or total satisfaction of npefforming loans. REO acquired
satisfaction of a loan is recorded at estimatedvfalue less estimated costs to sell the propdrtheadate of foreclosure. Any excess of
carrying value of the loan over the fair value lod property less estimated costs to sell is chaoffei the loan loss reserve when title to
property is obtained. Any excess of the estimatédvalue of the property less estimated costelicand the carrying value is recorded as
on foreclosure within discontinued operations wtita to the property is obtained.

We have a quarterly review process to identify emaluate potential exposure to impairment lossesuwrREQ. This evaluation us
management’s judgment of the estimated fair valueusr REO. Adjustments to the carrying value araeagally based on management’
assessment of the appraised value of the collateralassessed value of the collateral, operatiatisics to the extent available anc
discussions with potential purchasers and tpady brokers and are recorded as impairment logsediscontinued operations on
consolidated statements of income (loss).

Managemens estimation of the fair value of our impaired Isedm a Level 3 valuation in the fair value hiergrastablished fc
disclosure of how a company values its assetsetre@l, quoted market prices from active marketgHe identical asset (Level 1 inputs’
available, should be used to value an asset. lfegiyarices are not available for the identical gghen a determination should be made if L
2 inputs are available. Level 2 inputs include gdoprices for similar assets in active marketsooridentical or similar assets in markets
are not active {.e., markets in which there are few transactions forabget, the prices are not current, price quotatamy substantially, or
which little information is released publicly). Tieeis limited reliable market information for oumpaired loans and we utilize ot
methodologies to value the asset such as appiafsamation and tax assessed value of the collhtdras there are no Level 1 or Leve
determinations available. Level 3 inputs are unplzdge inputs for the asset that are used to medairrvalue when observable inputs are
available. These inputs include managengeassessment of the appraised value of the ceallatax assessed value of the collateral ai
operating statistics to the extent available. Atlents to the carrying value of impaired loansraoerded as loan loss reserves.

Revenue Recognition Policies
Interest Income

Interest income includes interest earned on loascair shorterm investments and the amortization of net lodgirmation fees ar
discounts. Interest income on loans is accruecased with the accrual of interest suspended whemdlated loan becomes a raeerual loar
A loan receivable is generally classified as nocraal (a “Non-Accrual Loan”)f (1) it is past due as to payment of principalimierest for
period of 60 days or more, (2) any portion of than is classified as doubtful or is charggtier (3) if the repayment in full of the princi
and/or interest is in doubt. Generally, loans drargedeff when management determines that we will be leéd collect any remainir
amounts due under the loan agreement, either thréiqgidation of collateral or other means. Intére&ome on a Nowkccrual Loan i
recognized on either the cash basis or the cosveeg basis.

Origination fees and direct loan origination cosist, are deferred and recognized as an adjustofigmtld over the life of the relat
loan receivable using a method which approximateseffective interest method. Direct originatiorstsoinclude broker fees paid, if any,
capitalization of allocated payroll costs in origfimg the loan.

For loans originated under the SBA 7(a) Progranpnupale of the SBA guaranteed portion of the loahi&h are accounted for
sales, the unguaranteed portion of the loans eslaly us is valued on a fair value basis and eodisic(the “Retained Loan Discount
recorded as a reduction in basis of the retainetiopoof the loan. For loans recorded with a Retdithoan Discount, these discounts
recognized as an adjustment of yield over thedifthe related loan receivable using the effecinerest method.

Premium Income

We sell the government guaranteed portion of ouk 3B) Program loans to investors. These governmeatanteed portions may
sold for (1) a cash premium and the minimum 1% SB4uired servicing spread, (2) future servicingespr greater than 1% and no ¢
premium or (3) future servicing spread greater th#énand a 10% cash premium. The government guadumertion of loans sold for a c:
premium and the minimum 1%
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required servicing spread are recorded as $ageswe record premium income) for accounting purpo®és.are required to permanently ti
certain of the proceeds received from legally smidions of loans (those loans sold solely for escgpread and those sold for a cash pre
and excess spread) as secured borrowings (atijatliour consolidated balance sheet) for thedlifthe loan. To the extent secured borrow
include cash premiums, these premiums are amortiged reduction to interest expense over the fifth® loan using the effective inter
method and any remaining balance is fully amortizbén the loan is repaid in full.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2011

Overview
Year Endec
December 31 Change
2012 2011 $ %
(In thousands

Total revenue: ¢ 17,065 ¢ 16,076 ¢ 989 6.2%
Total expense ¢ 17,856 ¢ 11,270 ¢ 6,586 58.4%
Income (loss) from continuing operatic ¢ (1,356) ¢ 4,692 ¢ (6,048) (128.9%)
Net income (loss ¢ (2,279) ¢§ 3,647 ¢ (5826) (159.7%)

Revenues increased during 2012 primarily due tmarease in recognized premium income from the shthe government guarante
portion of our SBA 7(a) Program loans and an ingeeia interest income while our expenses incredseithg 2012 primarily due to (1) co
associated with evaluating strategic alternativie$3;870,000, (2) severance and related benefpperese related to the departure of our «
executive officer of $2,114,000 and (3) an increas@et provision for loan losses of $1,474,000mauiily related to our limited servi
hospitality properties currently in the process$avéclosure.

More detailed comparative information on the conijjms of and changes in our revenues and expesga®vided below.
Revenue:

Interest income increased 2.3% to $13,896,000 du#@l2 compared to $13,571,000 during 2011. Oumghted average loa
receivable increased 2.1% to $238.2 million du20d2 compared to $233.2 million during 2011. Iniadd, the weighted average interest
increased from 5.6% at December 31, 2011 to 5.8Bteaember 31, 2012. At December 31, 2012, 83% ofaans had variable interest ra
For the first quarter of 2013 (set on January 1,30the base LIBOR decreased to 0.31% from 0.3&%qn October 1, 2012) during the fo
quarter of 2012. As a result, assuming no changaumoutstanding LIBORyased loans, we would have a reduction of $52,80@teres
income on an annual basis.

Premium income results from certain sales of theegunent guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) Programddato the secondary marl
We record premium income at the time of sale fasthsales solely for cash premiums and the SBAinesjd% servicing spread. We s
more loans for solely cash premiums and the SBAired 1% servicing spread during 2012 than 201&ddition, there was improvemen
the market for Secondary Market Loan Sales. Thesaespremium collected on cash sales increase8.484lduring 2012 compared to 11.
in 2011.

Premium income will not equal collected cash prensubecause premium income represents the differbateeen the fair val
attributable to the sale of the government guasghtgortion of the loan and the principal balances{cof the loan adjusted by cost:s
origination. Our premium income increased to $1,889 during 2012 from $1,450,000 during 2011.
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Secondary Market Loan Sales were as follows:

2012 2011
Cash Premiun Cash Premiun
Principal Principal
Type of Sale Sold Receivec Sold Receivec
Cash premiun $ 18,473,000 $ 2,470,000 $ 15,774,00C $ 1,728,000
Hybrid 8,498,000 850,000 11,638,000 1,164,000

§ 26,971,000 $ 3,320,000 § 27,412,000 $ 2,892,000

We expect that during 2013 we will sell the majorif our loans for solely cash premiums and the $8quired 1% servicing spread.

Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands
Servicing income $ 499 $ 399
Prepayment fee 279 118
Loan related incom- other 221 196
Retained interests in transferred as 189 215
Other 92 127

$ 1,280 $ 1,055

We earn fees for servicing loans sold into the sdaoy market. As these fees are based on the painbalances of the loe
outstanding, they will increase as more loans ale isto the secondary market (for cash premiuntstas SBA required 1% servicing spre
and decrease over time as scheduled principal patgraed prepayments occur on loans with an assolcsgtrvicing asset.

Prepayment fee income is dependent upon a numttergsand is not generally predictable as the velamd mix of loans prepayinc
not known.

Interest Expenst
Interest expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands
Secured borrowing $ 1201 $ 752
Junior subordinated not 1,034 986
Debentures payab 731 552
Revolver 459 457
Structured notes payalk 21 854
Other 92 92

$ 3,538 $ 3,693

The weighted average cost of our funds decreasddb% during 2012 compared to 3.8% during 2011.

Secured borrowings increase as we sell SBA 7(ajrBro loans for excess servicing spreads. Intexgsrese on our secured borrowi
will likely continue to increase unless we sellisasolely for cash and the 1% SBA required sergiGpread or we experience signific

prepayments and/or charge-offs. The weighted aeerag
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balance outstanding on our secured borrowings \8&8%$million during 2012 compared to $28.0 millidaring 2011. The weighted aver:
interest rate on our secured borrowings was 3.7@eaember 31, 2012. Offsetting interest expenseemured borrowings is amortizatior
cash premiums from hybrid loan sales of $145,0@D$209,000 during 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Interest expense on SBA debentures increased die igsuance of $5.0 million of debentures in Seyter 2011 and $4.0 million
August 2012. We issued $6.0 million of debenturellarch 2013.

We amended our Revolver during June 2011. Thedsteate was reduced to prime less 50 basis pwiritee 30elay LIBOR plus 2%, i
our option. The weighted average balance outstgndider our Revolver was $16.1 million during 2@I#npared to $14.1 million duri
2011.

Interest expense on our structured notes payaldedbareased due to principal payments received ftemunderlying loans a
repayment of the notes. We repaid the remainingral of the 2003 Joint Venture notes on Februargdb2.

Other Expenses

General and administrative expense increased $20{58%) during 2012 compared to 2011. Generalaaministrative expenses
comprised of (1) corporate overhead including legad professional fees, sales and marketing expepsblic company and regulatory c
and (2) expenses related to assets currently inpitheess of foreclosure. Our corporate overheackased to $2,065,000 during 2012 f
$1,933,000 during 2011 primarily due to an increiaseorporate legal fees. Expenses related to saissetently in the process of foreclos
were $62,000 during 2012 compared to $77,000 du2Bitfl. These expenses incurred during the fore@ogtocess for problem loans
primarily related to property taxes incurred, potiten of the asset and operating deficits fundedet®ivers. Expenses incurred during 2
primarily relate to two limited service hospitaliroperties which are currently in receivershipeTreclosure process is expected t
completed during the second or third quarter of2@e expect these costs to continue, and likedyeimse, until the foreclosure processe
completed. Once complete, costs associated widitliosed properties are included in discontinuedaijoms.

During 2012, we expensed $3,870,000 in costs assacwith evaluation of strategic alternativesudahg legal fees, trust manager 1
and due diligence costs compared to $778,000 d@@ig. Costs during 2012 consisted of $2,398,00@dal fees, $537,000 of investm
advisory fees, $503,000 of due diligence costs9%B® in trust manager fees and $33,000 of othpemses. On a cumulative basis,
expensed $4,648,000 related to the evaluationrafegfic alternatives consisting of $2,892,000 geldees, $668,000 of investment advit
fees, $503,000 of due diligence costs, $552,000uist manager fees and $33,000 of other expenses.special committee was dissol
during December of 2012; thus, we do not anticipgmificant additional costs related to the evitia of these strategic alternativ
However, we are currently exploring other opportiesifor growth and we may incur significant costs.

Severance and related benefits expense of $2,10 40@lated to the separation of our former chiefcutive officer during the foul
quarter of 2012. This severance expense repreganisents due to Mr. Lance B. Rosemore pursuarnistedparation agreement.

Our provision for loan losses, net was $1,934,006nd 2012 compared to $460,000 during 2011. Oowipion for loan losses, n
during 2012 was comprised of a net provision fanléosses of $2,401,000 offset by recoveries o7 . Recoveries represent cash proc
from collections on personal loan guarantees. @ovigion for loan losses primarily relates to liedtservice hospitality properties classifie
troubled debt restructurings, including propertiagrently in the process of foreclosure. Our resgrare categorized as follows:

At December 31,

2012 2011
Specific ¢ 1535000 ¢ 563,000
Genera 1,878,000 1,249,000

¢ 3,413,000 ¢ 1,812,000
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Realized losses of $333,000 and $257,000 durin@® 201d 2011, respectively, were recognized uponidation of the collater.
underlying loans. Based on loans currently in trezess of foreclosure, we anticipate that reallesdes during 2013 will be greater than lo
realized during 2012. Due to the prolonged econoddwnturn and the current economic environment, bgeve that in general, ¢
borrowers’equity in their properties has been eroded and fadler erode which may result in an increase medtosure activity and cre
losses. The lagging impact of the adverse econenriditions may continue to have an adverse effedhe financial condition of individu
borrowers and the limited service hospitality indysvhich may require the establishment of sigaifit additional loan loss reserves anc
effect on our results of operations and financadition may be material.

Income tax provision (included in continuing operas and discontinued operations) was $451,00(hdi2D12 compared to $114,(
during 2011 related to our taxable REIT subsidg@ri@ur taxable REIT subsidiaries had taxable incofrfl,995,000 during 2012 compare
$1,420,000 during 2011. See — “Taxable Incorii&é increase primarily relates to increased inténeesme and recoveries of loan losses o
SBIC subsidiary.

Discontinued Operations, Net of Te

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands
Net operating losse ¢ (582) ¢ (690)
Net gains (losses) on sales of real es (15) 532
Impairment losse (341) (887)
Income tax benefi 115 -
Discontinued operations, net of t § (823) § (1,045

Our net operating losses from discontinued oparatielate to the operations and holding costs oR&O.

During 2012, we foreclosed on the underlying cefat (limited service hospitality properties) ofawans with a combined estima
fair value at foreclosure of $1,481,000 and solthhaf these properties during 2012. One propertg s@d for $1,375,000 including c:
proceeds of $550,000 and financing of $825,000. dther property was sold solely for cash procebldsgain or loss was recorded on tt
sales. In addition, we sold a property during 2@dth an estimated fair value of $76,000 and recdrdeloss of $19,000. During 20
previously deferred gains of $685,000 from propesdjes we financed were recorded as gains dueirtoigal reductions on the underlyi
loans. In addition, during June 2011, we sold aetacquired through foreclosure for $1.3 millioeceived cash proceeds of $128,000
financed the remainder. A loss of $115,000 wasrdbon the transaction.

Impairment losses represent declines in the esinfir value of our REO subsequent to initial adilon. Impairment losses duri
2012 primarily relate to a retail establishmentuiced in the third quarter of 2009 which contindesxperience declines in its value. Du
2011, our impairment losses were primarily relaied full service hospitality property. The progehad experienced significant opera
losses, was in need of major capital improvememdishead been held for an extended period of timh liritited market sales activity, includi
an unsuccessful auction during the third quart&Qdfl, which contributed to the decline in value.
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to the YeanHBed December 31, 2010

Overview

Years Ended

December 31 Change
2011 2010 $ %
(Dollars in thousands
Total revenue ¢ 16,076 ¢ 15,463 $ 613 4.0%
Total expense $ 11,270 ¢ 10,752 $ 518 4.8%
Income from continuing operatiol $ 4,692 § 4,842 $ (150) (3.1%)
Net income $ 3,647 $ 4,297 $ (650) (15.1%)

Detailed comparative information on the compositidand changes in our revenues and expenses\iglpdobelow.
Revenue:

Interest income remained relatively consistent fi2z0d0 to 2011, increasing by $34,000 to $13,571@@thg 2011. The average b
LIBOR charged our borrowers decreased from 34 hagiists during 2010 to 31 basis points during 204ile our weighted average lo:
receivable increased slightly to $233.2 millionidgr2011 compared to $231.5 million during 2010.

Premium income results from certain sales of theegunent guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) Programddato the secondary marl
We record premium income at the time of sale foséhsales solely for cash premiums and the SBAnetj1% servicing spread. Our premi
income increased from $709,000 during 2010 to LR during 2011. During 2011, we sold more lofamssolely cash premiums and tl
recorded more income than in the prior year.

Secondary Market Loan Sales were as follows:

2011 2010
Principal Cash Premium Principal Cash Premium
Type of Sale Sold Receivec Sold Receivec
Cash premiun $ 15,774,000 ¢ 1,728,000 $ 7,736,000 ¢ 758,000
Servicing sprea - - 6,188,000 -
Hybrid 11,638,000 1,164,000 14,521,000 1,452,000
$ 27,412,000 $ 2,892,000 $ 28,445,000 ¢§ 2,210,000

Premium income will not equal collected cash prensiubecause premium income represents the differeateeen the fair val
attributable to the sale of the government guasghtgortion of the loan and the principal balancesic of the loan adjusted by costs
origination.
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Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010
(In thousands
Servicing income $ 399 $ 344
Retained interests in transferred as 215 163
Loan related incom 196 226
Prepayment fee 118 378
Other 127 106

$ 1,055 $ 1,217

Interest Expenst

Interest expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010
(In thousands
Junior subordinated not $ 986 $ 994
Structured note 854 1,296
Secured borrowing 752 398
Debentures payab 552 498
Revolver 457 698
Other 92 132

$ 3,693 $ 4,016

The weighted average cost of our funds decline8l886 during 2011 compared to 4.0% during 2010 dug ¢hange in the mix of ¢
debt and the reduction in interest rate on our Revo

Interest expense on our structured notes payatldedbareased due to principal payments received ftemunderlying loans a
repayment of certain of the notes. The weightedage balance outstanding on our structured noteaagl@011 decreased to $16.8 mill
from $25.0 million during 2010. We repaid the 192&tnership notes of $2.7 million at an interegt & prime less 1% on October 3, 2(
We repaid the 2000 Joint Venture notes of $8.7ionilat an interest rate of 7.28% on November 13,120e repaid the 2003 Joint Vent
notes of $5.3 million at an interest rate of LIB@Rs 2.5% on February 15, 2012 using our resemd &nd the Revolver.

Our weighted average secured borrowings increase®P8.0 million during 2011 compared to $13.0 milliduring 2010. Intere
expense on our secured borrowings will continut¢cease unless we sell the government guaraneidp of SBA 7(a) Program loans sol
for cash and the 1% SBA required servicing spreatleoexperience significant prepayments.

The increase in interest expense on debenturedlgaimdue to issuance of $5 million of SBIC debees in September 2011. 7
interest rate on the debentures is 2.877% plusana fee of 0.515%.

We amended our Revolver during June 2011. Thedsteate was reduced to prime less 50 basis pwiritee 30elay LIBOR plus 2%, i
our option. The weighted average balance outstgraiinour Revolver was $14.1 million during 2011 pamed to $18.9 million during 2010.

Other Expenses
Salaries and related benefits expense increase?i @M during 2011 compared to 2010 due primarilgdst of living increases,
increase in loan production employees, a redudtiotne number of loans funded which decreased &igmmtl loan origination costs and

increase in expense related to the issuance oictest shares.

General and administrative expense decreased f2op6&,000 during 2010 to $2,010,000 during 2011.
42



Table of Contents

General and administrative expenses are comprisétl) corporate overhead including legal and prsifesal expenses, sales and mark
expenses, public company and regulatory costs 2neikpenses related to assets in the processasfiésure. Our corporate overhead incre
$90,000 primarily due to increased professionab fggimarily accounting related. Expenses relateddsets in the process of foreclo
decreased $248,000 primarily due to completiorhefforeclosure process on the majority of thesetas¥/e had less properties in the pro
of foreclosure during 2011 compared to 2010. Oyreeses related to assets currently in the prodefssexliosure may increase if we be
foreclosure processes on any of our troubled asBetse expenses are difficult to estimate, mageame and may be material.

Primarily during the fourth quarter of 2011, we erped $778,000 in costs associated with evaluafistrategic alternatives includi
legal fees, trust manager fees and investment adféss.

Provision for loan losses, net, was $460,000 du2dfil compared to $641,000 during 2010. These gians were primarily related
the prolonged economic recession and current ecicnenvironment and negative changes in the findmcadition of certain borrowers a
collateral valuation on certain hospitality loans.

Income tax benefit (provision) was a provision $114,000) during 2011 compared to a benefit of &1 during 2010 related to «
taxable REIT subsidiaries. Our taxable REIT sulssids had taxable income of $1,420,000 during 2@tipared to $1,480,000 during 2010.

Discontinued Operations, Net of Te

Our discontinued operations consisted of the falguw

Years Ended December .

2011 2010
(In thousands
Net gains on sales of real est $ 532 $ 78
Impairment losse (887) (325)
Net operating losse (690) (298)
Discontinued operations, net of t $ (1,045 $ (545)

During 2011, previously deferred gains of $685,80@n property sales we financed were recorded asgm sales of real estate du
principal reductions on the underlying loans. Ofisg these gains, we sold an asset acquired thréargclosure for $1.3 million, received ¢
proceeds of $128,000 and financed the remaindéos# of $115,000 was recorded on the transactioadtition, we sold an asset acqu
through foreclosure for cash proceeds of $375,80@ss of $38,000 was recorded on the transacida.recorded a gain on the sale of F
acquired through foreclosure of $76,000 during 2010

Impairment losses represent declines in the estifatir value of our REO subsequent to initial @élon. During 2011, our impairme
losses were primarily related to a full service gitadity property. The property experienced sigrafit operating losses, is in need of i
capital improvements and has been held for an dgtbperiod of time with limited market sales adgsivincluding an unsuccessful auct
during the third quarter of 2011, which contributedhe decline in its value. During 2010, we relgat an impairment loss of $203,000 rel.
to the full service hospitality property due to acbhe in its market potential and an impairmergsiof $114,000 related to a re
establishment.

Our net operating losses from discontinued operatiarose from the operations and holding costsuofREO. The majority of o
operating REO was acquired subsequent to the segqaader of 2010. In addition, significant opergtilosses were generated during 2
related to a limited service hospitality propertigigh was sold during June 2011.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  (unaudited)

The following represents our selected quarterlaricial data which, in the opinion of managemerfieces adjustments (comprising o
normal recurring adjustments) necessary for fasentation.

Year Ended December 31, 2C
Income (Loss

From Earnings
Continuing Net Income (Loss)
Revenue: Operations (Loss) Per Shart
(In thousands, except earnings per share and fde$)
First Quartel < 3,787 ¢ ®6) ¢ (155) ¢ (0.01) (1)
Second Quarte 3,964 (93) (415) (0.04) (2
Third Quartel 4,864 645 473 0.04 3)
Fourth Quarte 4,450 (1,902) (2,082) (0.20) (4

§ 17065 $ (1,356) $ (2,179) § (0.21)

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Income From
Continuing Earnings Pe

Revenue: Operations Net Income Share

(In thousands, except earnings per share and fae)
First Quartel < 4,056 ¢ 1,124 ¢ 916 ¢ 0.09 (5
Second Quarte 3,847 1,235 1,339 0.13 (6)
Third Quartel 3,809 1,232 733 0.07 (7
Fourth Quarte 4,364 1,101 659 0.05 (8)

§ 16,076 ¢ 4692 ¢ 3,647 & 0.34

(1) Includes $850,000 in expenses related to explanaticstrategic alternative:

(2) Includes $1,352,000 in expenses related to exptoratf strategic alternative:

(3) Includes $1,421,000 in expenses related to exptoraf strategic alternative:

(4) Includes $2,114,000 in severance and related bisnefilated to the separation agreement with ouetbkecutive officer and $247,00(
expenses related to exploration of strategic aléires. Also includes $1,288,000 in provision fmar losses

(5) Includes losses from discontinued operations oDEXIO from net operating losses of our REO propset

(6) Includes losses from discontinued operations, oe$104,000, comprised of net operating lossesuofpooperties included in REO
$442,000 and impairment losses on our REO of $282p@rtially offset by net gains on sale of redhés of $570,000 resulting primar
from the recognition of previously deferred gaimspsoperty sales we finance

(7) Includes impairment losses on our REO of $418,

(8) Includes $717,000 in expenses related to explanaifcstrategic alternatives and losses from disicwred operations of $442,0C
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow Analysis

Information on our cash flow was as follows:

Years Ended December :

2012 2011 Change
(In thousands
Cash used in operating activiti $ (1,775 $ (4,062 ¢ 2,287
Cash provided by investing activiti $ 2,809 $ 13,101 ¢ (10,292
Cash used in financing activiti $ (6,306) $ (5,179 ¢ (2,127)

Operating Activities

As a REIT, our earnings are typically used to fund dividends. Since operating cash flows alsouidel lending activities, it
necessary to adjust our cash flow from operatirtiyiies for our lending activities to determinevesage of our dividends from operatic
Therefore, we adjust net cash used in operatinyities to “Modified Cash.”Management believes that our modified cash availdibi
dividend distributions (“Modified Cash’ls a more appropriate indicator of operating casfetage of our dividend payments than cash
from operating activities. Modified Cash is caldalh by adjusting our cash from operating activitigs(1) the change in operating assets
liabilities and (2) loans funded, held, for salet of proceeds from sale of guaranteed loans aindipal collected on loans Qperating Loa
Activity”). Modified Cash, a norGAAP financial measurement, is one of the fact@sduby our Board in its determination of divideraas
their timing. In respect to our dividend policy, Wwelieve that the disclosure of Modified Cash addditional transparency to our divide
calculation and intentions. However, Modified Casay differ significantly from dividends paid duettte Board$ dividend policy regardir
returns of capital, timing differences between baatome (loss) and taxable income (loss) and tinehgayment of dividends to eliminate
reduce Federal income taxes or excise taxes &HHE level.

The following reconciles net cash flow used in epieg activities to Modified Cash:

Years Ended December <

2012 2011
(In thousands
Net cash used in operating activit $ (1,775 ¢ (4,062
Change in operating assets and liabili (4,075) 534
Operating Loan Activity 6,912 8,764
Modified Cast $ 1,062 § 5,236

To the extent Modified Cash does not cover theenirdividend distribution rate or if additional bais needed based on our worl
capital needs, the Board may choose to modifyutsent dividend policy. During 2012 and 2011, dendis paid were greater than Modi
Cash by $5,690,000 and $1,551,000, respectively. Madified Cash during 2012, after adjusting foperses related to the evaluatiol
strategic alternatives and severance and relateefilee expenses, was $7,046,000, which is grehater dividends paid by $294,000. To
extent we need working capital to fund any shdrtfabperating cash flows to cover our dividendtdisition, we would borrow the funds frc
our Revolver or use funds from the repayment afgipial on our loans receivable.

Investing Activities

Our primary investing activity is the originatiofi loans and collections on our investment portfobDaring 2011, the primary soul
of funds was principal collected on loans receigahlexcess of loans funded of $7,659,000. Duri@&22 our primary use of funds was lo
funded in excess of principal collected on loarceieable of $214,000. Our loans funded which actuted in investing activities increas
from $12,002,000 during 2011 to $28,036,000 du28d2. The increase in loans funded is primarilated to loans funded of our SE
subsidiaries financed primarily using SBIC debessuincluded within principal collected on loans arincipal prepayments of $15,691,
and $8,357,000 during 2012 and 2011, respecti®Bpayments are
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dependent upon a number of factors and are noranpredictable. We expect that principal collens on our loans will continue to be
primary source of funds from investing activiti@uring 2012, restricted cash and cash equivalen$2 233,000 were released in connec
with the exercise of the “clean-up catiption on our 2003 Joint Venture structured noBaging 2011, we received cash proceeds fron
unconsolidated subsidiary of $1,373,000 when cgsde exercised its fixed purchase option.

Based on our outstanding loan portfolio at Decen3der2012, our estimated collection of schedulaedcgal payments in 2013
approximately $12.8 million. Of this, approximate$0.2 million could be available to repay a portf the balance outstanding under
Revolver. The remaining $2.6 million would be ugedrepay secured borrowings and for working capifabur SBICs. We anticipate 1
funding needs between $25 million and $28 millieming 2013 after sale of the government guaranpeetion of the SBA 7(a) Program loa
To the extent our loan origination liquidity needsre to exceed our principal repayments, we wowe the Revolver and/or issue S|
debentures to fund the shortfall.

Financing Activities

We used funds from financing activities during 2@t 2011 primarily to pay dividends of $6,752,@G0@ $6,787,000, respective
We received proceeds from the issuance of $4.Gomiind $5.0 million in SBIC debentures during 2@h2l 2011, respectively. Proceeds f
Secondary Market Loan Sales recorded as securedwings during 2012 and 2011 were $8,498,000 arid6®P,000, respectively. The
proceeds will fluctuate year-to-year based on mamats decisions to sell loans for solely cash premiwsshybrids or for servicing spre
To the extent we sell the government guaranteetiopoof SBA 7(a) Program loans as hybrids, procdeat® Secondary Market Loan Se
included in financing activities will increase.

Sources and Uses of Funds
Liquidity Summary

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committeen repay borrowings, fu
loans and other investments, pay dividends, furd slervice and for other general corporate purpdesprimary sources of funds to meet
liquidity needs, including working capital, dividés, debt service and additional investments, if @opsist of (1) proceeds from principal
interest payments, including prepayments, (2) wimgs under the Revolver, (3) Secondary Market L&ahes and (4) issuance of SI
debentures. We believe these sources of funddedlufficient to meet our liquidity requirements.

Sources of Funds

In general, we need liquidity to originate new Isand repay principal and interest on our debt. @p&rating revenues are typici
utilized to pay our operating expenses, interedt@imidends. We have been utilizing principal coliens on loans receivable, proceeds 1
Secondary Market Loan Sales, issuance of SBIC defenand borrowings under our Revolver as our gmysources of funds.

The relatively limited amount of capital availaltte originate new commercial loans has caused uesinict nonSBA 7(a) Progral
and nonSBIC loan origination activity. A reduction in tlwailability of the above sources of funds couldéha material adverse impact on
financial condition and results of operations.hié$e sources are not available in the future, we hage to originate loans at reduced leve
sell assets, potentially on unfavorable terms.

Our unsecured Revolver matures on June 30, 20%lirarest rate is prime less 50 basis points ®@Btday LIBOR plus 2%, at o
option. The amount available under the Revolveomatically increased on January 1, 2013 from $3liamito $40 million. The Revolv
requires us to meet certain covenants which amamey ehings, limit our ability to incur indebtedisegrant liens, make investments and
assets. Our most significant covenant is a mininmemeficiaries'equity covenant. During June 2012, we amended eupRer to reduce ti
minimum beneficiariesequity covenant. The covenant was amended from.81d#lion to $134.5 million from October 1 to Denber 31
2012 and $132.0 million from January 1, 2013 aretdhfter. In addition, the loss of either of oumea executive officers would cause
event of default on our Revolver. At December 3012 we were in compliance with the covenants g fhcility. While we anticipal
maintaining compliance with these covenants, tbarebe no assurance that we will be able to do so.
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If we are unable to make required payments undeborrowings, breach any representation or warraftyur borrowings or viola
any covenant, our lenders may accelerate the ratfrour debt or force us to take other actionscdnnection with an event of default ur
our Revolver, the lender is permitted to acceleramyment of all amounts due and terminate itsnoitiment to lend thereunder. Any sl
event may have a material adverse effect on ouidity, the value of our common shares and ouiitglid pay dividends to our sharehold
In the event of a default on the Revolver, we wélly on Modified Cash, principal payments (inclugliprepayments), and (if necess
proceeds from asset and loan sales to satisfyiquidity requirements. To the extent we need adddl capital, there can be no assurance
we would be able to increase the amount availatdeuthe Revolver or identify other sources of siatlan acceptable cost, if at all.

We have commitments from the SBA for the issuaric81d.0 million in SBIC debentures. We issued $@illion of these SBI(
debentures during March 2013. A commitment for dditeonal $5.0 million of debentures was requedadng the second quarter of 2(
which would be used to fund loans within one of 8&ICs. This commitment has not yet been approVedre can be no assurance that
commitment will be approved.

We rely on Secondary Market Loan Sales to creaddlability and/or repay principal due under our Ber. Once fully funded, v
sell the government guaranteed portion of our SE#&) Program loans pursuant to Secondary Market L®aps. The market demand
Secondary Market Loan Sales may decline or be teaniposuspended. To the extent we are unable ¢gute Secondary Market Loan Sale
the normal course of business, our financial céonlidnd results of operations could be adversdgctdd.

As a REIT we must distribute to our shareholderteast 90% of our REIT taxable income to maintain @x status under the Co
Accordingly, to the extent the sources above repretaxable income, such amounts have historidsn distributed to our shareholders
general, if we receive less cash from our portfaidnvestments, we can lower the dividend so astm@ause any material cash short
During 2013, we anticipate that our Modified Caslli tae utilized to fund our expected 2013 dividedigtributions and generally will not
available to fund portfolio growth or for the repagnt of principal due on our debt.

Uses of Funds

In general, the primary use of our funds is toioate loans and for repayment of the principal imterest on our debt. Our outstanc
commitments to fund new loans were $19.5 millionDetcember 31, 2012, the majority of which were foime+ate based loans to
originated by First Western, the government guaeahtportion of which is intended to be sold inte #econdary market. Our net work
capital outlay would be approximately $3.9 millicelated to the $15.0 million of SBA 7(a) Programariccommitments outstanding; howe
the government guaranteed portion of the SBA 7(@gRm loans cannot be sold until they are fullpded. Commitments have fix
expiration dates. Since some commitments expireauitthe proposed loan closing, total committed @m&do not necessarily represent fu
cash requirements. We anticipate that fundingsndu20D13 will range from $55 million to $65 millioof which $40 million to $50 million wi
be originations under the SBA 7(a) Program.

There may be several months between when thelibdlance of an SBA 7(a) Program loan is fundediarsdfully funded and can |
sold pursuant to Secondary Market Loan Sales.dsetlinstances, our liquidity is negatively affedtethe short-term.

We have $4.2 million of SBIC debentures which matir September 2013 and expect these debentutesrepaid using any SB
cash on hand, our Revolver, or through issuancewfSBA debentures.

We have a liability for borrower advances of $5.@iom at December 31, 2012. In general, as paxdwfmonitoring process to ver
that the borrowerstash equity is utilized for its intended purpose, neceive deposits from our borrowers and releasésf upon presentati
of appropriate documentation. When distributions sequested and approved, these borrower advaapessent a use of funds which
expect to be paid with cash on hand and/or our Rexo

Severance payments of approximately $1.8 millie due as a result of the separation agreementowittChief Executive Office
The majority of these payments are expected toaimbwithin the next six months and are anticipatetde funded with cash on hand and/or
Revolver.

We may pay dividends in excess of our Modified Ctsimaintain our REIT status or as approved by Board. During 2012, tt
sources of funds for our dividend distributions&&.8 million were Modified Cash of $1.1 million amincipal collections on our loa
receivable and borrowings under our Revolver of $billion.
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SEASONALITY

Generally, we are not subject to seasonal trendsveier, since we primarily lend to the limited seevhospitality industry, lo¢
delinquencies and requests for deferments typiaédly temporarily in the winter months due primatid reductions in business travel
consumer vacations.
SUMMARIZED CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, COMMITMENTS AND  CONTINGENCIES

The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@i December 31, 2012:

Payments Due by Peric

Less than 1to3 3to5 More than
Contractual Obligations ( Total 1 year years years 5 years
(In thousands, except footnot:

Debt:
SBIC debentures payat § 17,190 § 4,190 $ 4,000 ¢ - $ 9,000
Secured borrowings - government

guaranteed loans (. 37,909 1,717 2,281 2,446 31,465
Revolver 11,900 - 11,900 - -
Junior subordinated debt ( 27,070 - - - 27,070
Interest:
Debt (4) 37,173 3,395 5,592 4,981 23,205
Other Contractual Obligations
Borrower advance 5,942 5,942 - - -
Executive employment agreements 2,364 788 1,576 - -
Severance and related bene 1,806 1,806 - - -
Operating lease (¢ 465 211 254 - -
Consulting services former CE 42 42 - - -
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 141,861 ¢ 18,091 $ 25,603 $ 7,427 ¢ 90,740

(1) Does not include $3.0 million of cumulative -redeemable preferred stock of subsidiary (value@20,000 on our consolidat
balance sheet) and related dividends (recordedtesést expense) of $90,000 annue

(2) Principal payments are dependent upon cash flowsived from the underlying loans. Our estimatehefrtrepayment is based
scheduled principal payments on the underlying soa@ur estimate will differ from actual amountsth® extent we experier
prepayments and/or loan losses. No payment is ailessi payments are received from the borrowershenunderlying loan
Excludes deferred premiums which do not represemntae outlay of cash since they are amortized ¢ie life of the loan as
reduction to interest expens

(3) The junior subordinated notes may be redeenmediaoption, without penalty, and are subordinated®MC Commercia$ existin
debt.

(4) Calculated using the variable rate in effect at Beber 31, 2012. For our Revolver, assumes curralanoe outstanding throu
maturity date. For the secured borrowings, doesinciude deferred premiums which have no associatedest expens:

(5) Represents minimum payments required under execertiployment agreemer

(6) Represents future minimum lease payments undespmrating lease for office spac
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Our commitments at December 31, 2012 are summaaigéollows:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Peri

Total Amounts Less thar 1to3 3to5 After 5
Commitments Committed 1 year years years years
(In thousands
Loan commitment ¢ 19,522 § 19,522 $ : & = § =

See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrfenta detailed discussion of commitments andiogencies.
RISK MANAGEMENT

In conducting our business, we are exposed togerafrisks including:

» Market risk which is the risk to our earnings or capital resgltfrom adverse changes in the values of assetdtirey fron
movement in market interest rat

« Credit riskwhich is the risk of loss due to an individual mwer' s unwillingness or inability to pay its obligatior

* Operations riskwhich is the risk of loss resulting from systemduf@, inadequate controls, human error, fraud osee!
catastrophes

« Liquidity risk which is the potential that we would be unable teetmour obligations as they come due because ofanility to
liquidate assets or obtain funding. Liquidity reslso includes the risk of having to sell assets lass to generate liquid funds, wt
is a function of the relative liquidity (market dbpof the asset(s) and general market conditi

» Compliance riskwhich is the risk of loss, including fines or pered, from failing to comply with Federal, statelocal laws, an
regulations pertaining to lending and licensedvit@s;

» Legal riskwhich is the risk of loss, disruption or other nidgaeffect on our operations or condition thaseasi from unenforceat
contracts, lawsuits, adverse judgments, or adwggernmental or regulatory proceedings, or theathiteereof

« Real estate rislwhich is the risk that the value and liquidity tietcollateral for our loans are diminished or otlise adverse
impacted by market conditions; a

« Reputational riskwhich is the risk that negative publicity regardiogr practices whether true or not will cause alidedn oul
customer bast

Our risk management policies and procedures asablegied and evaluated under the supervision ofegacutive management. 1
policies and procedures are designed to focusefottowing:

« Identifying, assessing and reporting on corporateexposures and trenc

» Establishing, and revising as necessary, poliaiespaocedures

< Monitoring and reporting on adherence with riskigek; anc

« Approving new product developments or businesgiiies.

We cannot provide assurance that our risk managepnecess or our internal controls will preventeduce the risks to which we
exposed.

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statenfens full description of recent accounting pronoements including the respec
dates adopted or expected dates of adoption aedtgiffany, on our results of operations and faiaincondition.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We entered into an agreement with our former aixefcutive office for consulting services in OctoB8d 2. The term of the consult
services is one year with payments aggregatingd®80Payments during 2012 to the former executivednsulting services totaled $8,333.
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DIVIDENDS

During 2012, our dividends were declared as foltows

Amount

Record Date Date Paid Per Shar
March 30, 2012 April 9, 2012 ¢ 0.16
June 29, 201 July 9, 201: 0.16
September 28, 201 October 9, 201 0.16
December 31, 201 January 7, 201 0.12
& 0.60

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemtlen and as declared by our Board. In determiningdehd policy, the Boal
considers many factors including, but not limiteg actual and anticipated Modified Cash, expeatatifor future earnings, REIT taxa
income (loss) and maintenance of REIT status, te@@mic environment, our ability to obtain leverager loan portfolio performance and
ability to maintain a stable dividend considerihg foregoing factors. Consequently, the dividerid o a quarterly basis will not necess:
correlate directly to any individual factor.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Board deiagd that the quarterly cash dividend needed teeeced in order to better al
the dividend with core operations. As a result,dbarterly dividend was reduced from $0.16 perehar$0.12 per share for the fourth qu
of 2012. The Board increased the quarterly dividEnth $0.12 per share to $0.125 per share for itse quarter 2013 dividend to be paic
April 2013. It is anticipated that this increasadagerly dividend has been established in an amthaitcan reasonably be expected t
maintained over the next year although no assureacde given to that effect. To the extent necgstize Board will adjust the dividend o
quarterly basis thereafter.

During 2012, due primarily to deductible expenselated to exploration of strategic alternatives, lveel a taxable loss. Thus,
dividends were deemed to be non-taxable returcauital.

We have a covenant within our Revolver that maytloar ability to pay our returns of capital as tpaf our dividends. This coven:
has not historically limited the amount of dividende have paid.
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TAXABLE INCOME

REIT taxable income (loss) is a financial meashed ts presented to assist investors in analyzirgperformance and is one of
factors utilized by our Board in determining thedeof dividends to be paid to our shareholdersnd@&AP financial measures have inhe
limitations, are not required to be uniformly apgpliand are not audited. These ®AAP measures have limitations as analytical t@wie
should not be considered in isolation, or as atstubes for analyses of results as reported undeABA

The following reconciles net income (loss) to REdXable income (loss):

Years Ended December @

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Net income (loss ¢ (2179 ¢ 3,647 ¢ 4,297

Book/tax differences

Gains related to real est: - (235) 387

Strategic alternative (678) 678 -

Impairment losse 300 804 317

Severance accrual (paymer 1,777 (200) (33)

Amortization and accretio (188) (68) (102)

Loan valuatior 1,403 184 (241)

Other, ne 157 8 (174)

Subtotal 592 4,918 4,451

Adjustment for TRS net loss (income), net of (840) (131) 340
Dividend distribution from TR - 1,000 300
REIT taxable income (los: $ (248) & 5787 & 5,091
Distributions declare $ 6,353 ¢ 6,767 & 6,757
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 10,585 10,570 10,554

As a REIT, PMC Commercial generally will not be b to corporate level Federal income tax on nebine that is current
distributed to shareholders provided the distrittutexceeds 90% of REIT taxable income. We may naakelection under the Code to t
distributions declared in the current year as ithistions of the prior yeas' taxable income. Upon election, the Code provitiag in certai
circumstances, a dividend declared subsequenetoldise of an entity’s taxable year and prior méktended due date of the enstyax retur
may be considered as having been made in thetpsgrear in satisfaction of income distribution uggments.

To the extent our taxable REIT subsidiaries distebtheir retained earnings through dividends tocCP@bmmercial, these divider
would be included in REIT taxable income when dstied. From 2005 to 2012, approximately $6.7 wmlliof taxable earnings we
accumulated. We distributed $2.0 million of earsifigpm our taxable REIT subsidiaries to PMC Comra¢ituring 2008, $0.3 million durir
2010 and $1.0 million during 2011.
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Primarily as a result of the timing differences @@ain recognition on Secondary Market Loan Salescombined REIT taxable incol
(loss) and taxable REIT subsidiaries’ (“TRS’s&8xable income (net of income tax expense) is rizdiedifferent than our net income (los
The following table reconciles our net income (Jassour Taxable Income (Loss), Net of Current Expense:

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Combinec REIT TRE's
(In thousands, except footnot:
Net income (loss $ (2,179 $ (3,019 $ 840
Book vs. tax timing differences 1,15
3,926 2,771 (1)
Taxable income (los¢ 1,747 (248) 1,995
Current income tax expen (821) - (821)
Taxable Income (Loss), Net of Current Tax Expe $ 926 $ (248) $ 1,174

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Combinec REIT TRE's
(In thousands, except footnot:

Net income $ 3,647 $ 3,516 $ 131
Book vs. tax timing difference 3,560 2,271 1,289 1)
Taxable incomt 7,207 5,787 1,420
Special iterr(2) (450) (450) -
Special iter(3) (678) (678) -
Dividends paid from TRS to REI (1,000) (1,000) -
Taxable income adjusted for divide 5,079 3,659 1,420
Current income tax expen (483) - (483)
Taxable Income, Net of Current Tax Expe $ 4,596 $ 3,659 $ 937

(1) Includes $1,257,000 and $1,603,000 of originateairtg differences during 2012 and 2011, respectjvediated to Secondary Marl
Loan Sales and income tax expel

(2) Recognition of deferred gain for tax purposes g@ra@perty previously owned by our-balance sheet variable interest ent

(3) Timing difference related to n-deductible expenses related to strategic alterest

Taxable Income, Net of Current Tax Expense is @efias reported net income (loss), adjusted for hveokus tax timing differenc
and special items. Special items may include, baihat limited to, unusual and infrequent raperating items. We use Taxable Income, N
Current Tax Expense to measure and evaluate ovatopes. We believe that the results provide aulsefalysis of ongoing operating trends.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting fromanges in various market metrics. We are subfeatarket risk including liquidit
risk, real estate risk and interest rate risk asctébed below. Although management believes tleatjttantitative analysis on interest rate
below is indicative of our sensitivity to intereate changes, it does not adjust for other potémtieanges including, among other things, cr
quality, size and composition of our consolidatathhce sheet and other business developments dlidd affect our financial condition a
net income (loss). Accordingly, no assurances @ngiben that actual results would not differ madlyi from the potential outcome simula
by these estimates.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the potential that we would bealle to meet our obligations as they come due Isecatian inability to liquida
assets or obtain funding. We are subject to chaimgébee debt and collateralized mortgage marketes€ markets are continuing to experi
disruptions, which could continue to have an advérgact on our earnings and financial condition.

Current conditions in the debt markets include ceduliquidity and increased risk adjusted premiufiese conditions have increa
the cost and reduced the availability of financswurces. The market for trading and issuance in &B&inues to experience disrupti
resulting from reduced investor demand for thesirities and increased investor yield requirememtdight of these market conditions,
expect to finance our loan portfolio in the shantrd with our current capital, SBIC debentures dn@dRevolver.

REAL ESTATE RISK

The value of our commercial mortgage loans andatility to sell such loans, if necessary, are inpddy market conditions tt
affect the properties that are the primary colltéor our loans. Property values and operatingiime from the properties may be affe
adversely by a number of factors, including, butlimited to:

< national, regional and local economic conditic

« significant rises in gasoline prices within a shmetiod of time if there is a concurrent decreaseusiness and leisure trav

« local real estate conditions (including an oversypp commercial real estate

e natural disasters, including hurricanes and eagkegs, acts of war and/or terrorism and other evérasmay cause performai

declines and/or losses to the owners and operatohe real estate securing our log

« changes or continued weakness in the demand faetirservice hospitality propertie

« construction quality, construction cost, age anslgie

» demographic factor:

e amount and timing of required property improvemdtdranchisors

 uninsured losse:

e environmental, zoning and other governmental lamgsragulations

 increases in operating expenses (such as enertp) fasthe owners of the property; a

« limitations in the availability and cost of leves

In the event property cash flows decrease, a baranay have difficulty repaying our loan, which twbuesult in losses to us.
addition, decreases in property values reduce d@hgevof the collateral and the potential proceegslable to a borrower to repay our lo¢
which could also cause us to suffer losses. Deesdasproperty values reduce the value of our RE@hvcould cause us to suffer losses.
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The following analysis of our provision for loanskes quantifies the negative impact to our operaticom increased losses on
retained portfolio:

Years ended December

2012 2011
Provision for Loan Losse (In thousands
As reported (1 $ 2,50t $ 82¢
Annual loan losses increase by 50 basis point 3,50¢ 1,86(
Annual loan losses increase by 100 basis pa)i 4,51z 2,89/

(1) Excludes reductions of loan losses and recovt
(2) Represents provision for loan losses based on &s&®in losses as a percentage of our weightechgedroans Receivab
Subject To Credit Risk, for the periods indical

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factorsluding governmental monetary and tax policidemestic and internatior
economic and political considerations and othetofac

Since our loans are predominantly variatdée, our operating results will depend in large pa LIBOR and the prime rate. One of
primary determinants of our operating results e dkfference between the income from our loansamdborrowing costs. Most of our deb
based on LIBOR or the prime rate. The objectivéhi strategy is to minimize the impact of intenege changes on our net interest income.

VALUATION OF LOANS

Our loans are recorded at cost and adjusted bjoantorigination fees and discounts (which are gacted as adjustments of yi
over the life of the loan) and loan loss reseriresrder to determine the estimated fair value wfloans, we use a present value techniqt
the anticipated future cash flows using certairuaggions including a current discount rate, potdrarepayment risks and loan losses. |
were required to sell our loans at a time when welld not otherwise do so, there can be no assurtltenanagemerst’estimates of fe
values would be obtained and losses could be iadurr

At December 31, 2012, our loans were 83% variafie-at spreads over LIBOR or the prime rate. bes or decreases in inte
rates will generally not have a material impacttbe fair value of our variable-rate loans. We h2@@2 million of variablerate loans
December 31, 2012. The estimated fair value ofvaniablerate loans ($182.8 million at December 31, 2012)eigendent upon several fac
including changes in interest rates and the mddkdhe type of loans that we have originated.

We had $42.0 million and $45.0 million of fixedte loans at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respbctiVhe estimated fair value
these fixedrate loans approximates their cost and is depengsm several factors including changes in interatgs and the market for
types of loans that we have originated. Since chsuig market interest rates do not affect the @stierates on our fixedhte loans, any chang
in these rates do not have an immediate impactuorinterest income. Our interest rate risk on axed+ate loans is primarily related to Ic
prepayments and maturities.

The average maturity of our loan portfolio is I#fsan its average contractual terms because of ynegrats. Assuming market liquidi
the average life of mortgage loans tends to ineredsen the current mortgage rates are substantialyer than rates on existing mortg
loans and, conversely, decrease when the curremtgaye rates are substantially lower than ratesexigting mortgage loans (due
refinancings of fixed-rate loans).

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had $200.2 milind $191.1 million of variablete loans, respectively, and $80.0 million
$82.7 million of variable-rate debt, respective@dn the difference between our variable-rate loantstanding and our variabtete dek
($120.2 million and $108.4 million at December 3@212 and 2011, respectively) we have interestrisite To the extent variable rates decr
our interest income net of interest expense woaltehse.
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The sensitivity of our variableate loans and debt to changes in interest ratesgigarly monitored and analyzed by measuring
characteristics of our assets and liabilities. \&%&eas interest rate risk in terms of the poteaffatt on interest income net of interest expen
an effort to ensure that we are insulated from sigpificant adverse effects from changes in interates. As a result of our predomina
variablerate portfolio, our earnings are susceptible ton@peaieduced during periods of lower interest rafgased on our analysis of -
sensitivity of interest income and interest expeats@ecember 31, 2012 and 2011, if the consolidasdgince sheet were to remain constan
no actions were taken to alter the existing inter@® sensitivity, each hypothetical 25 basis pmduction in interest rates would have redi
net income (or increased net loss) by approxime#80,000 and $271,000, respectively, on an anpasik. Since LIBOR has already b
reduced to historically low levels, further signéint negative impacts from lower LIBOR interesesafire not anticipated. In addition,
REIT, the use of hedging interest rate risk is ¢gply only provided on debt instruments due to ptéd REIT compliance issues. Bene
derived from hedging strategies not based on dltuiments {.e ., investments) may be deemed bad income for REH#lification purpose
The use of a hedge strategy (on our debt instruisherduld only be beneficial to fix our cost of fumdnd hedge against rising interest rates.

DEBT

Our debt was comprised of junior subordinated natesured borrowings government guaranteed loans, SBIC debentures &
Revolver at December 31, 2012. At December 31, 20122011, $17.2 million and $13.2 million of ownsolidated debt had fixed rates
interest and therefore was not affected by changagerest rates. Our fixed-rate debt is comprise&BIC debentures. Our variahiate dek
is based on LIBOR and the prime rate and thus stibje adverse changes in market interest ratesurdeg) there were no increases
decreases in the balance outstanding under owblerate debt at December 31, 2012, each hypothet@@lbhsis point increase in intel
rates would increase interest expense and theréémmease net income by approximately $800,000.

The following presents the principal amounts byry&faexpected maturity, weighted average interatts and estimated fair value
evaluate the expected cash flows and sensitivitytesest rate changes of our outstanding debeatbber 31, 2012 and 2011.

December 31, 201

Years Ending December & Carrying Fair
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Value Value (1)
(Dollars in thousands
Fixec-rate debt (2 $ 4,19 $ = $ 4,00C $ = $ = $ 9,00( $ 17,19( $ 18,02°
Variable-rate debt (LIBOR and prime base
(3) (4) 1,93¢ 13,17: 1,312 1,35¢ 1,397 60,81: 79,97¢ 75,49¢
Totals $ 6,127 $ 13,17: $ 5,312 $ 1,352 $ 1,39% $ 69,81: $ 97,16¢ $ 93,52¢

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a presentevasiculation based on prices of the same or siniiistruments after considering ri
current interest rates and remaining maturiti

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at December 31, 2012 was 4..

(3) Principal payments on the secured borrowings dependent upon cash flows received from the undgrlpans. Our estimate of th
repayment is based upon scheduled principal paysrmamthe underlying loans. Our estimate will difiemm actual amounts to the ext
we experience prepayments and/or loan liquidatemd charg-offs.

(4) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at December 31, 2012 was 3..
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December 31, 201

Years Ending December & Carrying Fair
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Value Value (1)
(Dollars in thousands
Fixec-rate debt (2 $ = $ 4,181 $ = $ 4,00( $ = $ 5,00( $ 13,18: $ 13,76:
Variable-rate debt (LIBOR and prime base
(3) 4) 6,10¢ 86¢ 18,697 92¢ 961 55,12( 82,68( 78,20¢
Totals $ 6,10¢ $ 5,05C $ 18,69 $  4,92¢ $ 961 $ 60,12( $ 95,86 $ 91,96¢

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a presentevediculation based on prices of the same or sinmilstruments after considering ri
current interest rates and remaining maturiti

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at December 31, 2011 was 5.!

(3) Principal payments on the secured borrowings angethelent upon cash flows received from the undeyligans. Our estimate of th
repayment is based upon scheduled principal paysr@amthe underlying loans. Our estimate will difierm actual amounts to the ext
we experience prepayments and/or loan losses. &payment of the 2003 Joint Venture structured nsteshown in the year endi
December 31, 2012 based on actual exercise “ clear-up cal” option on February 15, 201

(4) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at December 31, 2011 was 3.,

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this Item 8 is herebgadrporated by reference to our Financial Stateskeginning on page F-of this
Form 10-K.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participatiooof Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financialfidér, management has evalue
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls arat@dures (as defined under rules 13a-15(e) andl4fe)- of the Securities Exchange Ac
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act3)of December 31, 2012. Based on that evaluatienChief Executive Officer and Chief Finan
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls gamdcedures were effective in ensuring that inforamatequired to be disclosed by
Company in the reports that it files or submitsite SEC under the Exchange Act is recorded, predessimmarized and reported within
time periods specified by the SECfules and forms and include controls and pro@=idesigned to ensure the information requirede
disclosed by the Company in such reports is accat@dland communicated to management, includingChief Executive Officer and o
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allamely decisions regarding required disclosure.

MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC |IAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimng adequate internal control over financigasing as defined in Rule 13a-15
() under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Thmmpanys internal control over financial reporting is dg®d to provide reasona
assurance regarding the reliability of financigbading and the preparation of financial statemdatsexternal purposes in accordance
generally accepted accounting principles. We regikthe results of managementissessment with the Audit Committee of the Boértrus
Managers.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgisgaternal control over financial reporting as addd@mber 31, 2012. In maki
this assessment, management used the criteriarfiebly the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiointhe Treadway Commission (COSO
Internal Contro-Integrated Framework Based on their assessment, management deterthiaeds of December 31, 2012, the Compsany
internal control over financial reporting was effee based on those criteria.
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The effectiveness of the Compasyinternal control over financial reporting as otdember 31, 2012 has been auditer
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisfaiblic accounting firm as stated in their repdrich appears herein.

LIMITATIONS ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls or ¢
internal controls will prevent all error and frau&l control system, no matter how well designed apdrated, can provide only reasonable
absolute, assurance that the control systembjectives will be met. Further, the design afoatrol system must reflect the fact that there
resource constraints, and the benefits of contralst be considered relative to their costs. Becafighe inherent limitations in all cont
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide laibs@ssurance that all control issues and instaot&aud, if any, have been detected. T
inherent limitations include the realities thatgunaents in decision making can be faulty, and theakdowns can occur because of simple
or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented byirldividual acts of some persons, by collusiotwaf or more people, or by managen
override of the controls. The design of any systémmontrols is based in part upon certain assumptabout the likelihood of future events,
there can be no assurance that any design wilkgdcin achieving its stated goals under all paaéftture conditions. Over time, controls n
become inadequate because of changes in condibionieterioration in the degree of compliance witlsaxiated policies or procedul
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost affieccontrol system, misstatements due to errdramrd may occur and not be detected.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

There have been no changes in our internal coaw®l financial reporting that occurred during theader ended December 31, 2
that have materially affected, or are reasonakbjyjito materially affect, our internal control avf@ancial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
ltem 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 10 with redjéo directors and executive officers of the Conyp@ompliance with Section 16
of the Exchange Act, the audit committee of the rHBaand the audit committee financial expert is bgrancorporated by reference to
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the S&hin 120 days after the year covered by thisfF@0K with respect to the Annual Meeti
of Shareholders.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsHthi trust managers, officers and employees wisicvailable on our webs
at www.pmctrust.com. Shareholders may requesteadopy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethara:f

PMC Commercial Trust
Attention: Investor Relations
17950 Preston Road, Suite 600
Dallas, Texas 75252

(972) 349-3235
www.pmctrust.com

We have also adopted a Code of Ethical ConducBémior Financial Officers setting forth a code thfies applicable to our princif
executive officer, principal financial officer angrincipal accounting officer, which is available aur website at www.pmctrust.cc
Shareholders may request a free copy of the Co#igha¢al Conduct for Senior Financial Officers frdhe address and phone number set
above.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted Corporate Governance Guidelineshwduie available on our website at www.pmctrust.c&tmareholders m.
request a free copy of the Corporate GovernancddgBnes from the address and phone number setdbudtiie under “-Code of Ethics.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 regardagcutive compensation and the compensation coaenitt the Board is here
incorporated by reference to our definitive proxgtesment to be filed with the SEC within 120 dafterathe year covered by this Form KO-
with respect to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The following table provides information at DecemBg&, 2012 with respect to our common shares, red@p#ons or restricted shar
that may be issued under existing equity compemsatians, all of which have been approved by siddelns.

@) (b) (c)

Number of common
shares remaining availal

Number of common for future issuances und
shares equity
to be issued upon compensation plans
exercise of outstandil Weighted average (excluding shares reflect
Plan exercise price of
Category options outstanding optior in column (a))
Equity incentive plar 112,500 $8.21 231,250

Additional information regarding security ownerslipcertain beneficial owners and management aladed: shareholder matters
hereby incorporated by reference to our definipvexy statement to be filed with the SEC within Id4ys after the year covered by this F
10-K with respect to the Annual Meeting of Shareleos.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 regardaegtain relationships and related transactions direttor independence is her:
incorporated by reference to our definitive proxgteament to be filed with the SEC within 120 dafterathe year covered by this Form KO-
with respect to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 regardprincipal accountant fees and services is herebgrporated by reference to
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the S&@hin 120 days after the year covered by thisr@0K with respect to the Annual Meeti
of Shareholders.
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PART IV
ltem 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this report

(1) Financial Statemen-
See index to Financial Statements set forth on pagy®f this Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedi-
Schedule IV - Mortgage Loans on Real Estate

(3) Exhibits -
See Exhibit Index beginning on page E-1 of thisnFa0-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this repot
be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, heoedurlyy authorized.

PMC Commercial Trus
By: /s/ Jan F. Salit
Jan F. SalitPresident

Dated March 18, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons in t
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ JAN F. SALIT Chairman of the Board of Trust March 18, 2013
Jan F. Sali Managers, President, Chi

Executive Officer an

Secretary (Principé

Executive Officer,

/s/ BARRY N. BERLIN Chief Financial Officer and March 18, 2013
Barry N. Berlin Executive Vice Presidel

(Principal Financial an

Principal Accounting Officer

/s NATHAN COHEN Trust Manager March 18, 2013
Nathan Cohel

/s DR. MARTHA ROSEMORE MORROW Trust Manager March 18, 2013
Dr. Martha Rosemore Morro

/s BARRY A. IMBER Trust Manager March 18, 2013
Barry A. Imber

/s/ IRVING MUNN Trust Manager March 18, 2013
Irving Munn
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountifigm

To the Shareholders and Board of Trust Managers of
PMC Commercial Trust:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfeintsome, comprehensive income, eqt
and cash flows present fairly, in all material s, the financial position of PMC Commercial Tr(the “Company”and its subsidiaries
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of tpeérations and their cash flows for each of theed years in the period eni
December 31, 2012 in conformity with accountinqipiples generally accepted in the United StateSnoérica. In addition, in our opinion, t
financial statement schedule listed in the indepeaping under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, innadlterial respects, the information set f
therein when read in conjunction with the relatedsolidated financial statements. Also in our aminithe Company maintained, in all mate
respects, effective internal control over finanaieporting as of December 31, 2012, based on ieritestablished irinternal Control —
Integrated Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohghe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compsny
management is responsible for these financial stés and financial statement schedules, for mainta effective internal control ov
financial reporting and for its assessment of tiieciveness of internal control over financial ogjing, included in “Managemermt’Report o
Internal Control over Financial Reportingppearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is xpress opinions on these financial statement
the financial statement schedules, and on the Coygdnternal control over financial reporting basedaur integrated audits. We condu
our audits in accordance with the standards oPititdic Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require the
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonalderasce about whether the financial statementfreeeof material misstatement and whe
effective internal control over financial reportivgas maintained in all material respects. Our audit the financial statements inclu
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingutheunts and disclosures in the financial statespassessing the accounting principles
and significant estimates made by management, ealdating the overall financial statement preséotatOur audit of internal control o\
financial reporting included obtaining an undersdiag of internal control over financial reportingssessing the risk that a material weak
exists, and testing and evaluating the design aedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed risk. Our audits also incl
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdits provide a reasonable basis fol
opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdiose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management :
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readsleaassurance regarding prevention or timely deteaf unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttemisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Dallas, Texas

March 18, 2013
F-2
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Loans receivable, ne

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

Commercial mortgage loans receiva
SBIC commercial mortgage loans receive
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured mongs

SBA 7(a) loans receivab

Commercial mortgage loans receivable, subjectrtiired notes payab

Loans receivable, ni
Cash and cash equivalel
Real estate owne

Restricted cash and cash equivale

Other asset

Total assets

Liabilities:
Debt:

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Secured borrowing- government guaranteed loz

Junior subordinated not
SBIC debentures payak
Revolving credit facility
Structured notes payak

Debt

Borrower advance

Accounts payable and accrued expetl

Dividends payabli

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenc

Beneficiaries equity:

Common shares of beneficial interest; authorize®dmd,000 shares of $0.01 par value;
11,125,883 and 11,110,883 shares issued at Dec&hp2012 and 2011, respectively;
10,589,554 and 10,574,554 shares outstanding ariteer 31, 2012 and 2011,

respectively
Additional paic-in capital

Net unrealized appreciation of retained interastsansferred asse

Cumulative net incom
Cumulative dividend

Beneficiaries equity before treasury stock
Less: Treasury stock; at cost, 536,329 shares e@rbiger 31, 2012 and 20

Total beneficiaries’ equity

Noncontrolling interest- cumulative preferred stock of subsidi:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

F-3

December 31,

2012 2011
125,515 133,327
47,153 32,153
38,349 30,476
27,974 22,997
- 15,474
238,991 234,427
1,230 6,502
739 1,259

- 2,233
6,747 6,826
247,707 251,247
41,008 32,546
27,070 27,070
17,190 13,181
11,900 17,800
: 5,264
97,168 95,861
5,942 3,863
4,078 2,095
1,293 1,692
108,481 103,511
111 111
153,072 152,934
278 394
173,917 176,096
(184,151) (177,798)
143,227 151,73
(4,901) (4,901)
138,326 146,836
900 900
139,226 147,736
247,707 251,247

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Interest incomt
Premium incomt
Other income

Total revenue:

Expenses:
Salaries and related bene:
Strategic alternative
Interest
General and administrati
Severance and related bene
Provision for loan losses, n

Total expense

Income (loss) before income tax benefit (provisiorgnd discontinued
operations, net of tax

Income tax benefit (provisiot

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Discontinued operations, net of ta
Net income (loss

Weighted average shares outstandir
Basic

Diluted

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per shal
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Discontinued operations, net of t

Net income (loss

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
$ 13,89¢€ $ 13,571 13,537
1,889 1,450 709
1,280 1,055 1,217
17,065 16,076 15,463
4,273 4,329 3,927
3,870 778 -
3,538 3,693 4,016
2,127 2,010 2,168
2,114 ] )
1,934 460 641
17,856 11,270 10,752
(791) 4,806 4,711
(565) (114) 131
(1,356) 4,692 4,842
(823) (1,045) (545)
$ (2,179) $ 3,647 4,297
10,585 10,570 10,554
10,585 10,584 10,570
$ (0.13) $ 0.44 0.46
(0.08) (0.10 (0.05
$ (0.21) $ 0.34 0.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net income (loss) $ (2,179 § 3,647 § 4,297
Change in unrealized appreciation of retained @tsrin transferred asse
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) ariglngng perioc (5) 223 240
Realized gains included in net income (Ic (1112) (105) (24)
Change in net unrealized appreciation of retaingetésts in transferred ass (116) 118 216
Comprehensive income (loss $ (2,295) § 3,765 § 4,513

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Net
Unrealized
Appreciation
Common Cumulative
Shares of of Retained
Beneficial Additional Interests in Cumulative Preferred
Interest Par Paid-in Transferred Net Cumulative Treasury Stock of Total
Outstanding Value Capital Assets Income Dividends Stock Subsidiary Equity
Balances, January 1, 201 10,548,354 ¢ 111 ¢ 152,611 $ 325 ¢ 167,686 ¢ (164,274) ¢ (4901) $ 900 ¢ 152,458
Net unrealized appreciatic - - - 216 - - - - 216
Cumulative effect adjustme - - - (265) 466 - - - 201
Share-based compensation expe 9,700 - 134 - - - - - 134
Shares issued through exercise
stock options 1,500 - 11 - - - - - 11
Dividends ($0.64 per shar - - - - - (6,757) - - (6,757)
Net income - - - - 4,297 - - - 4,297
Balances, December 31, 20: 10,559,554 111 152,756 276 172,449 (171,031) (4,901) 90C 150,560
Net unrealized appreciatic - - - 118 - - - - 118
Share-based compensation expe 15,000 - 178 - - - - - 178
Dividends ($0.64 per shar - - - - - (6,767) - - (6,767)
Net income - - - - 3,647 - - - 3,647
Balances, December 31, 20! 10,574,554 111 152,934 394 176,096 (177,798) (4,901) 90C 147,736
Net unrealized depreciatic - - - (116) - - - - (116)
Sharebased compensation expe 15,000 - 138 - = = = = 138
Dividends ($0.60 per shar - - - - - (6,353) - - (6,353)
Net loss - - - - (2,179) - - - (2,179)
Balances, December 31, 20: 10,589,554 ¢ 111 § 153,072 $ 278 ¢ 173917 ¢ (184,151 § (4901) % 900 ¢ 139,226

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss $ (2,179) $ 3,647 $ 4,297
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rethcused in operating
activities:
Impairment losse 341 887 325
Net losses (gains) on sales of real es 19 (532) (78)
Deferred income taxe (218) (369) (645)
Provision for loan losses, n 1,934 460 641
Allowance for accounts receivak 170 - -
Unrealized premium adjustme 1,431 1,441 1,501
Amortization and accretion, n (153) (135) 231
Shar+-based compensatic 138 178 134
Capitalized loan origination cos (348) (260) (316)
Loans funded, held for sa (26,125) (26,350) (27,602)
Proceeds from sale of guaranteed Ic 18,473 15,774 -
Principal collected on loar 740 1,812 427
Loan fees remitted, ni (73) (81) (20)
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Borrower advance 2,079 401 1,104
Accounts payable and accrued expei 1,922 (614) 272
Other liabilities 60 (25) (54)
Other asset 14 (296) (321)
Net cash used in operating activitie (1,775) (4,062) (20,104)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Loans fundec (28,036) (12,002) (10,838)
Principal collected on loans receiva 27,822 19,661 20,572
Principal collected on retained interests in trarmsfd assel 107 132 200
Purchase of furniture, fixtures, and equipmr (33) (31) -
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned 716 415 2,373
Proceeds from (investment in) unconsolidated sudusi - 1,373 (1,024)
Release of (investment in) restricted cash and egslvalents, ne 2,233 3,553 (1,024)
Net cash provided by investing activitie: 2,809 13,101 10,259
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common sh - - 11
Proceeds from (repayment of) revolving credit faginet (5,900) 4,000 (9,200)
Proceeds from issuance of SBIC debent 4,000 5,000 -
Payment of principal on structured notes pay: (5,265) (16,893) (5,404)
Proceeds from secured borrowir- government guaranteed loe 8,498 11,639 28,445
Payment of principal on secured borrowil- government guaranteed lo. (740) (1,812) (427)
Redemption of redeemable preferred stock of sudnsi - - (2,000)
Payment of borrowing cos (147) (326) -
Payment of dividend (6,752) (6,787) (6,776)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (6,306) (5,179) 4,649
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake (5,272) 3,860 (5,196)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ye: 6,502 2,642 7,838
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ye: $ 1,230 & 6,502 $ 2,642

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesonsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Business

PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” or togethth its wholly-owned subsidiaries, “we,” “us” oolr”) was organized in 1993 a
Texas real estate investment trust (“REIT”). Oumoaon shares of beneficial interest (“Common Shareg® traded on the NYSE Mk
(symbol “PCC”).We primarily obtain income from the yield and othelated fee income earned on our investments roniending activitie:
To date, these investments have principally be¢harhospitality industry.

” o

Principles of Consolidatior

The accompanying consolidated financial statemlea® been prepared by management in accordanc&v@ttgenerally accepted accoun
principles (“GAAP”). We consolidate entities thatewcontrol as well as variable interest entities |EY’) for which we are the prima
beneficiary. A VIE is an entity for which contrd achieved through means other than voting rigktisentity should consolidate a VIE if
entity will absorb a majority of the VIE's expectkabses, receive a majority of the V#Eexpected residual returns, or both. To the extendc
not have a majority voting interest, we use theitgguethod to account for investments for which nae/e the ability to exercise signific.
influence over operating and financial policiesn€alidated net income includes our share of theeagtings of any VIE for which we are
the primary beneficiary. All material intercompaglances and transactions have been eliminated.

During 2005, PMC Commercial issued notes payable ‘@unior Subordinated Notesdj approximately $27,070,000 due March 30, 203§
special purpose subsidiary deemed to be a VIE aodrded our investment in the VIE of $820,000. A®sult, our exposure related to
Junior Subordinated Notes is $26,250,000. The duditordinated Notes, included in our consoliddiathnce sheets, are subordinate
PMC Commerciab existing debt. Since PMC Commercial is not coer®d to be the primary beneficiary, the VIE is consolidated in PM
Commercial’s financial statements and the equityhie is used to account for our investment in thi. vV

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemel

Accounting Standards Concept (“ASC”) topic 310 Wed2011-02 (“ASC 2011-02") was issued in April 20ABC 201102 clarified guidanc

for loans which have been restructured, on a @gditvaluation of whether (1) it has granted a casioasand (2) a debtor is experienc

financial difficulties. ASC 20112 was effective for the first interim or annuatipd beginning on or after June 15, 2011, and lesn applie

retrospectively to the beginning of the annual gerof adoption. As a result of adopting the amemimén ASC 201132, we reassessed

restructurings that occurred on or after JanuargQl1 for identification as troubled debt restruictgs. We identified as troubled d

restructurings certain loans receivable for which kan loss reserves had previously been measungelr a general loan loss methodoli

Upon identifying these loans receivable as trouldlebit restructurings we identified them as impaurader the guidance in Section 3103%-
The amendments of ASC 2011-02 required prospeecipmication of the impairment measurement guidanc8ection 310-1B5 for thos

loans receivable newly identified as impaired.

ASC topic 820 Update 2011-04 (“ASC 2011-048Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasurerapdtDisclosure Requirements
U.S. GAAP, was issued in May 2011. This ASU prodigalditional guidance on fair value measuremendsraquired additional fair val
disclosures including quantitative and qualitaiiv®rmation for recurring Level 3 fair value measoments. In addition, entities must report
level in the fair valuédnierarchy of assets and liabilities not recordethatvalue but where fair value is disclosed. TABU was effective fc
interim and annual periods beginning after Decembe2011. As a result of adopting the amendmensSC 201104, we provided addition
fair value disclosure as considered necessary.

Loans Receivable, ne

We primarily originate loans to small businesselateralized by first liens on the real estate lo related business. Loans receivable
carried at their unamortized principal balance lessloan origination fees, discounts and loan les&rves. For loans originated undel
Small Business Administration’s (“SBA”) 7(a) Guateed Loan Program (“SBA 7(a) Progranuf)on sale of the SBA guaranteed portion o
loans which are accounted for as sales, the ungiggme portion of the loan retained by us is valaed fair value basis and a discount
“Retained Loan Discount”) is recorded as a reductiobasis of the retained portion of the loan.
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We have a quarterly review process to identify andluate potential exposure to loan losses. Ldaaisréquire specific identification revi
are identified based on one or more negative cheiatics including, but not limited to, nggayment or lack of timely payment of princi
and/or interest, nopayment or lack of timely payment of property tatesan extended period of time, insurance defaattd/or franchis
defaults. The specific identification evaluatiorglmes with an evaluation of the estimated fair vahighe loan. In determining estimated
value, management utilizes the present value ofethgected future cash flows discounted at the kaaffective interest rate and/or
estimation of underlying collateral values usingisals, broker price opinions, tax assessed salnd/or revenue analysis. Management
appraisals as tools in conjunction with other dateants of collateral value to estimate collaterallues, not as the sole determinant of v
due to the current economic environment. The ptgpealuation takes into consideration current infation on property values in general
value changes in commercial real estate and/oritadisp properties. The probability of liquidatiois then determined. These probab
determinations include macroeconomic factors, tlwation of the property and economic environmengngtthe property is located, indut
specific factors relating primarily to the hospitalindustry, our historical experience with similaorrowers and/or individual borrower
collateral characteristics, and in certain circlanses, the strength of the guarantors. The ligaidairobability is then applied to the identif
loss exposure to determine the general or speei$ierve for that loan and the ultimate determimagi® to whether it is considered impaired.

Real Estate Owned'REQO”)

REO consists of properties acquired by foreclogugartial or total satisfaction of ngrerforming loans. REO acquired in satisfaction tdar
is recorded at estimated fair value less estimebsts to sell the property at the date of foreal®siny excess of the carrying value of the
over the estimated fair value of the property lessmated costs to sell is chargeffi-to the loan loss reserve when title to the prop i<
obtained. Any excess of the estimated fair valuthefproperty less estimated costs to sell anadahging value of the loan is recorded as
on foreclosure within discontinued operations wkia to the property is obtained. Subsequent tedlmsure, REO is valued at the lowe
cost or market. Any impairment losses and operatogds subsequent to foreclosure are recordedndibtcontinued operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We generally consider all highly liquid investmemsrchased with an original maturity of three maentir less to be cash equivale
Generally, we maintain cash and cash equivalentca@ounts in excess of federally insured limitshwat financial institution. We regula
monitor the financial institution and do not bekea significant credit risk is associated with de@osits in excess of federally insured amount:

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivaler

Represented the collection and cash reserve accoeqired to be held on behalf of the structurettimlders as collateral pursuant to
securitization transaction documents. Cash resacosunts were required to be used to repay thetsted noteholders pursuant to
transaction documents.

Deferred Borrowing Cost:
Costs incurred in connection with the issuanceetift ire capitalized and are being amortized toresgoever the life of the related obliga
using the effective interest method. Deferred heing costs are included in other assets on ouralmtaged balance sheets.

Borrower Advance:

In general, as part of the monitoring process tdafywe¢hat the borrowerstash equity is utilized for its intended purpose, receive depos
from our borrowers and release funds upon presentaf appropriate documentation. Funds held oralfedf borrowers are included a
liability on the consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition Policie

Interest Income

Interest income includes interest earned on loadsoar shorterm investments and the amortization of net lodgiration fees and discour
Interest income on loans is accrued as earnedthaétlaccrual of interest suspended when the relatedbecomes a naecrual loan. A loe
receivable is generally classified as non-accragdNon-Accrual Loan”)if (1) it is past due as to payment of principalmerest for a period
60 days or more, (2) any portion of the loan issiffed as doubtful or is chargedf or (3) if the repayment in full of the principand/o
interest is in doubt. Generally, loans are chamgiédvhen management determines that we will be lenbcollect any remaining amounts
under the loan agreement, either through liquidatibcollateral or other means. Interest incomeadonAccrual Loan is recognized on eit
the cash basis or the cost recovery basis.
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Origination fees and direct loan origination costst, are deferred and recognized as an adjustafeyield over the life of the related lo
receivable using the effective interest methode&lirorigination costs include broker fees paidarif/, and capitalization of allocated pay
costs in originating the loan.

For loans recorded with a Retained Loan Discourgse discounts are recognized as an adjustmerieldf gver the life of the related lo
receivable using the effective interest method.

Premium Income

We sell the government guaranteed portion of oul 3B) Program loans to investors. These governmeatanteed portions may be sold
(1) a cash premium and the minimum 1% SBA requiedicing spread, (2) future servicing spread gretitan 1% and no cash premiun
(3) future servicing spread greater than 1% an@% tash premium. The government guaranteed pasfitwans sold for a cash premium
the minimum 1% SBA required servicing spread amomded as sale§.e., we record premium income). Premium income repras#m
difference between the relative fair value attrétl¢ to the sale of the government guaranteedopoadi a loan originated under the SBA -
Program for a cash premium and the SBA requiredsé&Peicing spread and the principal balance (cdkiaed to the loan. We are require
permanently treat certain of the proceeds recdneed legally sold portions of loans (those loanklswmlely for excess spread and those sol
a cash premium and excess spread) as secured bagsoa liability on our consolidated balance shéat the life of the loan. To the ext
secured borrowings include cash premiums, thesmipnes are amortized as a reduction to interestresg@ever the life of the loan using
effective interest method and any remaining balasfelly amortized when the loan is repaid in full

Other Income

Other income consists primarily of servicing incomeepayment fees, income from retained interestsansferred assets and other loan re
income. Servicing income represents the fees weivedor servicing the sold portion of our SBA 7@jogram loans and is recognizes
revenue when the services are performed. Histdyjoak also recorded servicing income for fees inakfor servicing loans of our offalanci
sheet securitizations. Prepayment fees are reaadj@ig revenue when loans are prepaid and the feedéived. Income from retained inter:
in transferred assets represents the accretiongnéed using the effective interest method) onretained interests which is determined b
on estimates of future cash flows. Other loan egldées, including late fees, are recognized asntey when chargeable, assuming collectil
is reasonably assured.

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under thaspwas of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asrated (the “Code”)To the extent w
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally wihtrbe subject to a Federal corporate income taausriaxable income that is distributed to
shareholders. We may, however, be subject to ceRatleral excise taxes and state and local taxesuoiincome and property. If PN
Commercial fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxalkar, it will be subject to Federal income taaesegular corporate rates (including
applicable alternative minimum tax) and will notdlgle to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent bdexaears. In order to remain qualified i
REIT under the Code, we must satisfy various regoénts in each taxable year, including, among sthienitations on share ownership, a
diversification, sources of income, and the disttitin of at least 90% of our taxable income wittlie specified time in accordance with
Code.

PMC Commercial has wholly-owned taxable REIT suidsids (“TRS’s”) which are subject to Federal income taxes. Thenircgenerate
from the taxable REIT subsidiaries is taxed at radroorporate rates. Deferred tax assets and ligsilare recognized for the future
consequences attributable to differences betweefiirtancial statement carrying amounts of existisgets and liabilities and their respec
tax bases.

We have established a policy on classificationafgities and interest related to audits of our Fdmd state income tax returns. If incur
our policy for recording interest and penaltiesoagsted with audits will be to record such itemsaasomponent of income before income
benefit (provision) and discontinued operationsidees, if incurred, will be recorded in generatiadministrative expense and interest pa
received will be recorded in interest expense trast income, respectively, in the consolidatatestents of income (loss).
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Earnings (Loss) per Share'EPS”)
EPS is computed by dividing net income (loss) e/ weightedaverage number of shares outstanding. Diluted BEI8des the dilutive effe
if any, of share-based compensation awards.

Distributions to Shareholder:
Distributions to shareholders are recorded on heiddend date.

Share-Based Compensation Plans
We have options outstanding and issue restrictadeshunder shatgased compensation plans described more fully ite Nd. We use fe
value recognition provisions to account for all asggranted, modified or settled.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftynwith GAAP requires us to make estimates and rapsions that affect the repor
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosumatingent assets and liabilities at the datdeffinancial statements and the reported am
of revenues and expenses during the reporting gheAatual results could differ from our estimat€ur most sensitive estimates invc
determination of loan loss reserves and valuatfamuoreal estate owned.

Note 2. Loans Receivable, net:

Loans receivable, net, consisted of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands

Commercial mortgage loal § 128,401 $ 134,835
SBIC commercial mortgage loa 47,621 32,416
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowi 37,909 30,151
SBA 7(a) loan: 28,196 23,238
Commercial mortgage loans, subject to structurédspayable (1 - 15,474

Total loans receivabl 242,127 236,114
Add/(deduct):

Deferred capitalized costs, r 277 125

Loan loss reserve (3,413) (1,812)
Loans receivable, ni $ 238,991 § 234,421

(1) We repaid the remaining 2003 Joint Venture strustiunotes on February 15, 201

Commercial mortgage loans
Represents the loans held by the parent compang, €dmmercial Trust.

SBIC commercial mortgage loans
Represents loans of our licensed Small Businessstment Company (“SBIC”) subsidiaries.

SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowings

Represents the government guaranteed portion afsleghich were sold with the proceeds received fittvn sale reflected as sect
borrowings —government guaranteed loans (a liability on oursetidated balance sheet). There is no credit rsdo@ated with these loz
since the SBA has guaranteed payment of the pahdiperefore, no loan loss reserves are recordeth® $37.9 million and $30.2 millic
respectively, of government guaranteed portiorth@$e SBA 7(a) loans included in loans receivab@egember 31, 2012 and 2011.

SBA 7(a) loans

Represents the namwvernment guaranteed retained portion of loangiraied under the SBA 7(a) Program and the govemhimearantee
portion of loans that have not yet been fully futh@e sold. The balance is net of Retained Loansdbists of $2.1 million and $1.6 million
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Commercial mortgage loans, subject to structuregtepayable
Represented loans contributed to a special purpo8g in exchange for a subordinated financiaéiiest in that entity. The collateral of
structured notes payable included these loansstrbetured notes were repaid on February 15, 2012.

Concentration Risks

We have certain concentrations of investments. taabally all of our revenue is generated from lo@ollateralized by hospitality properti
At December 31, 2012, our loans were 94% concetriait the hospitality industry. Any economic fasttihat negatively impact the hospits
industry, including recessions, depressed commemahestate markets, travel restrictions, bantaiep or other political or geopolitical evel
could have a material adverse effect on our fir@re@indition and results of operations.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, 15% and 18%, raspfctof our loans were collateralized by propestin Texas. No other state he
concentration of 10% or greater of our loans reslglier at December 31, 2012 or 2011. A decline imenoc conditions in any state in wh
we have a concentration of investments could hawatarial adverse effect on our financial conditor results of operations.

We have not loaned more than 10% of our assetqiyosigle borrower; however, we have an affiliatgdup of obligors representi
approximately 5% of our loans receivable at Decamfie 2012. Any significant decline in the finariciéatus of this group could haw
material adverse effect on our financial conditéom results of operations.

Aging

The following tables represent an aging of our lo&eceivable Subject To Credit Risk (loans recdévddss SBA 7(a) loans, subject

secured borrowings, as the SBA has guaranteed payohgrincipal on these loans). Balances are pigoloan loss reserves and defe
capitalized costs, net.

December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Category Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
Current (1) $ 198,282 97.1% ¢ 170,429 96.8% ¢ 27,853 98.8%
Between 30 and 59 days delinquent 2,824 1.4% 2,482 1.4% 342 1.2%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu 1 - - - 1 -
Over 89 days delinquent ( 3,111 1.5% 3,111 1.8% - -

$ 204,218 100.0y ¢ 176,022 100.0y ¢ 28,196 100.0Y

(1) Includes $7.6 million of commercial mortgage loatessified as troubled debt restructurings whicte @aurrent at December 31, 2(
based on revised note tern

(2) Includes $2.3 million of loans classified as traedbldebt restructurings. We are currently in theqass of foreclosing on the collate
underlying an SBA 7(a) Program loan — a limitedvéeg hospitality property with a principal balance of $211,000 (excluding
government guaranteed portion as it was sold aglaiti).

(3) Loans are classified as troubled debt restructusing/e are currently in the process of foreclosinghe collateral underlying these lo:
—two limited service hospitality propertie
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December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Category Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
Current (1) $ 202,217 98.2% ¢ 179,497 98.2% % 22,720 97.7%
Between 30 and 59 days delinqu 1,224 0.6% 1,090 0.6% 134 0.6%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu 696 0.3% 696 0.4% - -
Over 89 days delinquent ( 1,826 0.9% 1,442 0.8% 384 1.7%

§ 205,963 100.0% & 182,725 100.0% $ 23,238 100.0%

(1) Includes $6.3 million of loans classified as traedbldebt restructurings which were current basedewised note terms. Of these lo:
$5.6 million were paying interest on
(2) Includes a $1.4 million loan on which the borrowéited for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. We were clasdiféss a secured creditor in t

bankruptcy proceeding

Loan Loss Reservi

Management closely monitors our loans which reqeialuation for loan loss reserves based on speiciéintification metrics which a
classified into three categories: Doubtful, Subdtad and Other Assets Especially Mentioned (“OAENt§gether Specific Identificatio
Loans”).Loans classified as Doubtful are generally loangiviare not complying with their contractual terrttee collection of the balance
the principal is considered impaired and on whidh fair value of the collateral is less than theaming unamortized principal balance. Tt
loans are typically placed on nagcrual status and are generally in the foreclopueess. Loans classified as Substandard areajigniost
loans that are either not complying or had previonst complied with their contractual terms and/déather credit weaknesses which |
make payment default or principal exposure likaly ot yet certain. Loans classified as OAEM ameegally loans for which the credit qua
of the borrowers has temporarily deteriorated. Eglhy the borrowers are current on their paymendsyever, they may be delinquent on t
property taxes, insurance, or franchise fees or Ioeaynder agreements which provide for interest paiyments during a short period of time.

Management has classified our Loans ReceivableeBtuibp Credit Risk as follows (balances representimvestment in the loans prior to I¢
loss reserves and deferred commitment fees):

December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory ¢ 187,749 92.0% $ 159,994 90.9% $ 27,755 98.5%
OAEM 81 - - - 81 0.3%
Substandar 13,043 6.4% 12,917 7.3% 126 0.4%
Doubtful 3,345 1.6% 3,111 1.8% 234 0.8%

§ 204,218 100.0% ¢ 176,022 100.0% ¢ 28,196 100.0%
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December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $ 189,836 922% $ 167,397 91.6% $ 22,439 96.6%
OAEM 3,354 1.6% 3,317 1.8% 37 0.1%
Substandar 10,790 5.2% 10,569 5.8% 221 1.0%
Doubtful 1,983 1.0% 1,442 0.8% 541 2.3%

$ 205,963 100.0% $ 182,725 100.0% ¢ 23,238 100.0%

Our provision for loan losses (excluding reductiamsl recoveries of loan losses) as a percentageroiveighted average Loans Receiv
Subject To Credit Risk was 1.25% and 0.40% duri@22and 2011, respectively. Whenever our borrowgperience significant operati
difficulties and we are forced to liquidate thelatdral underlying the loan, future losses mayuiestantial.

During the fiveyear period ended December 31, 2012, our aggr@gatésion for loan losses, net, was approximatelyb$nillion or 46 bas
points per year based on the fiyear average of our Loans Receivable Subject TdiCRisk. Our total loan loss reserves as a peaggnbd
our weighted average Loans Receivable Subject ®diCRisk were 1.70% at December 31, 2012.

The activity in our loan loss reserves was as fazsto

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Commercial

Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans

(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye. < 1,812 $ 1,329 $ 483
Provision for loan losse 2,505 2,219 286
Reduction of loan losst¢ (104) (70) (34)
Recoveries (467) (467) -
Principal balances writt-off, net (333) (161) (172)
Balance, end of ye: § 3,413 § 2,850 $ 563

Recoveries represent cash proceeds from collectinrgersonal loan guarantees to the extent theaxalieficiency after foreclosure of the |
property collateral and to the extent cash recedlaabs not exceed realized losses taken on thenyope

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Commercial

Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans

(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye $ 1,609 ¢ 1,303 § 306
Provision for loan losse 826 429 397
Reduction of loan losst¢ (366) (342) (24)
Principal balances writt-off (257) (61) (196)
Balance, end of ye: $ 1,812 $ 1,329 $ 483
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Year Ended December 31, 20

Commercial

Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans

(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye ¢ 1,257 § 1,055 § 202
Provision for loan losse 1,019 607 412
Reduction of loan losst¢ (378) (309) (69)
Consolidation of the 2000 Joint Venture and the81B8rtnership reserv 184 184 -
Principal balances writt-off (473) (234) (239)
Balance, end of ye: § 1,60 $ 1,303 $ 306
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Impaired Loan Dat:

Information on those loans considered to be impaivas as follows:

At December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves $ 10,927 $ 10,04¢ & 878
Impaired loans expected to be fully
recoverable (1 2,244 2,123 121
Total impaired loans (z $ 13,171 $ 12,172 & 999
Loan loss reserve $ 1,535 $ 1,382 § 153
At December 31, 201
Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves § 7,411 § 7,027 ¢ 384
Impaired loans expected to be fully
recoverable (1 846 689 157
Total impaired loans (Z $ 8,257 $ 7,716 ¢ 541
Loan loss reserve $ 563 $ 372 $ 191
At December 31, 201
Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves $ 687 ¢ 419 & 268
Impaired loans expected to be fully
recoverable (1 228 228 -
Total impaired loans (¢ $ 915 $ 647 & 268
Loan loss reserve $ 219 $ 25 $ 194

(1) Balances represent our recorded investment. FoR2id 2011, includes loans classified as troublelt destructurings

(2) The unpaid principal balance of our impaired comai@rmortgage loans was $12,704,000 at DecembefB812. The unpaid princip
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $362,000ezeimber 31, 201.

(3) The unpaid principal balance of our impaired comai@rmortgage loans was $7,940,000 at Decembe811. The unpaid princip
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $593,000ezeimber 31, 201

(4) The unpaid principal balance of our impaired comaigr mortgage loans was $678,000 at December 31020he unpaid princip
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $288,000egeimber 31, 201!
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Year Ended December 31, 20

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 9,895 § 9,116 ¢ 779
Interest income on impaired loa $ 372 § 359 $ 13

Year Ended December 31, 20

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 8,176 § 7,610 ¢ 566
Interest income on impaired loa $ 290 § 271 $ 19

Year Ended December 31, 20

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 4,317 § 3,658 & 759
Interest income on impaired loa $ 114 § 89 § 25

Our recorded investment in Nd¥ecrual Loans at December 31, 2012 of $5,768,008 eeenprised of an $855,000 SBA 7(a) Program loa
$4,913,000 of commercial mortgage loans. Includé&tiimvthe nonaccrual SBA 7(a) loan is the government guaranpetion of $634,00
(i.e., the loan has a related secured borrowinigj \eas sold as a hybrid) on which we have no criedis exposure. The collateral securing
majority of our Non-Accrual Loans at December 3Q12 is currently in the process of foreclosure. @aorded investment in Nokecrua
Loans at December 31, 2011 of $1,820,000 was ceegprof $384,000 of SBA 7(a) Program loans and $108® of commercial mortga
loans. We did not have any loans receivable pas9@ulays or more which were accruing interestesteinber 31, 2012 or 2011.
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Information on our troubled debt restructurings wagollows at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

December 31, 201

Commercial Mortgage Loar SBA 7(a) Loar
Unpaid Unpaid
Recorded Principal Recorded Principal
Investmen Balance Investmen Balance

(In thousands
Troubled debt restructurings requiring

reserves (1 § 10,049 § 10,531 § 854 ¢ 846
Troubled debt restructurings without reser 2,123 2,172 - -
Total troubled debt restructurin & 12,172 $ 12,703 $ 854 $ 846
Number of loan: 8 1
Loan loss reserve & 1,382 & 130

(1) The SBA 7(a) loan recorded investment and unpadittipal balance includes the government guaranteedion of $634,000 on whi
we have no credit loss exposure. This loan is mgdo complying with its modified terms, includiragk of required payments. We
currently in the process of foreclosing on the atgltal underlying this loar

Loans with a recorded investment at December 312 20 $4.8 million were modified voluntarily undagreements to allow extended inte
only periods instead of the principal and integsgments required by the notes. In addition, lositis a recorded investment at Decembe
2012 of $6.0 million were modified involuntarily tiugh Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings. The bahéyuplans were confirmed w
modified terms including interest only and amottiima periods or modification of timing of paymemsmbined with interest rate adjustme
Of these, $3.1 million of loans are no longer coymg with their modified terms, including lack afquired payments. We are currently in
process of foreclosing on the collateral underltimgse loans.

December 31, 201
Commercial Mortgage Loar

Unpaid
Recorded Principal
Investmen Balance
(In thousands
Troubled debt restructurings requiring resetl g 5,591 $ 5,730
Troubled debt restructurings without reser 689 749
Total troubled debt restructurin & 6,280 § 6,479
Number of loan: 4
Loan loss reserve & 236

The modifications were primarily extended interesly periods; however, for one loan the borrowbsdfiChapter 11 Bankruptcy and the |
was confirmed with modified terms included an egteh only interest period and agaortization. In addition, the interest rate wadueed o
one of the commercial mortgage loans with an exdndterest only period.
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Note 3. Other Assets:

Other assets consisted of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands
Deferred tax asset, n ¢ 1,626 $ 1,409
Servicing asset, ni 1,261 979
Deferred borrowing costs, n 1,218 1,128
Investment in VIE 820 820
Retained interests in transferred as 773 996
Interest receivabl 620 710
Prepaid expenses and depo 330 303
Other ‘ 99 481
§ 6,747 § 6,826
Note 4. Debt:
Information on our debt was as follows:
Weighted Average
Carrying Value at Coupon Rate at
December 31, (1 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands, except footnot

Secured borrowing- government guaranteed loar

Loans sold for a premium and excess sp- principal $ 32,062 $ 24,174 4.09% 4.15%
Loans sold for a premium and excess spread - @efer
premiums 3,099 2,395 - -

Loans sold for excess spre 5,847 5,977 1.58% 1.58%
41,008 32,546

Junior subordinated not: 27,070 27,070 3.61% 3.62%

Debentures payab 17,190 13,181 4.47% 4.99%

Revolving credit facility (2 11,900 17,800 2.30% 2.47%

Structured notes payable | - 5,264 NA 3.08%

Debt $ 97,168  $ 95,861

(1) The face amount of debt as of December 31, 2012ahd was $97,168,000 and $95,870,000, respect

(2) Proceeds on the revolving credit facility were $®8),000, $41,800,000 and $34,650,000 during thesyeaded December 31, 20
2011 and 2010, respectively. Repayments on théviegaredit facility were $54,200,000, $37,800,G0@ $43,850,000 during the ye
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respeact

(3) We repaid the structured notes on February 15, 2

Secured borrowings — government guaranteed loans

Secured borrowings government guaranteed loans represents sold SBA7ggram loans which are treated as secured buorgsvif the loan
were sold solely for excess spread or if the loaase sold for excess spread and a cash premiurd%f To the extent secured borrowi
include cash premiums, these premiums are incliedcured borrowings and amortized as a reduttionterest expense over the life of
loan using the effective interest method and faliyortized when the loan is repaid in full.
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Junior subordinated note
The Junior Subordinated Notes bear interest abatifig rate which resets on a quarterly basis @t9thday LIBOR plus 3.25%. The Jun
Subordinated Notes may be redeemed at par at sionomterest payments are due on a quarterlysbasi

Debentures payabl
Debentures represent amounts due to the SBA areldeami-annual interest only payments until maturity

Revolving credit facility

PMC Commercial has a revolving credit facility winiexpires on June 30, 2014. The amount availabtieruthe revolving credit facili
automatically increased on January 1, 2013 from ®8bon to $40 million. We are charged interest e balance outstanding under
revolving credit facility at our election of eithére prime rate of the lender less 50 basis paintbe 30eay LIBOR plus 2%. In addition, v
are charged an unused fee equal to 37.5 basisspodmputed based on our daily available balance. ¢radit facility requires us to mu
certain covenants. We have a minimum net worth wamewithin our credit facility that may limit owability to pay dividends. The minimt
net worth covenant is $134.5 million at DecemberZi12 and $132.0 million from January 1, 2013 #radeafter. At Decembé@l, 2012, w
were in compliance with the covenants of this ficil

Structured notes payable
Structured notes payable were collateralized byaaes of the securitizations.

Principal payments on, and estimated amortizatfpouwr debt at December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Secured Borrowing

Years Ending Deferred All Other
December 3] Total Principal (1) Premiums (2 Debt (3)
(In thousands
201: & 6,122 ¢ 1,717 ¢ 215 ¢ 4,190
201+« 13,173 1,121 152 11,900
201 5,312 1,160 152 4,000
201¢ 1,353 1,201 152 -
2017 1,397 1,245 152 -
Thereafter 69,811 31,465 2,276 36,070

$ 97,16¢ $ 37,90¢ $ 3,09¢ $ 56,16(

(1) Principal payments are generally dependent uporh dlsvs received from the underlying loans. Ouinaate of thei
repayment is based on scheduled principal paymentshe underlying loans. Our estimate will diffeorh actua
amounts to the extent we experience prepayment®raluén liquidations or chargeffs. No payment is due unl
payments are received from the borrowers on thestyidg loans.

(2) Represents cash premiums collected on loans splekéess spread and a cash premium of 10% whickaetized a
a reduction to interest expense over the life eflttan. Our estimate of their amortization willfdif from actual amoun
to the extent we experience prepayments and/orliqaitations or charg-offs.

(3) Includes the revolving credit facility, junior suldinated notes and debentures paya

During 2012, 2011 and 2010 interest paid was $30085 $3,733,000, and $3,791,000, respectively.
Note 5. Cumulative Preferred Stock of Subsidiary:

One of our SBICs has outstanding 30,000 shared@® par value, 3% cumulative preferred stock (B8 ‘Preferred Stockeld by the SB/
Our SBIC is entitled to redeem, in whole or parg 8% Preferred Stock by paying the par value (88ldon) of these securities plus dividel
accumulated and unpaid on the date of redemptidmileVthe 3% Preferred Stock may be redeemed, reti@mi{ not mandatory. The :
Preferred Stock was valued at $900,000 when aatjiir004. Dividends of $90,000 were recorded an3%6 Preferred Stock during 20
2011 and 2010 and are reflected in our consolidstiements of income as interest expense.
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Note 6. EPS:

The computations of basic EPS are based on ourhtegigaverage shares outstanding. The weighted gevaramber of common sha
outstanding was 10,585,000, 10,570,000 and 10,684 the years ended December 31, 2012, 20122@hd, respectively. For purpose:
calculating diluted earnings per share, the weijlaeerage shares outstanding were increased bpQ4td 16,000 shares during 2011
2010, respectively, for the dilutive effect of shamptions. No shares were added to the weightethg@eshares outstanding for purpose
calculating diluted earnings per share during 284 @ptions were anti-dilutive.

Not included in the computation of diluted earnipgs share were outstanding options to purchaséb@@281,000 and 77,000 common sh
during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, becéeseptions’ exercise prices were greater thantkeage market price of the shares.

Note 7. Dividends Paid and Declared:

During 2012, our dividends were declared as foltows

Amount

Record Date Date Paic Per Shart
March 30, 201: April 9, 2012 $ 0.16
June 29, 201 July 9, 201: 0.16
September 28, 201 October 9, 201 0.16
December 31, 201 January 7, 201 0.12
& 0.60

We have a covenant within our revolving credit licithat limits our ability to pay dividends. Threstriction has not historically limited 1
amount of dividends we have paid and managemerst matebelieve that it will restrict future dividepayments.

Note 8. Other Income:

Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended December

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Servicing income $ 499 ¢ 399 ¢ 344
Prepayment fee 279 118 378
Loan related incom 221 196 226
Retained interests in transferred as 189 215 163
Other 92 127 106

§ 1,280 ¢ 1055 ¢ 1,217

Note 9. Severance and Related Benefits:

In October 2012, we entered into a mutual separatigreement with our former Chief Executive Offiagrder which the former Chi
Executive Officer stepped down as an employee aded to serve as a consultant to us for ayaae-period. In connection with tl
separation agreement, we recorded severance ateld ®enefits expense of $2,114,000.
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Included within accounts payable and accrued exgsens our consolidated balance sheet is the renggligibility for severance payments
$1,806,000.

Note 10. Income Taxes:

PMC Commercial has elected to be taxed as a REHeruthe Code. To qualify as a REIT, PMC Commerai@ist meet a number
organizational and operational requirements, iriolyich requirement that we distribute at least 96%uwv taxable income to our sharehold

As a REIT, PMC Commercial generally will not be jdb to corporate level Federal income tax on nebiine that is currently distributed
shareholders.

The following reconciles net income (loss) to REdXable income (loss):

Years Ended December @

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Net income (loss ¢ (2,179 $ 3,647 ¢ 4,297
Book/tax differences
Gains related to real est: - (235) 387
Strategic alternative (678) 678 -
Impairment losse 300 804 317
Severance accrual (paymer 1,777 (100) (33)
Amortization and accretio (188) (68) (102)
Loan valuatior 1,403 184 (241)
Other, ne 157 8 (174)
Subtotal 592 4,918 4,451
Adjustment for TRS net loss (incom:
net of tax (840) (131) 340
Dividend distribution from TR - 1,000 300
REIT taxable income (los: & (248) & 5,787 & 5,091
Distributions declare $ 6,353 $ 6,767 $ 6,757
Basic weighted average common
shares outstandir 10,585 10,570 10,554

Dividends per share for dividend reporting purposeee as follows:

Years Ended December &

2012 2011 2010
Amount Amount Amount
Per Shar Percen Per Shart Percen Per Shar Percen
Non-qualified dividends $ z = $ 0.477 74.53% ¢ 0.568 88.75%
Quialified dividends - - 0.095 14.78% 0.028 4.37%
Non-taxable return of capiti 0.600 100.00% 0.068 10.69% 0.044 6.88%
¢ 0.600 100.00% $ 0.640 100.00% ¢ 0.640 100.00%

During 2012, due primarily to deductible expenssated to exploration of strategic alternatives,had a taxable loss. Thus, all dividends \
deemed to be non-taxable returns of capital.

In general, in order to meet our taxable incomdriBigtion requirements, we may make an electioneuarile Code to treat a portion of
distributions declared and paid in the current yesadistributions of the prior year's taxable in@om
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PMC Commercial has wholly-owned TRS’s which arejecizto Federal income taxes. The income genefetetthe TRSS is taxed at norm
corporate rates.

We calculate our current and deferred tax provisibased on estimates and assumptions that codid ffibm the actual results reflectec
income tax returns filed during the subsequent.y&djustments based on the final tax returns aregsly recorded in the period when
returns are filed.

Income tax provision (benefit) related to the TR&ssisted of the following:

Years Ended December &
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Federal:
Current provisiol $ 821 $ 483 ¢ 514
Deferred benef (256) (369) (645)
Income tax provision (benefi $ 565 § 114 § (131)

In addition, income tax benefit of $115,000 for trear ended December 31, 2012 is included in dismoed operations based on opere
losses of REO of our TRS's.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes resulteifective tax rates that differ from Federal staty rates of 34%. The reconciliation of T
income tax attributable to income (loss) from couning operations computed at Federal statutong faténcome tax provision (benefit) was
follows:

Years Ended December &
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeome

taxes for TR's $ 1,628 $ 245 $ (471)
Expected Federal income tax provision (ben $ 553 $ 83 $ (160)
Preferred dividend of subsidia 31 31 31
Other adjustment (19) - (2)
Income tax provision (benefi $ 565 $ 114 $ (131)

We have identified our Federal tax returns andstaite returns in Texas as “majaaXx jurisdictions. The periods subject to examirafior ou
Federal tax returns and state returns in Texathar2009 through 2011 tax years. We believe than@ me tax filing positions and deductit
will be sustained on audit and do not anticipatg adjustments that will result in a material chamngeur financial position. Therefore,
reserves for uncertain tax positions have beerrdedo
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The components of our net deferred tax asset veefalaws:

December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands

Deferred tax asset

Secured borrowing- government guaranteed loe $ 1,054 $ 814
Retained interests in transferred as 387 364
Servicing asse 268 225
Net operating losse 25 25
Other 69 38
Total gross deferred tax ass 1,803 1,466
Deferred tax liabilities
Loans receivabl 177 56
Discount on debentures paya - 1
Total gross deferred tax liabiliti¢ 177 57
Deferred tax asset, n § 1,626 $ 1,409

The net operating loss carryforwards at DecembePB12 were generated by a TRS and are availaldéfdet future taxable income of t
TRS. The net operating loss carryforwards expoenf2027 to 2031.

We paid $617,000, $612,000 and $538,000 in inc@xestduring 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Note 11. Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax:
Our discontinued operations consisted of the falguw

Years Ended December &

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Net gains (losses) on sales of real es g (15 ¢ 532 ¢ 78
Net operating losse (582) (690) (298)
Impairment losse (341) (887) (325)
Income tax benefi 115 - -
Discontinued operations, net of t § (823) $ (1,045 $ (545

Net gains (losses) on sales of real estate gepeegdtesents gains (losses) on the sales of haipkpies and income recognition of previol
unamortized gains. During 2012, we foreclosed am dhderlying collateral (limited service hospitalpproperties) of two loans with
estimated fair value at foreclosure of $1,481,080 sold both of these properties during 2012. Qoegrty was sold for $1,375,000 includ
cash proceeds of $550,000 and financing of $825,086 other property was sold solely for cash pgdse No gain or loss was recordec
these sales. In addition, we sold a property dug@g2 with an estimated fair value of $76,000 aexbrded a loss of $19,000. During 2(
previously deferred gains of $685,000 from propseeies we financed were recorded as gains on ghtesl estate due to principal reducti
on the underlying loans. We also sold two propsrtiaring 2011 and recorded net losses of $153,00i6hwoffset our gains on sales of |
estate during this year. We also had a gain osdleof REO acquired through foreclosure of $76 @@@ng 2010.

Net operating losses relate to the operations afdirng costs of our REC

Impairment losses represent declines in the estundir value of our REO subsequent to initial atilon. Impairment losses during 2(
primarily relate to a retail establishment acquiiedhe third quarter of 2009 which continues tperence declines in its value. During 2(
our impairment losses are primarily related tolaservice hospitality property. The property expaced significant operating losses, isin t
of major capital improvements and has been
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held for an extended period of time with limitedrk&t sales activity, including an unsuccessful mmctiuring the third quarter of 2011, wh
contributed to the decline in its value. During @0bur impairment losses are related to the fullise hospitality property and a re
establishment.

Note 12. Dividend Reinvestment and Cash Purchased?l:

We have a dividend reinvestment and cash purchase(ihe “Plan”).Participants in the Plan have the option to reihadisor a portion ¢
dividends received. The purchase price of the ComBiwares is 100% of the average of the closingmidhe Common Shares as publis
for the five trading days immediately prior to tdevidend record date or prior to the optional caslyment purchase date, whicheve
applicable. Our transfer agent, on our behalf, tisesopen market to purchase Common Shares wittepds from the dividend reinvestrr
portion of the Plan.

Note 13. Profit Sharing Plan:

We have a profit sharing plan available to our-fitie employees after one year of employment. Vgsiicreases ratably to 100% after
sixth year of employment. Pursuant to our proférsig plan, approximately $247,000, $234,000 ariB§®0 was expensed during 2012, 2
and 2010, respectively. Contributions to the prsifiaring plan are at the discretion of our Boardirost Managers.

Note 14. Share-Based Compensation Plans:

At December 31, 2012, we had options outstandinpusharésased compensation plans. The 2005 Equity Ince®liae was approved by ¢
shareholders on June 11, 2005 and permits the gfations to our employees, executive officerd Board of Trust Managers and restrit
shares to our executive officers and Board of Thiahagers for up to 500,000 Common Shares. Weuegetteat these awards better align
interests of our employees, executive officers Badrd of Trust Managers with those of our sharedrsld

Option awards are granted with an exercise priceldg the market price of our Common Shares atitie of grant and vest immediately u
grant with fiveyear contractual terms. A summary of the statusunfstock options as of December 31, 2012, 20112&i® and the chanc
during the years ended on those dates are as fllow

2012 2011 2010
Number of  Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise
Options Prices Options Prices Options Prices
Outstanding, January 1 94,750 $9.09 90,750 $10.11 89,650 $11.77
Grantec 30,000 $7.80 27,000 $8.75 26,500 $8.35
Exercisec - - - - (2,500) $7.65
Expired (12,250) $14.01 (23,000) $12.72 (23,900) $14.54
Outstanding and exercisable, Decembe 112,500 $8.21 94,750 $9.09 90,750 $10.11
Weighted-average fair value per share of stock
options granted during the ye $0.40 $1.10 $1.24

Upon notification of intent to exercise stock opsoour policy is to first verify that the optioase exercisable, then to contact our transfer
instructing them to issue new shares and thenlteatdhe cash proceeds.
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The fair value of each share option granted isveggd on the date of grant using the Black-Schop¢®n{pricing model with the followin
weighted-average assumptions:

Years Ended December

2012 2011 2010
Assumption:
Expected Term (year: 3.0 3.0 3.0
Risk-Free Interest Ra 0.39% 0.71% 1.23%
Expected Dividend Yiels 8.21% 7.31% 7.66%
Expected Volatility 21.12% 33.58% 40.29Y%
Forfeiture Rate 1.00% 2.00% 10.00%

The expected term of the options represents thegef time that the options are expected to bstantling and was determined based ol
historical data. The risk-free rate was based en3gear U.S. Treasury rate corresponding to the erdetdrm of the options. We u:
historical information to determine our expectedatiity and forfeiture rates. We recorded compdiosaexpense of $12,000, $30,000
$33,000 during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelgted to these option grants.

The following table summarizes information abowrehoptions outstanding at December 31, 2012:

Options Outstanding and Exercisa

Weighted

Average
Remaining Weighted
Contract Life Average
Exercise

Range of Number Price
Exercise Price Outstanding (in years)

$7.65 to $7.8( 44,00( 3.2t $7.7¢
$8.35 to $8.7! 68,50( 2.62 $8.51
$7.65 to $8.7! 112,50( 2.87 $8.21

A summary of our restricted shares as of Decembef812, 2011 and 2010 and the changes duringdhesyended on those dates ai
follows:

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Gran Average Gran Average Gran
Number o Date Fair Valu Number o Date Fair Valu Number o Date Fair Valu

Shares Per Shart Shares Per Shart Shares Per Shart
Balance, January 1 11,031 $8.57 12,066 $8.35 17,416 $8.14
Grantec 15,000 $7.45 15,000 $8.73 13,100 $8.35
Vested (19,365) $7.98 (16,035) $8.55 (15,050) $8.11
Forfeited - - - - (3,400) $8.35
Balance, December ¢ 6,666 $7.75 11,031 $8.57 12,066 $8.35

The restricted share awards generally vest basevoryears of continuous service with aiérd of the shares vesting immediately u
issuance of the shares and dhied vesting at the end of each of the next twargeRestricted share awards provide for accelnasting i
there is a change in control (as defined in tha@)pl&ompensation expense related to the restratiades is being recognized over the ve
periods. We recorded compensation expense of $126¥148,000 and $101,000 during 2012, 2011 and,2&kpectively, related to ¢
restricted share issuances. At December 31, 20&8 tvas $15,000 of total unrecognized compensatipense related to the restricted st
which will be recognized over the next two yeanse Estimated fair value of restricted shares vedtieithg 2012 was $145,000.
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Note 15. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infaration:

Our non-cash activities were as follows:

Years Ended December

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Reclassification from loans receivable to realtestavnec $ 1,481 $ 409 $ 4,040
Loans receivable originated to facilitate saleseal estate owne $ 1,225 $ 1,172 $ 3,325
Reclassifications reducing secured borrowingsvernment guarante

loans and loans receivable, | $ = $ = $ 7,692
Consolidation of otbalance sheet securitizatiol

Loans receivable, ni $ - $ - $ 27,752

Restricted cash and cash equival $ - $ - $ 3,396

Structured notes payak $ = $ = $ 19,524

Note 16. Fair Values of Financial Instruments:

For impaired loans measured at fair value on aewnring basis during 2012 and 2011 the followialgleé provides the carrying value of
related individual assets at year end. We used|l3®irguts to determine the estimated fair valuewfimpaired loans.

Carrying Value a Provision for
December 31 Loan Losses (2
2012 2011 2012 2011
(In thousands
Impaired loans (1 $ 11637 $ 7694 $ 1163 $ 438

(1) Carrying value represents our impaired loang oé loan loss reserves. Our carrying value is deieed based on management’
assessment of the fair value of the collateral Hame numerous factors including operating statistic the extent available, apprait
value of the collateral, tax assessed value andketanvironmen

(2) Represents the net change in the provision for loases included in our consolidated statemeniaaaime (loss) related specifically
our impaired loans during the periods present

For REO, our carrying value approximates the eg@chair value at the time of foreclosure and thedr of cost or market thereafter. We
Level 3 inputs to determine the estimated fair gadfi our REO. The carrying value of our REO is klsthed at the time of foreclosure ba
upon managemerst’assessment of its fair value based on numeratsrfdaincluding operating statistics to the extavailable, the apprais
value of the collateral, tax assessed value anéehanvironment.
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The following is activity for our REO:

Years Endet
December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands
Value- beginning of yea $ 1,259 $ 3,477
Foreclosure: 1,481 409
Additions - 17
Cost of sale: (1,660) (1,757)
Impairment losse (341) (887)
Value- end of yea $ 739 % 1,259
The estimated fair value of our financial instrunsenas as follows:
December 31
2012 2011
Estimatec Estimatec
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Level
(In thousands
Assets:
Loans Receivable Subject To Credit R $ 200,64. $ 181,11 $ 203,95. $ 190,25! 3
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured ongs 38,34¢ 43,09¢ 30,47¢ 34,14( 3
Liabilities:
Structured notes and SBIC debentures pay 17,19( 18,021 18,44¢ 19,021 3
Secured borrowing- government guaranteed loz 41,00¢ 41,00¢ 32,54¢ 32,54¢ 3
Revolving credit facility 11,90( 11,90( 17,80( 17,80( 3
Junior Subordinated Not 27,07( 22,59. 27,07( 22,59¢ 3

We used Level 3 inputs to determine the estimaa@ds/alue of our financial instruments. In geneesiimates of fair value may differ from
carrying amounts of the financial assets and litédxl primarily as a result of the effects of disnting future cash flows. Considerable judgr
is required to interpret market data and develdpneses of fair value. Accordingly, the estimataggented may not be indicative of
amounts we could realize in a current market exgban

Loans Receivable Subject To Credit ROur loans receivable are recorded at cost and tedjus/ net loan origination fees and discount
order to determine the estimated fair value ofloans receivable, we use a present value techrigqube anticipated future cash flows us
certain assumptions including a discount rate baseclirrent market interest rates, prepayment teside and potential loan losses. Signifi
increases (decreases) in any of these inputs latimo would result in a significantly lower (highefair value measurement. Reserves
established based on numerous factors includingndtuimited to, the creditos’ payment history, collateral value, guarantor sup@xpecte
future cash flows and other factors. In the absefigereadily ascertainable market value, the egtichvalue of our loans receivable may d
from the values that would be placed on the pddfibla ready market for the loans receivable edst

SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured lvamgs: Represents the government guaranteed portion ofladich were sold with tl
proceeds received from the sale reflected as sg#dtomeowings — government guaranteed loans (alitialoin our consolidated balance sheet
see below). There is no credit risk associated thiéise loans since the SBA has guaranteed payrhém principal. In order to determine
estimated fair value of our loans receivable, we agpresent value technique for the anticipatedgréutash flows using certain assumpt
including a discount rate based on current marketést rates and prepayment tendencies.
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Structured notes and SBIC debentures payable anl8ubordinated Notesthe estimated fair value is based on a presenewaliculatio
based on prices of the same or similar instrumafiés considering market risks, current interegtsand remaining maturities. The structi
notes were repaid on February 15, 2012.

Secured borrowings — government guaranteed lo@hs: estimated fair value approximates cost asritezast rate on these secured borrow
approximates current market interest rates. Incdulde unamortized deferred cash premiums collemteitie sale of the government guaran
portions of the loans.

Revolving credit facility The carrying amount is a reasonable estimatioraiofvalue as the interest rate on this instrumemariable and wi
set in a third-party transaction.

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies:

Loan Commitment

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totemdcustomer provided the terms establisheddrctmtract are met. Our outstanding
commitments and approvals to fund new loans wepecasimately $19.5 million at December 31, 2012, mhajority of which were for prime-
based loans to be originated under the SBA 7(ayrBmo, the government guaranteed portion of whicimtiesnded to be sold. Commitme
generally have fixed expiration dates. Since soamemitments are expected to expire without beingvdrapon, total commitment amounts
not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

Operating Lease
We lease office space in Dallas, Texas under a ledich expires in February 2015. Future minimuaséepayments under this lease a
follows:

Years Ending

December 3: Total
(In thousands
201< $ 212
201¢ 217
201F 36
$ 465

Rent expense amounted to $187,000, $179,000 argi(kIBduring 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Employment Agreemer

We have employment agreements with our two exeeutifficers for thregrear terms expiring December 31, 2015. Under a
circumstances, as defined within the agreemengsagiteements provide for (1) severance compensatichange in control payments to
executive officer in an amount equal to 2.99 tirttes average of the last three years annual comfi@ngzaid to the executive officer
(2) death and disability payments in an amount etpuwo times and one time, respectively, the aimmompensation paid to the execu
officer.

Litigation

In the normal course of business we are periodigaltty to certain legal actions and proceedingslinng matters that are generally incide
to our business i(e., collection of loans receivable). In managemempinion, the resolution of these legal actiond proceedings will n
have a material adverse effect on our consolidiedcial statements.

SBA Related

If the SBA establishes that a loss on an SBA guesghloan is attributable to significant technideficiencies in the manner in which the |
was originated, funded or serviced by our SBLC,3B& may seek recovery of the principal loss reldtethe deficiency from us. With resp
to the guaranteed portion of SBA loans that hawntseld, the SBA
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will first honor its guarantee and then seek conspion from us in the event that a loss is deerndaktattributable to technical deficienc
Based on historical experience, we do not expetittlis contingency would be material to the finahstatements if asserted.

In certain instances, including liquidation or avoff of an SBA guaranteed loan, we may have aivable for the SBAS guaranteed porti
of legal fees, operating expenses, property tagds, etc. related to the loan or the collateralofuforeclosure). While we believe exper
incurred were justified and necessary for the eaue preservation of the collateral and within te&bklished rules of the SBA, there can b
assurance that the SBA will reimburse us. In addjtreimbursement from the SBA is a time consunaind lengthy process and the SBA |
seek compensation from us related to reimbursefestpenses which it does not believe were necgdsathe care and preservation of
loan or its collateral. Although the SBA has negleclined to reimburse us for its portion of mategigpenses, no assurance can be givel
the SBA would not do so in the future. We have eatdd our SBA receivables and believe that oumfife statements fairly reflect the
receivables at their appropriate net realizablae:al

Pursuant to SBA rules and regulations, distribigtifnom our SBLC and SBICs are limited. In orderofgerate as a small business len
company, a licensee is required to maintain a minminmet worth (as defined by SBA regulations) of ghneater of (1) 10% of the outstanc
loans receivable of our SBLC or (2) $1.0 milliors well as certain other regulatory restrictionshsas change in control provisions.
December 31, 2012, dividends of $2.0 million weraikable for distribution from our SBLC.
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(Dollars in thousands, except footnotes)

Conventional Loans - States 2% or greate(l):

Principal amount

Geographic Number Final Carrying of loan subject to
Dispersion of of Size of Loans Interest Rate Maturity Amount of delinquent principal
Collateral Loans From To Variable (2) Fixed Date Mortgages (3) or “interest’
Texas(4) 24 $0 $3,000 3.11% to 7.25¢ - 1/21/1%--8/16/31 ¢ 25,24 g =
Texas 14 $0 $2,00( - 8.00% to 10.78¢ 11/15/1%--11/18/3( 7,441 -
Virginia (5) 7 $0 $6,00C 3.36% to 7.50¢ - 1/30/2%--12/17/32 17,50( -
Virginia (6) 2 $0 $1,00( - 7.50% to 8.50% 6/1/1%--8/21/27 1,76¢ -
Arizona 6 $0 $5,00C 3.36% to 7.50¢ - 2/10/2%--9/14/31 11,35 -
Arizona 6 $0 $3,00( - 7.50% to 10.00¢  7/16/1%--3/28/32 6,317 -
Ohio 6 $0 $3,00C 3.36% to 4.36¢ - 10/27/2%--4/21/28 11,27¢ -
North Caroline 4 $0 $2,000  3.86% to 4.86¢ - 6/11/22--5/5/23 3,892 -
North Caroline 4 $0 $3,00( - 7.50% to0 9.85%  12/20/1¢--5/22/32 5,21¢ -
Alabama 4 $0 $3,000  3.75% to 4.61¢ - 11/21/2(--10/01/2¢ 6,82t -
Alabama 2 $0 $1,00( - 9.50% 6/15/1¢--10/27/18 1,03¢ -
Florida 3 $0 $3,000  3.49% to 4.11¢ - 11/1/25--10/1/26 4,22 -
Florida 2 $0 $3,00( - 7.50% to 8.24Y 1/1/24--2/5/33 3,51( -
Michigan 6 $0 $2,000 3.24% to 7.25¢ - 2/10/2¢--8/23/30 7,23¢ -
Oregon 2 $0 $4,000 4.61% to 7.25¢ - 9/8/2%--5/13/30 5,20¢ -
Oregon 3 $0 $1,00( - 9.00% to 9.90% 2/2/1¢--6/13/21 1,77¢ -
Pennsylvani 2 $0 $4,000  4.36% to 7.00¢ - 9/29/2*--8/1/32 4,38¢ -
Pennsylvani 1 $0 $3,00( - 10.25% 6/22/20 2,27( -
Indiana 5 $0 $2,000 3.86% to 8.25¢ - 12/4/2%--2/26/32 5,95( -
California 4 $0 $2,000  4.11% to 4.75¢ - 3/21/2:--12/13/26 4,38¢ -
California 2 $0 $1,00( - 8.90% to 9.00%  7/10/1¢--12/28/24 977 -
Georgia 3 $0 $2,000 3.86% to 4.61¢ - 12/26/1°--12/14/2° 2,23¢ -
Georgia 3 $0 $2,00( - 8.75% to 10.25¢  3/24/1¢--12/1/29 2,45¢ -
lowa 3 $0 $3,000  4.36% to 6.95¢ - 9/30/1¢--5/30/26 3,92¢ -
Mississippi 1 $0 $3,00( 7.25% - 12/1/32 2,428 -
Mississippi 2 $0 $1,00( - 8.00% to 9.50% 6/12/1¢-12/26/22 1,10 -
Other(7) 18 $0 $2,00C 2.86% to 7.00¢ - 6/27/1¢--11/24/27 16,35t 3,203
Other 12 $0 $2,00( - 7.75% to 12.00¢  8/20/1¢-12/22/30 7,84¢ -
14¢ $ 174,12 (8) $ 3,203
Footnotes:

(1) There are three loans which are secured by sedend bn properties which are subordinated to orstfiens on the respective properti
(2) Certain loans at variable interest rates have ietgrrate floors which may be in effe

(3) Excludes general reserves of $1,468,(

(4) Includes two loans with a face value of $3,162 800 valuation reserves of $403,0!
(5) Includes a loan with a face value of $3,122,000 avdluation reserve of $144,0(
(6) Include a loan with a face value of $1,045,000 analuation reserve of $21,0C

(7) Includes two loans with a face value of $3,203,800 a valuation reserve of $814,0!
(8) For Federal income tax purposes, the cost bas@iofmortgage loans on real estate was approximé&§6,457,000 (unauditec

F-31



Table of Contents

SCHEDULE IV
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except footnotes)

SBA 7(a) Loans - States 2% or greatefl) :

Principal amount

Geographic Final Carrying of loans subject to
Dispersion of Size of Loans Maturity Amount of delinquent principal
Interest Rate
Collateral From To (2) Date Mortgages (3) or “interest”
Texas(4) $0 $50( 4.13% to 6.00¢  4/26/1¢--10/18/37 9 3,462 $ =
Michigan $0 $50( 5.25% to 6.00¢ 2/16/1%--6/27137 2,464 -
North Caroline $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 9/8/32--10/25/37 2,117 -
Ohio 14 $0 $50( 4.25% to 6.00¢ 5/11/1%--11/4137 1,719 -
Indiana 9 $0 $50( 4.75% to 6.00¢  11/19/1¢--8/30/37 1,493 -
Virginia 6 $0 $50( 6.00% 12/13/2°--10/15/3' 1,375 -
Wisconsin(5) 7 $0 $50( 5.00% to 6.00¢  4/23/2(--11/14/37 1,248 -
lllinois 5 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 3/26/1¢--9/18/37 1,196 -
Kentucky 5 $0 $50( 6.00% 4/9/35--12/28/37 1,154 -
Alabama 4 $0 $50( 5.00% to 6.00¢ 7127/2*--8/25/36 1,035 -
Mississippi 2 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 5/18/3--11/4/36 1,019 -
Florida 8 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢  6/12/1¢--12/29/36 1,007 -
Georgia 6 $0 $50( 5.13% to 6.00¢ 5/23/2(--6/25/35 855 -
lowa 3 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢ 12/22/3--10/17/3" 769 -
Connecticu 2 $0 $1,00( 5.13%to 5.63¢  12/5/1¢--11/30/36 703 -
Arizona 5 $0 $50( 5.75% to 6.00¢  10/28/1¢--4/28/36 650 -
Oklahoma 6 $0 $50( 4.75% to 6.00¢ 9/9/24--11/10/35 621 -
Missouri 5 $0 $50( 5.25% to 6.00¢ 4/16/1¢-9/12/37 613 -
Kansas 3 $0 $50( 6.00% 10/29/3:--5/4/36 580 -
Other 33 $0 $50( 5.00% to 6.00¢ 1/31/1%-9/13/37 2,295 -
Government guaranteed portic(6) 2,449 -
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowi
7) 37,909 -
$ 66,733 $ =
Footnotes:

(1) Includes approximately $547,000 of loans not setiereal estate. Also includes $324,000 of loaitis subordinate lien position

(2) Interest rates are variable at spreads over thengrrate unless otherwise not

(3) Excludes general reserves of $410,(

(4) Includes a loan with a face value of $100,000, laaton reserve of $23,000 and a fixed interesé raft 6.00%
(5) Includes a loan with a face value of $846,000 awdlaation reserve of $130,0C
(6) Represents the government guaranteed portions ro8Bi 7(a) loans detailed above. As there is nb oiSloss to us related to these portions of tharguteed loans, t

geographic information is not presented as it ismeaningful
(7) Represents the guaranteed portion of loans whiale weld with the proceeds received from the sdleated as secured borrowing
(8) For Federal income tax purposes, the cost basmiofoans was approximately $27,526,000 (unaudit
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SCHEDULE IV
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012
(In thousands, except footnotes)

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 196,642
Additions during period
New mortgage loar(1) 69,701
Other- deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts 324
Other- accretion of loan fees and discou 317 70,343

Deductions during periot

Collections of principal (2 (20,999)

Foreclosure: (4,040)

Cost of mortgages sold, r (7,903)

Other- consolidation of loan loss resen 184

Other- bad debt expense, net of recove (641) (33,767)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 233,218

Additions during period

New mortgage loar(3) 39,524

Other- deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts 410

Other- accretion of loan fees and discou 17 39,951

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa (21,473)

Foreclosure: 409

Cost of mortgages sold, r (16,400)

Other- bad debt expense, net of recove (460) (38,742)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 234,427

Additions during period

New mortgage loar(4) 55,387

Other- deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts 421

Other- accretion of loan fees and discou 204 56,012

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa (28,562)

Foreclosure! (1,481)

Cost of mortgages sold, r (19,471)

Other- bad debt expense, net of recove (1,934) (51,448)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 238,991
Footnotes:

(1) Includes $22,912,000 and $5,024,000 from caaatibn of the 2000 Joint Venture and the 1998 Rawship, respectively, due to a change
in accounting rules effective January 1, 2010 amd Ibans totaling $3,325,000 which were originatedonnection with sales of real estate
owned which did not require cash expenditures.

(2) Includes $7,692,000 representing reclassifmadireducing secured borrowings and loans receeabl

(3) Includes a loan of $1,172,000 which was origgukin connection with the sale of real estate awvaich did not require cash expenditure.
(4) Includes a loan of $1,225,000 which was origéabin connection with the sale of real estate awvhich did not require cash expenditure.
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Exhibit

Number

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.1(c)

3.2

3.2(a)

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between PMC r@ertial Trust and PMC Capital, Inc. de

March 27, 2003 (incorporated by reference to AnAeto the Registran$ Registration Statement
Form &-4 dated November 10, 200:

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Mergewbet PMC Commercial Trust and PMC Cag
Inc. dated August 1, 2003 (incorporated by refeeetiocExhibit 2.5 to the RegistragtQuarterly Repa
on Form 1+Q filed on August 12, 2003

Declaration of Trust (incorporated by referencéhi® exhibits to the RegistraatRegistration Stateme
on Form 11 filed with the Commission on June 25, 1993,rasraded (Registration No. -65910)).

Amendment No. 1 to Declaration of Trust (incorpedaby reference to the exhibits to the Registgani
Registration Statement on Form13$-filed with the Commission on June 25, 1993, aserade
(Registration No. 3-65910)).

Amendment No. 2 to Declaration of Trust (incorpethby reference to the Registranfnnual Repo
on Form 1+K for the year ended December 31, 19¢

Amendment No. 3 to Declaration of Trust dated FeabrulO, 2004 (incorporated by reference tc
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to the exhitbtshe Registrant’s Registration Statement on Fofrm
11 filed with the Commission on June 25, 1993,rasraded (Registration No. -65910)).

Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws (incorporated by refeeetc Exhibit 3.1 to the RegistraatCurrent Repa
on Form &K filed on April 16, 2009)

Instruments defining the rights of security holddise instruments filed in response to items 3d 2
are incorporated in this item by referen

Debenture dated March 4, 2005 for $4,000,000 loath \8BA (incorporated by reference to
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20l

Debenture dated September 9, 2003 for $2,190,080 Vath SBA (incorporated by reference to
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Debenture dated September 9, 2003 for $2,000,080 Vath SBA (incorporated by reference to
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20!
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4.t

4.€

+10.1

10.4

+10.£

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.€

10.1(

Debenture dated September 6, 2011 for $5,000,G00Math SBA (incorporated by reference to Ext
4.5 to the Registra’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20:

Debenture dated September 19, 2012 for $2,000,6080 Wwith SBA (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly ReportFrm 10 for the quarterly period ended Septen
30, 2012).

Debenture dated September 19, 2012 for $2,000,6080 Wwith SBA (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly ReportFrm 10 for the quarterly period ended Septen
30, 2012).

2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refesemo Exhibit 10.1 to the RegistramtQuarterl
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 20

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement between Pbt@ng&rcial Trust and First Western SB
Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National AssociasnAdministrative Agent, dated December
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.xh® Registrant’s Current Report on FornK 8iled
January 3, 2011

Executive Employment Contract with Jan F. SaliedaDecember 11, 2012 (incorporated by refer
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registré’s Current Report on Forn-K filed December 13, 2012

Purchase Agreement among PMC Commercial Trust, FV&erred Capital Trusk- and Tabern
Preferred Funding |, Ltd. dated March 15, 2005 diporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

Junior Subordinated Indenture between PMC Comnlefcisst and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Nati
Association as Trustee dated March 15, 2005 (irwmetpd by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among PMC @ocith Trust, JPMorgan Chase Be
National Association, Chase Bank USA, National Asstion and The Administrative Trustees Nal
Herein dated March 15, 2005 (incorporated by refegeto Exhibit 10.3 to the RegistrantQuarterl
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

Preferred Securities Certificate (incorporated dfgrence to Exhibit 10.4 to the RegistranQuarterl
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Note due 2036Bofjporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20
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10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

+10.16

+10.17

*21.1
*23.1
*31.1
*31.2
**32.1
**32.2
***101.INS
***101.SCH
***101.CAL
***101.DEF
*»**101.LAB

*»**101.PRE

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated rfeference to the RegistramtAnnual Report ¢
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20(

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit égent among PMC Commercial Trust, F
Western SBLC, Inc., and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Naltidasociation, as Administrative Agent, i
the lenders named therein, dated June 8, 2011rgocmed by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrar’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on June 10, 201

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Note exetiytétMC Commercial Trust (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Cotri@eport on Form & filed with the SEC on Jui
10, 2011)

First Amended and Restated Revolving Note exechieéirst Western SBLC, Inc. (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Cotri@eport on Form & filed with the SEC on Jui
10, 2011)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Cred@efgent (incorporated by reference to Ex
10.1 to the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on June 20, 201

Executive Employment Contract with Barry N. Berlilmted December 11, 2012 (incorporatec
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s CuotrReport on Form & filed with the SEC o
December 13, 2012

Separation Agreement and General Release betwewe IlBa Rosemore and PMC Commercial T
dated October 26, 2012 (incorporated by referemdexhibit 10.1 to the RegistrastCurrent Report ¢
Form &K filed with the SEC on November 1, 201

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers |

Section 302 Officer Certificatio- Chief Executive Office
Section 302 Officer Certificatio- Chief Financial Office
Section 906 Officer Certificatio- Chief Executive Office
Section 906 Officer Certificatio- Chief Financial Office
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
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*  Filed herewith
**  Furnished herewitt
*** |n accordance with Regulation S-T, the XBRL-a¢td information in Exhibit 101 shall be deemedrtifahed” and not “filed”unde
sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933/andnder section 18 of the Securities and Exchaxgjeof 1934, and otherwise is |
subject to liability under these sectio
+ Management contract or compensatory |



Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Registrant

State
of
Company Incorporation

PMC Investment Corporatic Florida
Western Financial Capital Corporati Florida
First Western SBLC, Inc Florida
PMC Funding Corp Florida
PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 20-1 Delaware
PMC Joint Venture LLC 20(-1 Delaware
PMC Asset Holding, LLC Delaware
PMCT Asset Holding, LLC Delaware
PMC Preferred Capital Tri-A Delaware

PMC Properties, Inc Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3D (No. 333-24767) and Form S-8
(No. 333-127531) of PMC Commercial Trust of our report dated March 18, 2013 relating to the financial statements, financial
statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 18, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
[, Jan F. Salit, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of PMC Commercial Trus

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact neces:
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madeisieiading with respect
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of opgerst and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfee periods presented in |
report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresauwsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rinédion relating to the registrant, including itsneolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report i
being preparec

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahodporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financigborting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registgaulisclosure controls and procedures and presentedis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the teig's internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of annual rptirat ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrarg’internal control over financial reportil
and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @britver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectithgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and reffmahcia
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: 03/18/13 /s/ Jan F. Sal
Jan F. Sali
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
[, Barry N. Berlin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of PMC Commercial Trus

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact neces:
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madejisieiading with respect
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of opgerst and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfee periods presented in |
report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresauwsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rinédion relating to the registrant, including itsneolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahodporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financigborting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registgaulisclosure controls and procedures and presentedis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the teig's internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual repbd) has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @britver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectitbgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refmaihcia
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: 03/18/13 /s/ Barry N. Berlir
Barry N. Berlin
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of PMC Comnir@rust (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ended December 31, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report)Jan F. Salit, Chief Executive Officer of the Queny
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2668, to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhgegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Jan F. Sal

Jan F. Sali

Chief Executive Office
March 18, 201



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of PMC Comnier@rust (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ended December 31, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl),Barry N. Berlin, Chief Financial Officer of t

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350adspted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbadbrley Act of 2002, that to the best of
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhgegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Barry N. Berlir
Barry N. Berlin

Chief Financial Office
March 18, 201




